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Corporate Profile
NI LR

Our Vision, Mission & Values
EPES - FaMEER

VISION E\E% To be the pioneer of innovative living space

MEATE ALE=M

MISSION ﬁ ap We sitrlve to creaFe a .healthy,. stylish and distinctive living experience through teamwork and
passionate pursuit of innovation and excellence

BREN AFRE BEHAR RBEALX BEARLEERR

VALUES {E{E &} Pioneer

Break new grounds

— PRI’DE e B i 37

Integrity
Uphold high ethical
standards

EPHE

Respect
Value the individual and
cherish our environment

BAEL

Devotion
Be committed and
passionate

UV

Innovation
Think outside the box
AR FLT48 ]

Excellence
Consistency in the pursuit
of our quality standards

EREE
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HKR International Limited ("HKRI" or the “Company”) is a conglomerate in Hong
Kong with interests in diversified businesses, focusing on real estate
development and investment, property management, luxury hotels and
serviced apartments, healthcare services and other investments in Hong Kong,
mainland China, Thailand and Japan.

HKRI's comprehensive portfolio includes Discovery Bay and CDW Building in
Hong Kong; HKRI Taikoo Hui in Shanghai, and a number of premium residential
and commercial properties in Jiaxing, Hangzhou, Bangkok and Japan. We aim
at further growing a balanced portfolio to maximise the Company's value for
shareholders.

At HKRI, we strive to create a healthy, stylish and distinctive living experience
through teamwork and an unwavering commitment to innovation and
excellence. We believe sustainability is one of the most important ways to
make a business and community viable. Guided by our core values, we are
devoted to making a positive contribution to the communities, promoting
sustainable development and creating a better living environment.

EAAXBEREEARAR(EAERXE
BRIKARADAEEE PEAN  FER
BAREZTEEHR T ERRBEER
REE DMEER ZEBERRBAE
T BERELEMKERRB -

FEERXBEEXBEMM BEEER
RERFPRKRE  EBREREXHE AR
REE MM 2AaBANSHEER
BMEER ARBBNE-—FTHEEH
B RBRRAEEEME-

BRERAE BEAFREREE  F
AEXERZ DA ERFERENBEELR
BR-BMARCEAIKEZRAERTRLR
BERNREZ-R TEBTEERLE
B RUESFELER EFURHEER &
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Highlights of the Year

N N
APRIL 2020 /9 A AUGUST 2020 \ A

® AmMed'’s latest MRI imaging centre in Tsuen @ Lantau Yacht Club completed its phase one
Wan came into operation facelift and welcomed its first member yacht
® ZEEEYEP OB D RIRFH PO ® LantauYachtClubZ —HiBIFT T2 T W EGDEE
EXRA —HeakEKE
PR

® The handover of units of Poggibonsi SEPTEMBER 2020 j—LE A
in Discovery Bay started

¢ mSE{EERE BIEMBRE ® The latest residential project in Jiaxing City was
named Starlight One

¢ FEERETHENETEHEEXGERERE

\
NOVEMBER 2020 +—A

® Mr Victor Cha and Ms Madeline Wong were
appointed as Executive Chairman and Non-
executive Deputy Chairman of the Group
respectively. Mr Jackie Tang was appointed as
Managing Director

® ERRAERIEXIRLLIFIBRERKEH

AY \ /—i /_Ei , 5 E E]
JUNE 2020 7~ H gﬁgg#ﬂﬁaﬂ B BRELLEHESRE

® DB Plaza new extension held its soft opening

® The Group successfully bid for a second premium .
land lot in Hangzhou ® MRESEENIBMLE

¢ KERNREHME - REHMIR
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N N
DECEMBER 2020 +=H JANUARY 2021 — A

® Creekside One in Jiaxing obtained occupation ® The Group acquired a 16-storey industrial
permit building named United Daily News Centre in To
PY . Kwa Wan
A EE AR A BEE AR
® SEBA—EARLIE BERABESERAEN

16BLERE

® Mansion One in Jiaxing obtained occupation
permit

® TREEMNFREREAKE

\
MARCH 2021 = A

® The Group entered into agreement to acquire

18 property units on Hollywood Road / Upper
Lascar Row in Sheung Wan

o REXITHRBEVN LREFFE/ BELE
BH1SEMREN

FERRAXEREEERAF 20202021 £ Q5



Awards and Recognition

RIAN F=&F

Significant awards won by the Group in the

Financial Year 2020/2021:

S ER2020202 B FREESA T EEIF

HKR International Limited

EREXERSEERLT

“15 YEARS PLUS CARING COMPANY"LOGO

Eifm
"= e

155 PLUS[ 7 57 B 122
The Hong Kong Council of Social
Service

B ERY

HONG KONG ESG REPORTING AWARDS 2020
BERE HEREREE AR
— BestESG Report (Small Cap) — Commendation
BEECHRE (N mE)-BFR
— Excellence in Environmental Positive Impact
— Commendation
SHRBERY-BFR
Alaya Consulting
AR

s L
Ei=]

SOCIAL CAPITAL BUILDER AWARDS 2020-2022

N0 2002 FEARE H

— SOCIAL CAPITAL BUILDER LOGO AWARD
HEELRBNEFE

Community Investment and

Inclusion Fund of Labour and

Welfare Bureau

SIRBHRTREREHRZES

JOCKEY CLUB AGE-FRIENDLY CITY PARTNERSHIP
SCHEME 2020
ERSRENT EH RERE]
& &200
— CITY PARTNERSHIP SCHEME STICKER

[2H REREIER
The Hong Kong Jockey Club
Charities Trust
EREFEREERED

SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS AWARD 2020
TETFERREKZ0N
World Green Organisation

SR A 6 4

WEBAWARDS 2020 — OUTSTANDING WEBSITE
Web Marketing Association

GBA OUTSTANDING CORPORATION

EEOEUFERREKK2020

— SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY AWARD
BHEERLE-HEURFE
BRAR

— GREEN SUSTAINABILITY AWARD
HREEECE-BEURE
BR AR

Metro Finance

IR )

06

ERB MANPOWER DEVELOPER AWARD SCHEME
ERBA 7 e EF 75 &
— GRAND PRIZE AWARD 2018-20
1% K 42201820
—  MANPOWER DEVELOPERS
AT EE
Employees Retraining Board

REBFHEIB

MENTAL HEALTH WORKPLACE CHARTER

BHRERSNE

— MENTAL HEALTH FRIENDLY ORGANISATION
BRREREHE

Advisory Committee on Mental

Health and Department of Health

BRERFAZEGREEE

GOOD EMPLOYER CHARTER 2020

(FEEHE) 0

— FAMILY-FRIENDLY GOOD EMPLOYER
[(RIIRIFEE

Labour Department

BT

GOOD MPF EMPLOYER AWARD 2019-20
BEFET R 82092
— GOOD MPF EMPLOYER 6 YEARS
REFEEF
— MPF SUPPORT AWARD
BEEER
— E-CONTRIBUTION AWARD
E RS e
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority
BHERTEESFTEHEER

CHINA FINANCE SUMMIT 2020

Al B 4 2020
INDUSTRYINFLUENCER MRVICTOR CHA

S BENAY-EREEE

- OUTSTANDING BRAND IMAGE AWARD
BERERE SR

Organising Committee of China

Finance Summit

TEpKEEETS

11" GOLDEN MOUSE DIGITAL MARKETING AWARDS
ENECESHTEHAE
— PUBLIC WELFARE COMMUNICATION AWARD
—BRONZE AWARD
NEEER-AR
Creative Communication
Management Research Centre of
Peking University
IR KRB E L S HE AT
A
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Hong Kong Resort

Company Limited

BERRXERAF

THE OUTSTANDING DEVELOPER AWARDS 2019

GG B REB AR

— URBAN DESIGN & MASTER PLANNING AWARD
HmRRERRE AR

—  GREEN DEVELOPMENT AWARD
RRELCBER AR

CAPITAL and CAPITAL Weekly

BERMAHERERSE

Discovery Bay Services

Management Limited

S EREEEEMRA T

HONG KONG AWARDS FOR ENVIRONMENTAL
EXCELLENCE 2019
NYEBRF M AR
PROPERTY MANAGEMENT (RESIDENTIAL)
— BRONZE AWARD
MEERE(EE)-
— GREEN OUTDOOR EVENT
FERIIMNES
Environmental Campaign
Committee
RIREDEES

%

HSBC LIVING BUSINESS AWARDS 2019
WOFMELEEHE N IREGTE
~ HSBC LIVING BUSINESS SDGS AWARDS —
GOAL 12: RESPONSIBLE CONSUMPTION AND
PRODUCTION SILVER AWARD
ELEmMB HUSERREE
ﬁi’é— BEN BETHEBNE
E-RE
— HSBC LIVING BUSINESS ESG AWARDS
—CERTIFICATE OF MERIT
ELEmHH HIRE
ﬁ& BER
Business Environment Council Limited

BRRRBEER A

CLP SMART ENERGY AWARD 2020

B Al 3 B A 1 K 82000

~ JOINTENERGY SAVING AWARD
7500 B e K 28

CLP Power

FESE

HERE

PRIVACY-FRIENDLY AWARDS 2021
[FAB8 2 R IEFF 8 a0
— SILVER CERTIFICATE
g4
Office of the Privacy Commissioner
for Personal Data

BAAEHLEBEERS

HKR Limited
BERREREERAT

TETRAPAK CLEAN RECYCLING PILOT SCHEME 2020
HERMEEFEW LB 200
—  OUTSTANDING PERFORMANCE

BERR
Greeners Action

BRATHY

IL PICCO

=2
=

THE OUTSTANDING DEVELOPER AWARDS 2019

BERGHBRER K009

— LUXURIOUS SEAVIEW DETACHED HOUSE
LANDMARK RESIDENCE AWARD
BESSBIBHERFBAE

CAPITAL and CAPITAL Weekly

BABEREATR

GOLFERS' CHOICE AWARDS 2020

005 IR EE KR

—  CHOICE GOLF PROPERTY
RESWAME

GOLF VACATIONS and Senasia

Publication Group Limited

BIRERARIEHRER DT

MUSE DESIGN AWARDS 2020
— PLATINUM WINNER (RESIDENTIAL)

‘ International Awards Associate

ASIA DESIGNERS COMMUNITY BEST DESIGNER
AWARDS 2020

~ MOST OUTSTANDING SHOW FLAT DESIGN
Home Journal

XHRE

INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY AWARDS 2020

— BESTRESIDENTIAL INTERIOR APARTMENT, HONG
KONG -5 STAR AWARDS

International Property Media Limited

INTERNATIONAL DESIGN AWARDS 2020
— BRONZE IN INTERIOR DESIGN — RESIDENTIAL
Farmani Group



e |

aasieraup
My, W

Poggibonsi THE CREATIVE BENCHMARK SHOPPING CENTRE
=48 HERIFIERER
— GOLD AWARD
THE OUTSTANDING DEVELOPER AWARDS 2019 a4
B R R K209 2020 China Shopping Mall Value
— LUXURIOUS LOW DENSITY SEAVIEW LANDMARK | Board
RESIDENCE AWARD 2020 CSVBH B /5 45 (B B 1
pac) 2R Y Tir g
HEEERSREBFEBAR 2021 GOLDEN LIGHT AWARDS
CAPITAL and CAPITAL Weekly S350,
— THE TRENDSETTER AWARD
INTERNATIONAL PROPERTY AWARDS 2020 BRElE AR
— AWARD WINNER — RESIDENTIAL INTERIOR SHOW ‘ MCWzg.com
HOME HONG KONG Eo T
— AWARD WINNER — RESIDENTIAL INTERIOR
APARTMENT HONG KONG PLAY ME, 'M YOURS
‘ International Property Media Limited 4 23 #f = & 4if £ REE &)

La Cresta

i Hr EVENTS INJING'AN DISTRICT
NOVUM DESIGN AWARD 2020
— GOLDEN AWARD - INTERIOR DESIGN CATEGORY

=

Shanghai Jing'an Municipal
Administration of Culture and
Tourism
EamERREAMKRE R

‘ Novum Design Award

HKRI Taikoo Hui
HEXLE

THE SIGNIFICANT EVENTS OF ARTS IN SHANGHAIIN

RICS AWARDS 2020 CHINA 2020
18 . .
fcs 2 8 om0 a0 HEBHEEYEED
N COMMERCWPROJKTOF THE{EAR Shanghai Municipal Administration
FEBRBERARE of Culture and Tourism & Shanghai
Royal Institution of Chartered Municipal Commission of
Surveyors Commerce

RESRFFUBMES

2020 CITY LIFE AWARD BHEEE
20 F [47 o BR 138 0 4 5E 45
— BESTPOPULARITY SHOPPING CENTRE AND Mansion One
COOPERATIVE PARTNER B
ARBSAE T RERH
Radio Shanghai SCENERY PROJECT OF THE YEAR 2020
FEAREREAR WEFEREFRESEESR

Jiaxing Broadcast and Television Group

2021 URBAN LFESTHLE AWARDS and Jiaxing Nanhu University Real

- THENODERN LANDVARK Estate Research Centre
T AN SR w Do e
z;g;w Ml SIoh: ol =R EE S E -
ES NP o
BB E AT
\GOGOShanghai F 2k B E IR
2020 BRAND CEREMONY ICONIC PROJECT OF THE CITY 2020
WNFH TSR
—  THE MOST INFLUENTIAL SHOPPING MALL Nan Hu Evening News
= E_E;@ O FE 12
E’A,?-/sjfluu,!iﬁﬁﬁ Fﬁ?ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁiﬁ

Zhoumozuosha, Shanghaiquanzi &
Go App
AR - EBEF - EApp

2020 TOP 10 ANNUAL PUBLIC CULTURE & TOURISM

MEFEFRZE T AR HRE

bPETmXEMRERM EET

MOST POPULAR PROJECT AWARD 2020
WEETREEERE(BIHR)
Jiaxing Daily

5 BA W

Starlight One ‘
ER

TRENDING PROJECT OF JIAXING 2020
WFEERZHEEER

Jiaxing Broadcast and Television Group
and Jiaxing Nanhu University Real
Estate Research Centre
RETEHAEREE -

B B B E M R T O

Creekside One
B A&

LUXURY PROJECT BENCHMARK OF THE YEAR 2020
MEEEAZERR

Jiaxing Broadcast and Television Group
and Jiaxing Nanhu University Real
Estate Research Centre
RETEHEERER -
BB ER T O

Auberge Discovery Bay Hong Kong

EEMREEE

KLOOK STAYCATION AWARDS 2020
KLOOK STAYCATION < 28 2020
— BESTFAMILY HOTEL AWARD
BESRFBEEAR
‘ Klook

The Sukhothai Bangkok

THE WORLD'S BEST AWARDS 2020

— #1CITY HOTEL IN BANGKOK

— #4HOTEL AMONG ALL ASIAN CITIES

— #37THE 100 TOP HOTELS IN THE WORLD

TRAVEL + LEISURE WORLD'S BEST AWARDS 2021
— TOP 500 HOTELS IN THE WORLD
‘ Travel + Leisure magazine

2021 EXPERTS' CHOICE AWARD
‘ Tripexpert

READERS' CHOICE AWARDS 2020
— TOP 10 HOTELS IN BANGKOK
‘ Condé Nast Traveler

La Scala

ASIASTOP 80
— TOP 2020 FINE DINING IN THAILAND
Farmani Group

La Scala & Celadon
MICHELIN PLATE AWARD

‘ MICHELIN

The Sukhothai Shanghai

LBRARBEE

KOL GOLD LIST 2020
WNFKLAE NS4
— BESTCITYHOTEL
RERTEE
KOL Gold List
KOLAE &5

URBAN HOTEL OF THE YEAR
- “PLACE
Destination Deluxe

THE BEST GOURMET HOTEL IN CHINA
FEIREZERBE
Ganlanhuabao

g & R

READERS' CHOICE AWARDS 2020
— TOP 20 HOTELS IN CHINA

‘ Condé Nast Traveler

La Scala

MICHELIN PLATE AWARD
MICHELIN
AKEM

The ZUK Bar

BEST HOTEL BAR OF THE YEAR
FEHEHE
Ganlanhuabao

G =

WOW TRAVEL AWARD 2020

00EEIRERE

— BESTHOTELBAR
REBEEE

| Shanghai wow

EREEFREBEBRAF 2020/2021 F1H
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

Executive Chairman

BITER

I am delighted to share our annual report for the financial year 2020/2021
(the “Current Year"), which demonstrates how HKR International Limited
("HKRI" or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”)

have delivered on their strategy with an unwavering commitment to
innovation and excellence.

Though various challenges emerged over the year, the Group's prudent
planning, diversified investment strategy and flexible response resulted
in resilience that well positions the Group for continued long-term
growth and to fully capture the opportunities of a rebounding economy.
During the Current Year, the Group continued to develop new projects
and expand its portfolio according to its strategic plan.

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2020/2021

Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor
B EE

AAMRAREEFTHERABEEEFR QA
((EABEEBRRIK[ARE ) REHEBRQF
(alEE]) 20202021 B ERE(TAEE])
ZEERSE -

BE—F BEUABHEEXBETRELE
BeoRM KREEREFBERAF NETEK
BREN ERETHE ZRLILRERE
LRBEHEUSER BRBENEETLIRENX
R REBGBERFRMEEOE R &S
VIRELEEETRONZHE - RAFE &
Bz MREE KA HEREMNBEBUERY
¥ds -



RESULTS

The Group’s revenue for the financial year ended 31 March 2021 was
HK$3,942.3 million, a decrease of 16.1% from that of last year, and the
profit attributable to the Company's shareholders was HK$897.3 million,
a decrease of 44.8% as compared with HK$1,624.6 million in 2019/2020.
Excluding the net unrealised gains on fair value of our investment
property portfolio, the underlying profit was HKS$868.6 million,
representing a 23.9% decrease from that of last financial year.

The Board of Directors recommends a final dividend of HK5 cents per
share for the Current Year. This, alongside the interim dividend of
HK4 cents per share, brings the total dividend amount to HK9 cents per
share for the Current Year. In 2019/2020, a total dividend of HK12 cents
per share was paid to shareholders.

MARKET OVERVIEW

The Current Year was marked by extreme volatility, most notably caused
by the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic. Tourism was brought to a
near-standstill for most of the year amid extensive worldwide travel
restrictions. The International Monetary Fund calculates the global
economy contracted 3.5% in 2020, however, the downturn was less
severe than what had been expected in some regions. Mainland China,
the only economy posted expansion in 2020, recorded 2.3% GDP
growth. Indeed, the country’s economy further rebounded 18.3% in the
first quarter of 2021, year-on-year.

Despite an overall market downturn in Hong Kong, residential prices and
consumer spending gradually picked up as certain pandemic
containment measures took effect. Due to a lack of housing supply and
low interest rates, Hong Kong's residential property market remained
relatively stable. Property prices recorded a lower drop than the market
had anticipated.

HE2001F3A3BEHBRFEE SEERF
WA3ZMMIEEABIL REF R L161% " i
RARAFIREEAERF RIZEEB T B
2019/2020%F & 21,6246 B & & JT & 2 44.8% o
WBREBKREMELAEGZAERQAFEFK
@ EWEF AsscA BB L WE— K
FEF AL 23.9% °

EEeREBATESTRRAR TR BN -
ERTHBRESR4BINGE AFEZRE
AR A FRRIBA ;20192020 F EREE R 2
B @mARER12B-

™ 35 B

REFEMARBEENEE  AFEMS
BAERESH BAREHRETAEERNIKER
Bl RBEERFRAREIDBHELSEE R
BERE®EE S AN EIE  20200F 25K
FEEHEIS% o AT o MEMNLERREE
BARBIEHPERE - B HAHR2020F 85
B A A EE AR (E I R R 03% » R 20204F M — B &R
BIBERE  MAPBEER202IFEETEE—
WIRF EF183%

BEAABBMB N BENRBEHEINE
—ERY EEBEREEMEZRSEE-
MEEERREMEEHRERR  EEEEY
EMBHERFRET - SREERB LTS
TEERE G -

FERAXEREEERAF 20202021 £ Q9
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Chairman’s Statement

ER®E

{

Discovery Bay

=Ry
FRI=

i

BUSINESS REVIEW

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT —
HONG KONG

Hong Kong is the Group's key market, where our flagship development
Discovery Bay (“DB") is located. The Group has recently accepted the
Government's offer covering the basic terms and land premium amount
of Master Plan 7.0E for DB, which will over the long term enlarge the
Group's portfolio and pave the way for the Group to deliver its long-
standing development commitment to the DB community.

Meanwhile, the acquisition and conversion of older buildings, and the
transformation of low-yield growth assets, are increasingly attractive due
to the shortage of new land supply.

The Group will endeavour to seek new development project
opportunities and re-development projects in various urban areas, which
will further diversify the Group's portfolio in Hong Kong, and increase our
investment in more projects with lower risks.

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2020/2021

DB Ice Rink 1a1 = /&8 7k 1%

RO
ER—NEBRRRREA

BEEEEENTEMS TREEXRER
MRENAE KT FEEZAT B
Te & 48 40 18] B 55 7.0E 57 42 1 B9 B AN IR e A
WwERRE ERERESE-TEREEN
MEMAG BREELRSURARRER-

SO BRI HMERESR  KBERE
TERNEEREREENEEETICEK

SESHEBEYERE BRFEBRKED
BOMEERZRE BRSEENBTEDE
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IL PICCO XEl&

At the same time, the Group is enhancing the value of its investment
properties portfolio to further maximise asset value. As part of this
strategy, we are undergoing to convert West Gate Tower into a
commercial building. The new extension of DB Plaza has also soft-
opened in the Current Year, further enlarging our commercial portfolio
in Hong Kong.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT AND INVESTMENT —
MAINLAND CHINA

Mainland China will likely continue to lead the global economic recovery
in the near term. Adhering to our strategy of expanding the Group's
footprint in mainland China, especially in the Yangtze River Delta area,
the Group acquired a second land plot in Hangzhou in the Current Year,
which will be developed into a low-density residential community.

Retail momentum, especially in Shanghai, rebounded through the
Current Year. The performance of the strategically located HKRI Taikoo
Hui ("HTH") was cohesively stable, with the occupancy rate of its office
tower and shopping mall exceeding 90%. We shall target to further
upgrade the retail mix of HTH and introduce more premium brands,
which in return will increase our rental revenue and asset value.

SE-—BERREMEEE BRRESERE
EEBE S/SEAILKE AEHERLREL
BHamErRAE MEESHEZFIRA
FERAR E-—TERKERBENAE
MEHESG -

TEA—EBERERRE

HAAE PEAMERNOHNEIREEE
HEPEERETHRER  RERBR®H
HHREARBNERBRE YAR=ALES
oL EE - REAFEAEMIMNKES — Rt
0 ERERARTEEELE -

FEAMTEENAFEERERLHE L
UEBNRBARRBRY LELEBESHER
MEXATEEBXRERT WRBRES
B i 8 R R 381 90% MY 7K S o 3 P  Bh ) AE AR 1R
RAEEALHENBFPESG BEFEZELM
MER RSESBANEEEBE-

FRRAXERKEERDF 20202021 £ 11



Chairman’s Statement

ER®E

e

m o U HKRI Taikoo Hui SR T E
LA P e .

Creekside One B¥ A &

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT — THAILAND RE—MEBRE

We are optimistic on Thailand's medium- and long-term economic S E|EBEFE ZEYWETHEB LN B
prospects, although the country’s property market has stagnated dueto  F Y ZH P R AR LB AT = R I L8 - &
the pandemic’s impacts. We are riding on the occasion to further |SEif B HEeE P UNRFZEHR
improve the design and planning. Construction will proceed when the (5t B4R E| - FBEEE 2 BT IREHE T -
economy recovers.

HOSPITALITY BIEREFEK

In response to restricted travel and tourism across many parts of the 2 Bt & #b & 3 40 12 PR H| A1 £ BX 4t = 86 B 4
world and social distancing measures, the Group adopted prudent cost- 3 B B &It EEHEEEENES R E - I
saving measures and shifted promotions to the local market. The Lantau % # & )& 8) 82 /& M [A) 2N # T 35  Lantau Yacht
Yacht Club (“LYC") completed phase two of its facelift and opened anew  Club([LYC]) 8 —HAIBI T T2 B8 T - € BT T
clubhouse. The region’s yachting market holds great long-term potential, B &HE - £EEBZR A BRAERTENREE
and we are working on strengthening LYC's position in this growing R E H a8 B FE S - BRZERELYC
segment. U BEREDN TSR 2 AL -

12  HKRInternational Limited Annual Report 2020/2021



Lantau Yacht Club

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (“ESG”")
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to accelerating its sustainable development,
and to that end is working to establish enhanced ESG targets and to
draw up and implement related policies and guidelines. For example,
the Group is developing climate change related policy to combat the
increasing challenges. In the Current Year, the Group appointed two
female Directors, with women now making up one-third of directors, far
exceeding the market average in Hong Kong. We are determined to
maintain a gender-inclusive Board.

OUTLOOK

While executing our tried-and-tested core strategies, we shall remain
flexible. On the road to economic recovery, we expect volatility to
remain heightened in the near-to-mid-term on the pandemic’s lingering
effects and Sino-US and other geopolitical tensions.

-

The Sukhothai Shanghai £/ Z&E S 5=HE

RE HERELBRE

SERNBEAASEER RUFTEERE
MERE LB REBRBR XHTRHTH
RAIR K N #8 5l » B an - & B IE & 5T BSR4
FRBENREELEE - RAFE  £E
AZEMUAMEEES  KHEEFEARNG
BEEFS =22 EcRAEETSTH
Ol R PIHESEZ SR FEIRD

B2

SE-RERBRTITZARNZLERE
RERFETER BALEZXHERE  E@
HREBHEFE R X ZHFEE &K
AERNBE  BRMBHEEHFHLBEDNA
B E o

FERRAXEREEERAF 20202021 £ 13
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Chairman’s Statement

EREWE

2020 pl

PR Gl %x
i%

2020 PRIDE Bl =
FEEIRITRAFR

Mainland China’s economy is likely to outperform its peers, and housing
demand in major Chinese cities will likely expand. Residential prices are
forecast to grow steadily, and consumers are shifting their focus to
looking for higher-quality housing. This quality-driven trend is expected
to benefit the overall property market development, which also aligns
with the Group's long-term dedication to building premium homes.

Hong Kong residential property prices were resilient over the Current
Year on an ongoing lack of housing supply. We target to maximise our
return by a three-thronged approach: continued enhancement of
existing projects, development of new ones and sourcing of urban
redevelopment projects. We remain positive on the property market's
long-term outlook.

APPRECIATION

[t was with great sadness that we bid farewell to our late Chairman
Mr Payson Cha, who passed away in November 2020. He will be long
remembered for his exemplary leadership and tremendous contributions
to the Group over his years at the helm.

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2020/2021

LAINEH

MUKSLRERHR

15 STEPS

Elﬂ 15 YEARS

PR R ERIBAEEE EMERER
FERMEHTENRI T KNG E BRI -
BRMEANEEEZERSEL LA MAEBEE
ENAnEREEMNRE EHE—BE2E
EFMRMEMTSHNERER TG EE
B NEREEETENTE °

ERBRATEH ARFEERBEHR  FEAN
FEAERBHEBRE -HMBERKEE
LR BEBE REHRBELRUEDERERZRA
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MHRENRFELE -
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I'would like to take this opportunity to express thanks to Mr Abraham
Chung, who retired as an Executive Director in April 2021, for his
considerable contributions to the Group.

My sincere appreciation also goes to our Board of Directors and our
senior management team, who steered the Group during difficult times.
With new directors and management members on board, | have every
confidence that the Group will benefit from new ideas and insight. Last,
but by no means least, | would like to convey huge gratitude to our staff
for their hard work and flexibility, in particular during the pandemic time,
and to our stakeholders for their continuing support.

Ve tha

Victor Cha
Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 June 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERBNWR TN

HKRI is a conglomerate with its core business in property development
and investment. It is the Group's strategy to increase its asset value by
continued development of its flagship project Discovery Bay, acquisition
of different scales of land plots or projects for development / re-
development, and enhancement of our investment properties’ value. We
shall continue to look for opportunities to expand our property portfolio.

LAND BANK T ih{Z &

As at 31 March 2021, the total land bank (including those held directly by
joint ventures) attributable to the Group amounted to 8,908,000 square
feet, which is earmarked for property development purpose upon
fulfilment of related terms and conditions. During the Current Year, the
Group acquired 430,000 square feet of developable gross floor area.

BEAXERE - RIELEMEERL
REXGNEALE SENTEZREBEEIR
HEEBE YEAKEZRWSEEESR
B WBIARARENMRKNIBERETER/E
2R SBETREMERE  KMmE2 B
FoRMMTEHMERE  BREXEEDN
MEAE -

M2021FE3HA31H SEEML LM HEERE
B 718908000°F 77 R (R FEH & & R R HA K
TH) FERITHEBGRERGERE 2S5t
BIEMEEZRERE SERAFENRDWE
430,000 77 R AT BB EIE ©

The Group’s revenue from property development and investment for the Current Year, including the

proportionate share of joint ventures and associates of HK$949 million (2020: HK$1,357 million), was HK$4,237

million, down from HK$5,108 million in 2019/2020.

The Group's contribution from property development and investment, including the proportionate share of joint
ventures and associates of HK$226 million (2020: HK$343 million), was HK$1,275 million (2020: HK$1,306 million).

REAEE SEYVERRRREZEKN KR ARH2019/2020FE EW5,108E BB T RL E£4237HEBE T
B EERLEASEEEATIRBE NATNWR AT E B T (20205F : 1,3578EB T) -

EEYVERERREEFNRFAE12758 BB T (2020F 11,306 EEB T) EREEREH LS
EBANTARBENTNKZE26EE BT (2020F (343 5E®BT) °
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HONG KONG - PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

Though the COVID-19 pandemic is mostly contained, its impact
continues to linger on due to continued social distancing measures,
economic downturn and elevated unemployment rate. However, pent-
up demand has emerged in recent months on low interest rates and
supportive government policy, with the number of transactions and
price having stabilised.

We continued our sales of the three existing key projects during the
Current Year, and one project is expected to be launched by the end of
2021 or early 2022.

With the basic terms and land premium amount of Master Plan 7.0E for
Discovery Bay (the Group's attributable interest is 50%) offered by the
Government being accepted in May 2021, the Group's residential land
portfolio in Hong Kong will increase by over 1.3 million square feet,
providing over 1,400 units.

Poggibonsi

=R

(50% owned) :

(59 sold during the Current Year/Zx4F [& & H 5918

BER-MEEE

HEAMEMARBERREE  BHRHER
BEEEREEIMALER MEEETBERREE
EAEEZ HEEMMEFEBRTE -
AMEBEHA - KERE LB HNKEK
REPEAMEANT R WERIRALE
EBHRORE-

BRMRAFEEBHEE-_EXERAFEE
I 78 HA 722021 £F JE 82022 F 1) & B Hh — (&
IBH -

AR 2021 5 A B # M EBUN BE 18 =2 42 41 B
BISE70ESEIREMERN R R HHEEE 2
EEERANEES T AL B MNBRBI30E
SRR AR EI400EFEEN EBH
B S ERF B S0%E R

IL PICCO

=

D (1 50% K 28 : ' :
. : * (50% owned) :
. Total units B{742%: 196 : : e :
: : o (1h50% k%) :
¢ Unitssold D E&EE{r: 144 : :
: . Total units: 21 garden houses :

. Sale proceeds generated during
. the Current Year: HK$719 million

TEEHERR  7198EBERT

Revenue of 128 sold units was recognised
. during the Current Year

128 EBUHRABREFEAR E

BAAY  1EREEE

Units sold B &8 1y: 2
(1 sold during the Current Year/Zx45 € & H 11%)

Sale proceeds generated during
the Current Year: HK$52 million

D AFEHEWS S2BEET
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Lo Fai Road
EER

(50% owned)

(1 500 1 2% )
: Total units B {7 ;61
¢ Units sold B & 1i: 59 2 (40% owned)
* (7 sold during the Current Year/ZAN4F & & H 71) : (15 40%# %)
© sale proceeds generated during : Total planned units R 8IE {7 8 8: 262
the Current Year: HK$295 million GFA # 2 E: 497,000 sq.ft. SF 7R
D REEHEWRE 295BBABT : : R
: : . Expected date of launch 85t H #A:
Revenue of 5 sold units was recognised End of 2021 or early 2022
. during the Current Year 2021 E E52022F 7]

SEEEEMLNBASREAFEAR

: Status: Superstructure work in progress
R LETRETH

During the Current Year, the Group acquired the United Daily News AAREE » £ BB N + &S B A
Centre in To Kwa Wan. We have submitted an application tore-develop B W IF#ETHRE B D BEFEERZAETEA
this property into a residential building. A residential redevelopment & o B 4h - £ E R 202154 A B AR/ EE
project located on Hollywood Road was also acquired in April 2021, the EHEZIEE - R IFEITHREI L RE -

planning and design of which is currently underway.

HONG KONG - PROPERTY INVESTMENT EB-YERE

Performance in this segment was impacted by lacklustre business FHELERAFARE M ESBEREEK &
sentiment and pandemic containment measures. The Group isengaging Z#MERE N SN XRIB - EFEHFEREF
with commercial tenants and providing relief measures on a case-by- T B - W AERNBEEEMHAPEHEES
case basis for those most in need. B o
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CDW Building R K E

The property investment projects in Discovery Bay, which the Group
holds 50% interests, recorded stable performance during the Current
Year, with DB Plaza and DB North achieving committed occupancy rates
of 90% and 97%, respectively, as of 31 March 2021.

The new DB Plaza extension was soft-opened during the Current Year,
increasing the Group's investment property portfolio by approximately
59,000 square feet. The extension provides a good mix of retail and F&B
options, and houses the city's latest ice rink for the enjoyment of
residents and visitors.

The Group's other investment projects, comprising CDW Building in
Tsuen Wan, and Wellgan Villa, a residential building in Kowloon Tong,
achieved occupancy rates of 93% and 96% respectively, as of 31 March
2021,

West Gate Tower in Cheung Sha Wan is being renovated and converted
into a commercial building, which will further enhance the value of the
Group's investment portfolio. The work is scheduled to be completed by
mid-2021.

SETRMESENYEREREREAFERE
Br -#E201FE3A3E - BEESEES
1t B 5 D B8R 15 90% & 97% Ky & FE & - £ @
EHEEYMERETEBS0%EL °

BMEESNEESI>RAFERABE &
BREEYEBSIEIMNAS000F FR - 5K
RE—ZRI2FEDREREERE TRAED
BRIABKE KBEPRIENEE LT
Py

B E221F3A318 £EEET 290 #1%

et

EHEB EEPLRERNEEETERNE —
EHEE D RIEEE 3% N 96% ) R -

UREDENESBER ORI EHTKEE
KE - BAR201FFhET  H#E—FREAE
B EYELAENEE-

BRRAXEREEERDF 20202021 £ 21
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MAINLAND CHINA -
PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

Mainland China's property market and demand are rebounding with
sales activities escalating following containment of the pandemic.
Transaction volume is expected to grow steadily, governed by
continuing price regulation policies intended to maintain a stable
market, which will drive the developers to be more focused on projects’
quality, and help foster sustainable long-term growth.

Two key residential projects in Jiaxing are scheduled to launch in mid-
2021, and have been granted occupation permits in the Current Year. In
addition, the Group acquired a second land plot in Hangzhou in the
Current Year.

REE

Total units B A E:
188 mid-rise apartments
188fEF B R EE

| GFA @i E: 342,000 sq.ft. AR

: Occupation permit granted A X 4E#t & A &
. December 2020
E 20205128

¢ Expected date of launch JE 5+ €& A H:

: Mid-2021
D 20215

PERM-YEERE

BEERBXIES FEABYETSLSE
KEF HERHERERRF - AT - PEKAT
RTREBTHBERERFEERZTRE WA
HAREBBIRRE - RERREDHERRD
FIERAVMFEEENEE EHREED
MERMAFERR -

MEEHETEE DN AFE B ALK
WIEER2021FRHELTS - B KFERAE
FREMMKRGE —mA-

Creel.(side One

B A&

Total units B {7 22 &

98 mid-rise apartments and villas

© osfEt B ABE LRI

© GFA #IEEEE: 210,000 sq.ft. L H R
Occupation permit granted A {X 4% #t H B HA:

: December 2020
© 20205128

Expected date of launch T3t i & H H#:

¢ Mid-2021
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HKRI Taikoo Hui BEEE K & E

Ie

Mansion One &=l

The Group's other residential projects under development in mainland &£ B AR E A IEEHMBEREPTEER -

China are:
Projects GFA (sq.ft.)
EHH HEEEHETERR)
Jiaxing, Zhejiang # I & ZE T
Starlight One 768,000
ERrE

Hangzhou, Zhejiang 7 3T & 4 M

Land lot 07-R2-05 430,000
in Lin’an District
%22 07-R2-0555 b 15

B

Status
]’

392 high-rise apartments and villas
Foundation work in progress
Expected completion: 2023
3fEmERRELNKHIE
E TR EITH

FAE SRR 20234

Plot ratio: 1.0-1.2

Planning in progress. To be developed into low-density
development

WL & 1012

HEEERET BERNEZEEE

The Group will continue to explore investment opportunities in £ EFEEETE N B IFILEWE - 1§ %
mainland China to expand its business footprint in other cities, especially B EREZHMH T EP U R =ZA X

in the Yangtze River Delta area.

BRI o
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_. &
. d T
HKRI Taikoo Hui FE 2 X & B

MAINLAND CHINA -
PROPERTY INVESTMENT

Retail momentum and business and consumer confidence, especially in
Shanghai, rebounded through the year, which is beneficial to the
Group's property investment business in mainland China.

The performance of HTH, located in Shanghai and in which the Group
has a 50% interest, was cohesively stable. The two office towers, HKRI
Centres One and Two, achieved an occupancy rate of 97%, and the retail
mall’s occupancy rate reached 91%, as of 31 March 2021. Both retail mall
turnover and footfall achieved double-digit growth year-on-year.

The Exchange, the Group’s 15%-owned investment property in Tianjin,
has a total GFA of over 1.6 million square feet and comprises two
Grade-A office towers and the Heping Joy City retail mall, a popular
destination for young shoppers. During the Current Year, the mall and
the two office towers maintained average occupancy rates of 89% and
85%, respectively. Meanwhile, the Joyer Apartment achieved 65%
occupancy as of 31 March 2021. The property has maintained good
occupancy rates and generated stable rental income.

THAILAND - PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

The Group maintains its cautious approach towards the market in
Thailand as its economy was hit hard by the COVID-19 pandemic.
Nevertheless, we are optimistic on Thailand’s medium- and long-term
economic development and are carefully revisiting the development
schedule for the Rama 3 project, the Ramintra Road project, and the
Wireless Road land plot. The Thailand team is well prepared to ramp up
the pace of development in Thailand once macro conditions recover.

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2020/2021
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JAPAN - PROPERTY INVESTMENT AND
DEVELOPMENT

The Group continues to maintain a presence in Tokyo's property market
that provides a steady, recurrent cash inflow. Our five investment
properties all recorded satisfactory leasing performances, with
occupancy rates ranging from 89% to 100%. Notably, the Group owns
646,000 square feet of land in Niseko, Hokkaido, which is earmarked for
development into a high-end resort.

TRANSPORTATION SERVICES

The sea, land transport and tunnel services in Discovery Bay are operated
by the Group’s various subsidiaries, in which the Group holds a 50%
interest.

With the COVID-19 pandemic exerting an influence to varying degrees
throughout the Current Year, both ferry and bus ridership were adversely
affected due to stringent distancing measures resulting in reduced
social, commercial and schooling activities.

Coupled with the existing challenges of maintenance cost inflation and
a shortage of skilled operations staff, as well as heightened hygiene
requirements, the decreased activities exacerbated pressure on transport
services' daily operations.

The financial burden was alleviated by the support provided under the
ad hoc Government Anti-epidemic Fund and the ongoing Special
Helping Measures covering ferry services starting April 2020.

Two newly built double-decker buses compliant with the highest Euro VI
emissions standards were added to our operating fleet from August
2020, further increasing peak-hour carrying capacity and supporting the
Group’s mission to boost sustainable development. Additionally, to
improve the passenger experience, ferry vessels were upgraded,
including seats, floor mats and display panels.

AR-PERERERE

SEEENRRXYMEDIZH R AR

EYWENABRBREYSARE HEENT
89% %= 100% 2 fE - ﬁaﬁiﬂxgim%&?%'\‘iiﬁfﬁuﬁz
A ltih EERIEBEFESAHEEDREE
646,000 5 IRy A b - B T8 88 %*Eﬁmr‘ﬁ‘
(EEN

R i E iy R 1%
EEETNZEZHBEAREELERMSENE

o ﬁ%x@&&E%ﬁ
NGIRY

S KRB A 32 BB B 15 I AR AR
7 SmRBDH ~?§ﬁ¥&%%%§b’%ﬁ
R%%B%;%THEEE’J@E@ E i opig
LETRBENELZENIINEELE -

Br T Eflkﬁizlit/ﬁﬁ&ﬁfﬁﬂ&mi EABR
FRARSEMBIN XBEHGHFIERTE

MEBEFAZF

ﬁ

%‘EL:?!EWE’JFIEEX o0k FE e = BT
EEHRBURD  SEETEHRE -

S B AT R SR BT R A B R R A
& W E2020F4 A RES AEE M ?ﬁﬁuxrﬂﬁ
BRI ENE G < VB M AS A&

202088 A+ FAPIAY B BRI W 2B R A BB
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£ o -3'?-. 5. — :
Auberge Discovery Bay Hong Kong -
EBMSERE

HOSPITALITY

HONG KONG

The Group's hospitality businesses, comprising hotels and clubs,
operated in adverse conditions: a prolonged period of restricted travel
and tourism across the globe and stringent social distancing measures.
Even though the hotel industry is severely impacted, attributing to the
rising popularity of staycations, Auberge Discovery Bay Hong Kong had
benefitted from successful promotional efforts targeting this emerging
trend.

The Group expects that global travel will resume gradually as the
vaccination rollout gathers pace, and recovery of the industry is
underway.

The LYC completed phase two of its facelift during the Current Year and
opened its newly renovated clubhouse. Membership recruitment is
progressing satisfactorily. The Company holds an optimistic view on the
growth of the yachting industry in the region, as yacht sales in Hong
Kong revealed good growth in 2020 despite the glooming economy.
LYC is generating growing interest from the yachting community.

Discovery Bay Golf Club completed renovating its golf course. With
ongoing travel restrictions, the club enjoyed increased demand for golf
rounds from locals. Concurrently, repeated business closures and social
distancing restrictions inevitably affected the performance of the
Discovery Bay Recreation Club and Club Siena. As always, the clubs’
teams continue to carry out prudent measures according to the
prevailing conditions.

The Group holds a 50% interest in all Discovery Bay's hospitality
businesses.
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The Sukhothai Shanghai
EEEHFBIE

MAINLAND CHINA

With the successful containment of the pandemic in mainland China,
occupancy rates at The Sukhothai Shanghai, The Middle House and The
Middle House Residence swiftly recovered during the Current Year, and
achieved remarkable performance supported by strong local business
and domestic travel demand.

The Group holds a 50% interest in the aforementioned mainland China
hotel businesses.

THAILAND

Performance of The Sukhothai Bangkok was affected by country
lockdown, business closures and social distancing restrictions imposed
by the government to combat the pandemic. During such challenging
times, the hotel employees worked incredibly hard, and their
achievements were recognised with an array of accolades, including
Travel + Leisure's “Top 500 Hotels in the World” and “Top 2020 Fine
Dining in Thailand".

Looking ahead, The Sukhothai Bangkok will continue to build on its
strong presence in the market by revitalising the hotel product and
strengthening its branding and positioning.

Bl A it

hEAMREHERY LR EBER
REANTZF THLERIFEE RS
KR E N BB E B AL R R A FE LR
B BUSR ARKAE -

SEFE Lt B R HBE X E50% s o

RE

FRBNHS2EHN BEHASRSMLE
BE 4t 22 BB B BR i - ¥J The Sukhothai Bangkok Y
XBEXNTE -RAM BEREEHHEAERE
DR & - B FE B & (Travel + Leisure) 5F 4 [ Top 500
Hotels in the World J LA }2 [ Top 2020 Fine Dining in
Thailand] - BB S B I 2 N AR EHEE R
B BK R o

2R % » The Sukhothai Bangkok % & 2= ¥8 B /& &
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HEALTHCARE

Our wholly-owned subsidiary GenRx Holdings Limited ("GenRx") operates
a comprehensive healthcare service network in Hong Kong and Macau.
During the Current Year, the Group acquired the remaining 43% interest
in H&C Dental. The Group has then full control over all its healthcare
units, covering specialist services that focus on chronic disease
management, Chinese medicine and dental care, supported by medical
diagnostic services, and administrates a comprehensive medical network
of over 250 affiliated clinics providing general practitioners, specialists
and physiotherapy services.

During the Current Year, GenRx opened its latest MRI imaging centre in
Tsuen Wan and its third Traditional Chinese Medicine clinic in Central,
further enhancing its services and coverage.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

The Group continued to deliver on its corporate social responsibilities
(“CSR") despite the global pandemic. These unprecedented challenges
prompted the Group to rethink the way it operates and achieves its
stakeholders’” immediate and long-term objectives. Throughout the
Current Year, we expanded the "HKRI All-in” ESG initiative to the group
level, and called on stakeholders to collectively support and maintain a “Go
Flexible, Go Green" approach to drive our transformation into a more
sustainable, resilient, innovative and responsive organisation.

In anticipation of the growing need for sustainability in the post-
pandemic world, we engaged stakeholders to understand, prioritise and
address their needs during and after times of crisis. Significantly, the
Group implemented its first long-term sustainability targets in line with
the United Nations' Sustainable Development Goals, which we aim to
achieve by 2030. Full disclosure of our sustainability vision, initiatives and
performance are illustrated in our sixth standalone ESG Report. Interested
stakeholders may refer to our online ESG Report for more details.
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HKRI's continuous improvements in ESG reporting and the Group's
growing contributions to the well-being of society and the environment
were recognised with the World Green Organization’s “Sustainable
Business Award 2020" and Alaya Consulting’s “Best ESG Report (Small
Cap) - Commendation”. Another notable accolade was The Hong Kong
Council of Social Service's “15 Years Plus Caring Company” logo.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The pandemic has heightened awareness of biodiversity loss, climate
change and pollution, and reinforced our long-standing approach to
protecting natural resources and achieving balanced growth. For
example, the Group aspires to achieve a higher green building standard
in our property development business. The “Sponge City” concept has
now been widely adopted in our residential projects in mainland China
to embed climate resilience.

The significant surge of waste resulting from pandemic is another
concern. Therefore, the Group increased its waste management efforts
by expanding recycling services and launching related campaigns. A
notable highlight is “The Sustainability Programme”, launched by the
hospitality segment, which aims to cut plastic consumption, invest in
sustainably sourced food and drinks, reduce the Group's carbon
footprint, and boost the sustainability of our internal and front-of-house
activities. To run the business in a sustainable manner, we are developing
appropriate internal Group-level environmental and climate change
policies.

EEAXFEBRERE HERERRE A
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COMMUNITY SUPPORT

The Group remains steadfast in its support of vulnerable communities,
especially in these challenging times. The Group continued its "All-in”
initiative through the Current Year to give back to the community by
shifting events online and collaborating with NGOs from Hong Kong,
mainland China and Thailand. During the Current Year, the Group's
donations and sponsorships to various charities, schools and welfare
organisations totalled HKS$3.4 million. These efforts support
underprivileged groups and promote recycling.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group employed a total of 1,624 people, as of 31 March 2021,
Employee safety and health continue to be our key focus, and the
Company places a strong emphasis on employee well-being, and strives
to maintain a safe and healthy working environment to that end.

To cope with the challenging COVID-19 conditions, additional resources
and measures were deployed to ensure adequate protective gear was
available and workplaces were hygienic. To enhance safety awareness,
the Group optimised its Corporate Occupational Safety and Health Policy
to provide comprehensive occupational safety and health guidance to
its various business units.
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CUSTOMERS

The Group attaches the utmost importance to customer satisfaction, so
multiple channels and methods have been developed to improve the
quality of our products and services. We are dedicated to ensuring the
quality and safety of our properties during bidding and construction
phases. After a property is leased out, HKRI maintains close relationships
with our tenants and listen to their feedback. Providing the best services
to customers is a standard the Group upholds in its hospitality, property
management, transportation and healthcare segments. As part of this
commitment, the Group has implemented a set of rigorous control
measures to safeguard customers’ interests.

SUPPLIERS

Echoing our commitment to operating in a socially and environmentally
responsible manner, we also place emphasis on the sustainability of our
supply chain. The Group selects its suppliers according to prudent
guidelines stipulated in our Tender and Procurement Policies. At the same
time, a new Supplier Code of Conduct is in place to convey our
expectations to suppliers in terms of business ethics, labour and human
rights, and environmental performance.

The Group prefers suppliers that use green, non-hazardous and
recyclable materials and adhere to paperless operations. Suppliers’
efforts to reduce their carbon footprint in terms of transportation are
also encouraged.
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Board of Directors
EEg

Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor
B TE

Executive Chairman 31T £ /&

Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor s, 15, aged 71, was appointed as
Executive Director and Chairman of the Company with effect from 1989
and 25 November 2020 respectively. He was the Managing Director and
the Deputy Chairman of the Company until his appointment as
Chairman. Mr CHA is also a member of the Corporate Governance
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee and a director of some subsidiaries of the Company. He has
over 40 years extensive experience in real estate development and
textile manufacturing. Mr CHA is a non-executive director (“NED") of
Mingly Corporation (“Mingly”, a substantial shareholder of the Company
within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance
(“SFO") and a subsidiary of CCM Turst (Cayman) Limited (“CCM Trust")).
He ceased as an independent non-executive director (“INED") of SOHO
China Limited ("SOHO China") and alternate INED of New World
Development Company Limited (“NWD") with effect from 17 August
2018 and 6 November 2020 (PST) respectively. SOHO China and NWD
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Mr CHA is the chairman of each of the Hong Kong-Japan
Business Co-operation Committee of Hong Kong Trade Development
Council and Hong Kong Arts Festival Society Limited. He is also a
governor of the China-United States Exchange Foundation, a member of
the board of trustees of The Better Hong Kong Foundation and trustee
of Sang Ma Trust Fund (“Sang Ma"). Mr CHA is a sibling to Ms Madeline
WONG and Mr Johnson CHA.
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Ms WONG CHA May Lung Madeline
FEXELL

Non-executive Deputy Chairman JEH1T &I £ /&

Ms WONG CHA May Lung Madeline, aged 81, was
appointed as Non-executive Deputy Chairman of the Company with
effect from 25 November 2020. She joined the Board in 1989 and was
re-designated as Non-executive Director of the Company in December
2004. Ms WONG is also the chairman of the Corporate Governance
Committee, a member of the Nomination Committee and a director of
some subsidiaries of the Company. She is the executive chairman of
Mingly and also a director of a number of private companies in Hong
Kong and overseas, including CCM Trust and LBJ Regents (PTC) Limited
(“LBJ Regents"), both are substantial shareholders of the Company within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO and together whose interests in the
Company represent the substantial interests of the Cha Family in the
Company. Ms WONG is the chairman and a trustee of Sang Ma. She is a
sibling to Mr Victor CHA and Mr Johnson CHA.

Mr TANG Moon Wah
BomE T &

Managing Director EE 54 K18

Mr TANG Moon Wah ;, (Arch Studies), BArch, aged 67, was
appointed as the Managing Director of the Company with effect from 25
November 2020. He was appointed as Executive Director of the
Company in December 2004 and is also a director of some subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr TANG has been serving in the Group since 1985 and
has over 40 years extensive experience in property development. He is a
fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Architects and has been
an Authorised Person and Registered Architect since 1982 and 1991
respectively.
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Board of Directors

EEXg

Mr CHEUNG Ho Koon
REETHE

Executive Director #|1TE5

Mr CHEUNG Ho Koon BA (Arch Studies), BArch, aged 58, was
appointed Executive Director in February 2021. He joined the Group in
1996 and currently serves as Head of Projects and Country Head of
Thailand, leading the Group's projects team and overseeing the daily
operation and property development in Thailand. Mr CHEUNG is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Before joining the Group,
he worked in various architectural and property developers and has over
30 years extensive experience in project management on property
development. Mr CHEUNG graduated from the University of Hong Kong
in 1989 with an honors degree both in Bachelor of Architectural Studies
and Bachelor of Architecture. He is a member of Hong Kong Institute of
Architects and has been the Authorised Person since 1991.

Ms NGAN Man Ying
BAM R T

Executive Director #1TE=5

Ms NGAN Man Ying z: @usiness, reca cra, aged 55, was
appointed Executive Director in February 2021. She joined the Group in
2018 and currently serves as Head of Group Finance in leading the
Group finance and treasury functions as well as overseeing the Group's
residential property management, transportation services, information
technology, corporate communication and legal functions. Ms NGAN is
also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Before joining the
Group, she had held several senior positions in New World group and an
international accounting firm. Ms NGAN has over 33 years extensive
experience in finance function and in property development sector. She
holds a Bachelor Degree in Business from the University of Southern
Queensland and is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the United
Kingdom ("ACCA").
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The Honourable
Ronald Joseph ARCULLI
EEEELE

Non-executive Director JEH{TE==H

The Honourable Ronald Joseph ARCULLI 1, oo,
GBS, OBE, Jp, aged 82, joined the Board in 1989 and was re-designated as
Non-executive Director in June 2005. He is a senior partner of King &
Wood Mallesons. Mr ARCULLI is a NED of Sino Hotels (Holdings) Limited,
Sino Land Company Limited, Tsim Sha Tsui Properties Limited, HK
Electric Investments Manager Limited (as trustee-manager of HK Electric
Investments) and HK Electric Investments Limited. He ceased as an INED
of Hang Lung Properties Limited with effect from 30 April 2021. Save for
HK Electric Investments Manager Limited, all the aforesaid companies
are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr ARCULLI holds directorships in
other public and private companies in Hong Kong and overseas. He is
now the chairman of FWD Group, an honorary fellow of Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute and vice patron and former directors
committee member of The Community Chest of Hong Kong. Mr
ARCULLI is also a board member and the vice-chairman of the board of
The West Kowloon Cultural District Authority and chairs its executive
committee and development committee as well as being a member of
its investment committee and remuneration committee.
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Board of Directors

EEXg

Mr CHA Mou Daid Johnson
BERE A

Non-executive Director JEF 1T E =

Mr CHA Mou Daid Johnson Bs, MBA, aged 69, joined the
Board in 1989 and was re-designated as Non-executive Director in
December 2004. He is also a director of some subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr CHA has over 40 years extensive experience in venture
capital and investment management and currently the chairman of CM.
Capital Advisors (HK) Limited, non-executive chairman of Hanison
Construction Holdings Limited (“Hanison”) and a NED of Mingly and
Million Hope Industries Holdings Limited (“Million Hope"). He ceased as a
NED of China International Capital Corporation Limited (“CICCL") with
effect from 28 February 2020. Hanison, Million Hope and CICCL are listed
on the Stock Exchange. Mr CHA is also an INED of Shanghai Commercial
Bank Limited and a director of a number of other companies in Hong
Kong and overseas including LBJ Regents. He is a member in non-profit
organisations including Qiu Shi Science & Technologies Foundation and
Moral Education Concern Group. Mr CHA is also a council member and a
member of the finance committee of The Hong Kong University of
Science & Technology. He is a sibling to Ms Madeline WONG and Mr
Victor CHA.

Mr CHEUNG Wing Lam Linus
R K R B E

Independent Non-executive Director ¥ IEHITESE

Mr CHEUNG Wing Lam Linus sss », aged 73, joined the
Board in January 2006 and was re-designated as Independent
Non-executive Director in March 2012. He is also the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company. Mr CHEUNG is an INED of China Unicom (Hong Kong) Limited
which is listed on the Stock Exchange. He ceased as the board of
directors of Sotheby's with effect from 3 October 2019 due to its
privatization and delisted from the New York Stock Exchange on the
same day. Mr CHEUNG was also the chief executive of Hong Kong
Telecommunications Limited from 1994 to 2000, deputy chairman of
PCCW Limited from August 2000 to February 2004 and INED of Taikang
Life Insurance Co. Ltd. from 2005 to 2011.
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Mr Fan Hung Ling Henry
/B/ % @Aflﬁ’_:li

Independent Non-executive Director %\ FEHTES

Mr FAN Hung Ling Henry g 15 55 s, aged 73, was
appointed Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in
November 2017. He is also the chairman of the Nomination Committee,
a member of the Remuneration Committee and the Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company. Mr FAN has over 30 years
experience in business management. He is currently an INED of Sun
Hung Kai Properties Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange
and the managing director of Hong Kong Glory Limited, a family
investment company. Mr FAN also served as a director and then
managing director of CITIC Pacific Limited (now known as CITIC Limited)
from 1990 and 1992 respectively to 2009 and the deputy chairman of
Cathay Pacific Airways Limited from 1997 to 2009. He has a long record
of public services in the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
("HKSAR") and is currently the chairman of the Hospital Authority and
West Kowloon Cultural District Foundation Limited, a member of the
Chief Executive’s Council of Advisers on Innovation and Strategic
Development, a member of the board of the Financial Services
Development Council and the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority.
Mr FAN was also a non-official member of the Executive Council of Hong
Kong, chairman of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority,
NED of Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong (“SFC") and
INED of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited ("HKEC"). He is an
Attorney-at-Law in the State of California, US.A. and Barrister-at-Law in
Hong Kong and England and Wales.
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Board of Directors

EEXg

Ms HO Pak Ching Loretta
fAmEZL

Independent Non-executive Director ¥ JEH{TES

Ms HO Pak Ching Loretta ro (eiies, aged 74, was
re-designated as Independent Non-executive Director with effect from
April 2010. Prior to her re-designation, she was appointed as Executive
Director in 1994 and redesignated as Non-executive Director in April
2008 upon her retirement from all executive roles in the Group. Ms HO is
also a member of both the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company. She is a retired member of the Chartered
Institute of Housing Asian Pacific Branch and has over 45 years extensive
experience in property development, property investment and
management.

Ms Barbara SHIU
MEBLZ T

Independent Non-executive Director % IEH1TESE

Ms Barbara SHIU BSc, MBA, aged 65, was appointed Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in April 2021. She is also a
member of the Audit Committee of the Company. Ms SHIU has over 35
years experience in financial services and had held several senior
positions in various financial institutions including the Bank of China
group. She was the general manager of Bank of China (Hong Kong)
Limited in charge of the operational risk and compliance department
when she retired in 2014. Ms SHIU is currently a NED of Livi Bank Limited
and Livi Holdings Limited and chairs the risk committees of both
companies. She also has a long record of public services in the HKSAR
and is active in non-profit making organisations. Ms SHIU is currently a
member of risk management committee of HKEC. She was also the
chairman of Hong Kong Securities Institute, a director of Hong Kong
Deposit Protection Board and Financial Dispute Resolution Centre, a
member of the International Advisory committee of China Securities
Regulatory Commission as well as a member of the Product Advisory
Committee and Investor Education Advisory Committee of SFC. Ms SHIU
obtained a Bachelor honors degree in Science and a Master degree in
Business Administration, both from University of Toronto.
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Mr TANG Kwai Chang
WEELE
Independent Non-executive Director M FEHTES

Mr TANG Kwai Chang Fcch, FepA, aged 68, was appointed
Independent Non-executive Director in September 2014. He is also the
chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee of the Company.
Mr TANG was a partner of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) with
extensive experience in auditing and audit risk management, the vice
chairman of Deloitte China and board member of Deloitte Global when
he retired in May 2013. He is currently an INED of Bank of
Communications (Hong Kong) Limited, Baosteel Resources Company
Limited and Baosteel Resources International Company Limited
(subsidiaries of China Baowu Steel Group Corporation Limited), Tsit Wing
International Holdings Limited (“Tsit Wing”) and Foxconn Interconnect
Technology Limited (which carries on business in Hong Kong as FIT Hon
Teng Limited (“FIT")). Both Tsit Wing and FIT are listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr TANG is a fellow member of both ACCA and HKICPA. He is
also currently a member of the disciplinary panel of the HKICPA and a
convenor of Financial Reporting Review Panel of the Financial Reporting
Council.
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Directors’ Report
EEEHRE

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of HKR International Limited (the
“Company”) announces the audited final results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are set
out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 213 to
226.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 98.

The Board has recommended the declaration of a final dividend of HK5
cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: HK7 cents) to
the shareholders whose names appear on the registers of members of
the Company on 3 September 2021. The proposed final dividend will be
paid on 20 September 2021 following approval at the 2021 annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on 25 August 2021 (the “2021
AGM"). The proposed final dividend together with the interim dividend
of HK4 cents per share for the six months ended 30 September 2020
makes up a total dividend of HK9 cents per share for the year ended 31
March 2021 (2020: HK12 cents).

CLOSURE OF REGISTERS OF MEMBERS

The main and branch registers of members of the Company will be
closed from 20 to 25 August 2021 (both days inclusive) and from 1 to 3
September 2021 (both days inclusive) for the 2021 AGM and the final
dividend respectively. During the periods, no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2021 AGM,
and entitled for the proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March
2021, all properly completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 19
August and 31 August 2021 respectively. The notice of the 2021 AGM
will be published on the websites of the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and despatched
to the shareholders of the Company in due course.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Review of the Group’s business and analysis of the Group's performance
using financial key performance indicators during the year, a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group and an
indication of the likely future development of the Group'’s business are
provided in the sections of this annual report headed “Chairman’s
Statement” (on pages 8 to 15), "Management Discussion and Analysis” (on
pages 16 to 31), “Directors’ Report” (on pages 40 to 59), “Financial
Highlights” (on page 83), “Financial Review” (on pages 84 to 88), "Five-year
Financial Summary” (on page 231) and in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements. For review of the development, performance or
position of the Group's business, the Group’s environmental policies and
performance, compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group and understanding of the
Group's key relationships with its employees, customers and suppliers
and others that have a significant impact on the Group, please see
sections of this annual report headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” (on pages 16 to 31), “Directors’ Report” (on pages 40 to 59) and
"Corporate Governance Report” (on pages 60 to 82) as well as the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company which is
published online at the same time of this annual report.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the Company has
complied with the requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") and the applicable companies laws.
Details of the Company’s compliance with the code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report
contained in the Listing Rules are provided in the “Corporate Governance
Report” on pages 60 to 82.

The Group has set up proper procedures to ensure adherence to the
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the
Group in conduct of its business, including but not limited to the
Residential Properties (First-hand Sales) Ordinance, Competition
Ordinance, Buildings Ordinance, Hotel and Guesthouse Accommodation
Ordinance, Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance, Minimum Wage
Ordinance, Employment Ordinance, Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance, Regulations on Administration of Development and
Operation of Urban Real Estate, Regulations on Administration of
Qualification of Real Estate Development Enterprises and Regulatory
Measures on the Sale of Commercial Houses. Any new enactment of or
changes in the relevant laws and regulations would be communicated
to the relevant departments and staff to ensure compliance. Reminders
on compliance would also be sent out where necessary. During the year
under review, there were no recorded cases of non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations regarding the environment, labour
standards, occupational health and safety, anti-corruption or data privacy
in Hong Kong and overseas.
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RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's businesses, financial conditions, results of operations and
growth prospects may be affected by risks and uncertainties directly or
indirectly pertaining to the Group'’s businesses. The risk factors set out
below are those that could result in the Group businesses, financial
conditions, results of operations or growth prospects differing materially
from expected or historical results. Such factors are by no means
exhaustive or comprehensive, and there may be other risks in addition to
those shown below which are not known to the Group or which may
not be material now but could turn out to be very material in the future.
In addition, this annual report does not constitute a recommendation or
advice to invest in the securities of the Company and investors are
advised to make their own judgment or consult their own investment
advisors before making any investment in the securities of the Company.

A) OUTBREAK OF COVID-19 PANDEMIC

The outbreak of novel coronavirus disease (COVID-19) since January
2020 has posed significant adverse impact on global economy.
Governments all over the world, including places of businesses at which
the Group operates, have imposed increasingly stringent restrictions,
such as lockdowns, borders controls, travel restrictions and other social
distancing measures, to contain the spread of the disease. The Group's
operations and financial performance were inevitably affected during
the year as a result of the community standstill, disruption of business
activities, and weakened sentiment in consumption and tourism related
sectors. Although various COVID-19 vaccines have been developed,
large scale vaccination programmes take time to implement while this
highly infectious disease is still evolving with the emergence of new
COVID-19 variants which are potentially much more contagious. The
long-term adverse impact of the pandemic to the Group’s business
remains uncertain as duration and severity of the pandemic, as well as
the corresponding response measures to be imposed by the authorities,
are factors that are hardly be accurately predicted by the Group. To
mitigate the risks, the Group will continue to closely monitor the
pandemic development and react timely and proactively to the impact
of the same on its operations and performance, including but not limited
to the implementation of further cost control measures and launching
more creative campaigns to enhance the competitiveness of its retail
portfolio and hotel staycation offers. In addition, the Company will
continue to use its best endeavours to protect the well-being of its
employees, including regular disinfection in the workplace, continuous
provision of anti-pandemic supplies and reminders of healthy living,
increasing utilisation of virtual meetings and adopting appropriate
flexible working arrangements while ensuring its operations is
maintained at normal level.
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B) RISKS PERTAINING TO PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT
AND INVESTMENT

Property development and investment are the Group's core businesses,
primarily in Hong Kong, mainland China, Thailand and Japan. There exist
a number of factors which could affect the property market in these
regions, including among other things, changes in the economic,
political and legal environment, as well as social issues like the recent
large-scale outbreak of pandemic disease. These inherent risks may affect
the Group's investment strategy, business model and the performance
of the Group’s overall financial results and positions. To mitigate the risks,
the Group actively assesses overall economic, social, political, legal, and
property market developments as well as their changes in these regions
and continue to review and evaluate its investment strategy to ensure
the Group responds to the market changes promptly and appropriately.
The Group will also stay alert to market needs and continuously upkeep
the quality of its investment properties, and build up a diversified and
high-quality tenant-mix in order to preserve its competitiveness. For
each potential project, detailed feasibility and stress test with regard to
all aspects will be carried out before making any commitment and will
also share such risk with potential joint venture partner, if considered
appropriate.

C) RISKS PERTAINING TO OPERATIONS OF THE GROUP

The Group's operations are subject to a number of risk factors distinctive
to the operation of property development and investment, hospitality,
services provided and healthcare business. For instance, default on the
part of contractors or sub-contractors, buyers and tenants; or
inadequacies or failures of internal processes and systems; or other
external factors such as the outbreak of pandemic disease, rising
construction cost, increasing competition and seasonality. In addition,
accidents which may happen despite policies and procedures are set up
for their prevention, can lead to financial loss, litigation, damage of
reputation and may cause certain degree of negative impact on the
results of the operations. To mitigate the relevant risks, the Group
regularly reviews its existing policies and procedures to ensure their
effectiveness and adequacy, imposes straight guidelines on carefully
selecting and engaging vendors, closely monitors the project time frame
and status, keeps on assessing the market condition and changes in
order to react with appropriate business strategies, such as try to
increase the local market shares in its hotel operation by launching
attractive package as well as continuously improves its service quality
and facilities to ensure its competitiveness. The Group has also arranged
adequate insurance coverage on business interruption or disaster that
may result in loss of income.
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D) FINANCIAL RISKS

The major financial instruments of the Group include equity instruments
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, investments in debt instruments
measured at amortised cost, trade receivables, amounts due from
associates, loans to joint ventures, amounts due from joint ventures,
bank balances and cash, other financial assets, trade payables, deposits
received and other financial liabilities, bank and other loans and other
liabilities. The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. Details of these financial instruments and the policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out in note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 200 to 212.

E) HUMAN RESOURCES RISKS

The Group's success is dependent upon its ability to attract, train, retain
and motivate highly skilled and qualified staff members in every aspect.
The loss of key personnel, or the inability to find additional qualified
personnel, could materially and adversely affect the Group’s prospects
and results of operations. To mitigate such uncertainty, succession
planning is adopted to identify successors for key management positions
and continuously provide coaching and training, both in-house and
external, for talent development. The Group also regularly reviews its
compensation and benefit packages to ensure such packages are in line
with the market as well as creates a bonding culture to strengthen the
sense of belongings of staff members.

F) CYBER-ATTACKS RISKS

Corporate cyber-attacks have increased in frequency, scale and severity
in recent years. Cyber-attacks may cause loss of data, leakage of
confidential information including personal information of customers
and employees, equipment failure and also disruptions to the Group's or
its partners’ operation for a significant period of time. The adverse impact
of cyber-attacks may include reputation damage, loss of investors'
confidence, loss of revenue from business interruption and resulting
claims, all of which could be substantial. To mitigate the risk of cyber-
attacks on the Group, external cyber security consultant has been
engaged to conduct cyber security assessment and penetration tests on
a regular basis. Information technology orientation sessions and disaster
recovery drills are regularly conducted. Firewall, email filtering and web
content filtering have been adopted and anti-virus programs on servers
and computers have been installed. In addition, regular user-education
on cyber security risks is maintained through internal communication.
All these measures could prevent the attacks from hackers and reduce
cyber security risks.
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G) COMPLIANCE RISKS

Whilst the Group has a diversified portfolio of business operations across
Hong Kong, mainland China and other key cities in Asia, there may be a
risk associated with the failure to anticipate the trend of regulatory
changes on compliance with the relevant requirements of the local laws
or regulations. To mitigate the risks, the Group continually monitors
changes in relevant local laws and regulations, actively assesses the
effect of relevant developments and seeks for legal advice whenever
necessary to ensure that the relevant requirements are properly
complied with in an effective manner.

Risk management is closely linked to the Group's internal control
framework. Key controls for mitigating high risks identified in the risk
management process are subject to independent review by the Internal
Audit Department. During the year under review, the Audit Committee,
on behalf of the Board, has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’'s risk
management and internal control systems. Details of the aforesaid
review of the effectiveness are disclosed in the “Corporate Governance
Report” on pages 60 to 82.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements on page 190.

DIRECTORS

During the financial year ended 31 March 2021, Mr Payson CHA, the
Company’s late Chairman, passed away on 6 November 2020 (PST) as
well as Mr CHEUNG Ho Koon and Ms NGAN Man Ying were appointed as
the Executive Directors (“ED(s)") of the Company with effect from 1
February 2021. In addition, Mr Abraham CHUNG resigned as ED and Ms
Barbara SHIU was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
(“INED") of the Company both with effect from 1 April 2021. The Directors
as at the date of this annual report are those set out on pages 32 to 39 of
this annual report.
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In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association (the “Articles”),
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) and Corporate
Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, Mr
Victor CHA, Mr CHEUNG Ho Koon, Ms NGAN Man Ying, Mr Johnson CHA,
Mr Henry FAN, Ms Loretta HO and Ms Barbara SHIU will retire by rotation
at the 2021 AGM. All the retiring Directors, being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election at the 2021 AGM. Other remaining Directors
will continue in office. None of the Directors offering themselves for re-
election at the 2021 AGM has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation) and all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGMs of the
Company in accordance with the Articles. The rotation clause sets up a
mechanism to ensure that all Directors shall retire at least once every
three years.

Each of the INEDs of the Company has confirmed his/her independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all INEDs of the Company meet the independence guidelines set
out in the Listing Rules and are independent accordingly.

Assisted by heads of functional units, the EDs of the Company have the
direct responsibilities for the business and operations of the Group and
hence the EDs of the Company are regarded as the Company’s senior
management. Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages
32 to 39 of this annual report. Details of the Directors’ emoluments are
also provided under note 12 to the consolidated financial statements on
pages 157 and 158

PERMITTED INDEMNITY AND DIRECTORS
AND OFFICERS LIABILITY INSURANCE

The Articles provides that every Director is entitled to be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she
may sustain or incur in carrying out his/her duties or otherwise in relation
thereto. Directors and Officers Liability Insurance Policy is in place to
protect the Directors against potential costs and liabilities arising from
claims brought against the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2021, the interests or short positions of the Directors and
their respective associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules and adopted by the Company
were as follows:
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A) LONG POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING A) RAARESREE0.25E TR 7%

SHARES OF THE COMPANY OF HK$0.25 EACH EHEERGOZHE
Number o‘f ordinary share Approximate
HERHA percentage of
Other/ issued share
Personal Family  Corporate Underlying capital
Name of director ~ Capacity interests interests interests interests Total 158 BTHRAK
ESEB 54 BAER FkEx  AFER Hi/EEeEs By 2BHNBEI
Victor CHA Beneficial owner and beneficiary of 1,254,278 - - 791,896,895 793,151,173 5340
BB discretionary trusts
ERBAARBBERAXEA
Johnson CHA Beneficiary of discretionary trusts - - - 790,469,647" 790,469,647 5322
ERE HEEAXEA
Madeline WONG Founderand/or beneficiary of - - - 789,684,882% 789,684,882 5317
TExE discretionary trusts
HEERELAR/FIXGEA
Ronald ARCULLI Beneficiary of a trust 265,619 - - - 265619 002
BERE ERXaEA
Abraham CHUNG® Beneficia\ owner 346,592 - - - 346,592 002
ﬁ e ;EL ml % ﬁ }\
LorettaHO Beneﬁcia\ owner 94,160 - - - 94,160 001
ERi==1 ERBEAA
TANG Moon Wah Beneficial owner 148,720 - - - 148,720 001
HmE ERBEAA

! The shares belong to certain but not identical discretionary trusts of which CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited (‘CCM Trust”) and LBJ Regents (PTC) Limited (“LBJ
Regents”) are the corporate trustees and the relevant Directors are among the members of the classes of discretionary beneficiaries.

O ZEBRMBENE T TRBIEERE & B B ACOMTrust (Cayman) Limited ([ CCM Trust ) & LBJ Regents (PTC) Limited ([ LBJ Regents |) 2 3% B 5
HARE MEBEFTERBMBEX@A

Such long position includes unlisted physically settled derivative interests in 74,265,090 shares, which arise from an option agreement dated
31 December 2019 entered into by Soar Boom Limited (“Soar Boom”) for a right or an obligation to take 74,265,090 shares with an exercise period from
31 December 2019 to 30 September 2020 (which was extended to 30 September 2021 and then further extended to 31 March 2022) at a price
depending on the market price on the date of exercising such option (the “Option Agreement”). Soar Boom is a company wholly-owned by Mingly
Corporation (“Mingly”), and CCM Trust is interested in 87.5% equity interest in Mingly.

ORI R BIETA260500 M ZE LT ITETREED R #R > ZERHNDEEFXBERAR(FXKDR2019F12A4318F
U2 REREGFE  ABRBEBRIE7426500 8 B 2 AL ER - TEPA2019F12A31BE2020F9A30R (ELEKRE202169A
30 RE—FLERF202F3831H) REERIROTEEUREREO T HERME(REREBZED BXRBENEE
TRAERLDB(END2EREBZ AT - MCCMTrust#EH & 11 875% MR 2 % o

® 635,627,031 shares belong to certain but not identical discretionary trusts of which CCM Trust and LBJ Regents are the corporate trustees and the
Director is among the members of the classes of discretionary beneficiaries.

635627031 IR BRE TTARMIBEARAZBCCIMTrust X LBJRegents ZEBRAAFE  MZEZTBRBBEIEA ©

* The Director is, under two separate discretionary trusts of which CCM Trust and LBJ Regents are the corporate trustees, the founder and member of the
classes of discretionary beneficiaries thereof. Such trusts are deemed to be interested in 154,057,851 shares in aggregate, which include the interests
arising from a right or an obligation to take 74,265,090 shares by Soar Boom pursuant to the Option Agreement.

Y REERBARCIMTust LB Regents Z EE X FEAFTF 2 METRABMBEFENEIZARETHRERH A %1 FERAR R YR
BE 154057851 BR &0 2 M5 - B B IEF IR IR R BB RE 1 2 7R 74,265,090 AR AR 19 2 #E I ok 3 75 AT iz#&

Mr Abraham CHUNG resigned as a director of the Company with effect from 1 April 2021.
SO BOHEEB021F4RAREERARAAERTRS -
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B) SHARE OPTIONS

Directors have been granted share options of the Company, details of
which are set out in the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme”
below.

Save as disclosed above and for certain Directors holding non-beneficial
interests in the share capital of some of the subsidiaries of the Company
as the nominee shareholders, as at 31 March 2021, none of the Directors
or their respective associates had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of the SFO) as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted its share option scheme, namely 2011
Scheme and the listing status of the shares issued (if any) under this
scheme was granted by the Stock Exchange. Particulars of the 2011
Scheme as required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules are set out
below:

A) PURPOSE

To provide the participants who have been granted share options to
subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company with the opportunity to
acquire proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage the
participants to work towards enhancing the value of the Company and
its shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

B) PARTICIPANTS

All Directors, full-time employees and any consultants (employed on a
contract basis) of the Company, its subsidiaries and/or its associated
companies are eligible to participate in the 2011 Scheme.

C) MAXIMUM NUMBER OF SHARES AVAILABLE FOR ISSUE

A maximum number of 135,027,436 shares of the Company may be
issued upon exercise of all share options granted or to be granted under
the 2011 Scheme.
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D) MAXIMUM ENTITLEMENT OF EACH PARTICIPANT

The total number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the share options granted and to be granted to each
participant (including both exercised and unexercised share options)
under the 2011 Scheme or any other share option scheme (if any)
adopted by the Company in any 12-month period must not exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue unless otherwise approved by the
shareholders of the Company.

Where any grant of share options to a substantial shareholder or an INED
of the Company, or any of their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules), would result in the shares of the Company issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all share options already granted and to be
granted to such person in any 12-month period up to and including the
date of the grant:

- representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares of the Company
inissue; and

- having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the
shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant in excess of HK$5.0 million,

such grant of share options shall be subject to prior approval of the
shareholders of the Company who are not connected persons of the
Company as defined in the Listing Rules.

E) PERIOD WITHIN WHICH THE SHARES MUST BE
TAKEN UP UNDER A SHARE OPTION

A share option must be exercised within 10 years from the date on
which it is granted or such shorter period as the Board (or the relevant
committee thereof) may specify at the time of grant.

F) MINIMUM PERIOD AND REQUIREMENT, IF ANY,
FOR WHICH A SHARE OPTION MUST BE HELD BEFORE IT
CAN BE EXERCISED

At the time of the grant of a share option, the Board (or the relevant
committee thereof) must specify the minimum period(s), if any, for
which a share option must be held before it can be exercised.

G) PERIOD OPEN FOR ACCEPTANCE OF A SHARE
OPTION AND AMOUNT PAYABLE UPON ACCEPTANCE

The offer of the grant of a share option (of which the date of grant must
be a business day of the Stock Exchange) must be accepted within 14
days from the date on which the offer letter is delivered to the
participant and a consideration of HKS1 must be paid upon acceptance.
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H) BASIS OF DETERMINING THE SUBSCRIPTION PRICE
OF A SHARE OPTION

The subscription price of a share option shall be no less than the higher
of:

- the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant;

- the average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated
in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days of the Stock Exchange immediately preceding the date of
grant; and

- the nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of grant.

1)  REMAINING LIFE

The 2011 Scheme has a life of 10 years and will expire on 7 September
2021 unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the terms of the
2011 Scheme.

DETAILS OF SHARE OPTIONS GRANTED AND
AVAILABLE FOR GRANT

The total number of shares in the Company available for grant of share
options under the 2011 Scheme is 135,027,436 shares which represents
10% of the issued share capital of the Company at the date of adoption
of the 2011 Scheme (i.e. 8 September 2011). During the financial year
ended 31 March 2021, 220,000 share options were lapsed and no share
option was granted, exercised or cancelled in accordance with the terms
of the 2011 Scheme. Details of the movement of share options during
the year and the outstanding share options as at 31 March 2021 under
the 2011 Scheme were as follows:
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Number of share option

Exercise price BHMRERE

pershare  Balanceasat Lapsed  Balanceasat
Name or Category of (HKS) 1April 2020 during  31March 2021
participant BRTHEE R20205F theyear R2021 5
SHREKZIER Date of grant®”’ =i (Brm) 4B1B&& FR&¥M 3A31B&®
Victor CHA 28 February 2017 2017F2A28H 3.845 3,190,000 - 3,190,000
B 12 March 2018 201853 A 128 4373 5,500,000 - 5,500,000
Abraham CHUNG® 28 February 2017 201742 A 288 3845 2,200,000 - 2,200,000
ELMm° 12 March 2018 20183/ 128 4373 3,300,000 - 3,300,000
TANG Moon Wah 28 February 2017 2017%2A 288 3845 2,200,000 - 2,200,000
Bz 12 March 2018 2018F3A12H 4373 3,300,000 - 3,300,000
CHEUNG Ho Koor® 12 March 2018 20183 A 128 4373 440,000 - 440,000
REB
Johnson CHA 28 February 2017 2017924288 3.845 1,210,000 - 1,210,000
aE 12 March 2018 2018F3 A 128 4373 1,760,000 - 1,760,000
Madeline WONG 28 February 2017 2017%2A28H 3845 1210,000 - 1,210,000
IEXER 12 March 2018 2018F3A12H 4373 1,760,000 - 1,760,000
Ronald ARCULLI 28 February 2017 201752 A 288 3845 1210,000 - 1,210,000
EERE 12 March 2018 201853 A 128 4373 1,760,000 - 1,760,000
Loretta HO 28 February 2017 201792 A 288 3845 770,000 - 770,000
BEiEE 12 March 2018 20183 A 128 4373 880,000 - 880,000
Linus CHEUNG 28 February 2017 20172 A 288 3845 550,000 - 550,000
KK 12 March 2018 2018351208 4373 880,000 - 880,000
TANG Kwai Chang 28 February 2017 201792 A 28H 3845 220,000 - 220,000
BEY 12 March 2018 20183 A 128 4373 880,000 - 880,000
Ex-directors’ 28 February 2017 2017924280 3.845 4,400,000 - 4,400,000
BEE 12 March 2018 2018F3 A 128 4373 6,380,000 - 6,380,000
Employees of the Group
SEZEE 12 March 2018 2018F3H12H 4373 1,100,000 220,000 880,000
Total &5t 45,100,000 - 44,880,000

Share options granted on 12 March 2018 are exercisable during the period from 12 March 2018 to 11 March 2028.

° R2017F 2B 28 B R Z RN ERRE T A 201742 28 B £ 202742 A 27 B EIBM N TTIE ©
R2018FE3 12 BT Z I D HAE R R 201843 A 12 B 22028453 A 11 H HiREI ATTfE -

TOBODBERSELAHBRE -

The share options vested immediately on the respective dates of grant.

COREBAER20DNF2AIHEZTAARRIES -

Mr CHEUNG Ho Koon was appointed as a director of the Company with effect from 1 February 2021.

Share options granted on 28 February 2017 are exercisable during the period from 28 February 2017 to 27 February 2027.

Including a director resigned with effect from 31 March 2018 and the late Mr Payson CHA, whose personal representative(s) shall be entitled within a

period of 12 months from the date of his death (6 November 2020 (PST)) to exercise his 8,690,000 share options in accordance with the 2011 Scheme.
S BE-ER08FIANARINESTROCREMBESE - RIF20NFFAE SRBALZMAREBATRE I HRZ B (BIAF

FEIRAERF 20206 11 A6 B) a2 1218 B B AT {E % 5 B 2 8,690,000173 B% 15 EA 4 -
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the heading “Share Option Scheme” above, at
no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

The interests of the Directors, who in office during the year and remain
as at 31 March 2021, in businesses which competed or were likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group
as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules are as follows:

a) Mr Ronald ARCULLIis an INED of Hang Lung Properties Limited ("HLP")
(ceased with effect from 30 April 2021) and also non-executive director
(“NED") of Sino Hotels (Holdings) Limited (“SHH"), Sino Land Company
Limited (“SLC") and Tsim Sha Tsui Properties Limited (“TSTP"). The
businesses of HLP, SHH, SLC and TSTP involve at least some of property
investment, property development, property management and hotel
management and ownership. HLP, SHH, SLC and TSTP are all listed on
the Stock Exchange.

b)  Mr Victor CHA is an alternate INED of New World Development
Company Limited (“NWD") until 6 November 2020 (PST) whose group’s
businesses consist of property investment, property development,
property management and hotel management and ownership. NWD is
listed on the Stock Exchange.

d) Mr Johnson CHA is the non-executive chairman of Hanison
Construction Holdings Limited (“Hanison”) whose group’s businesses
consist of property investment, property development, property
management and healthcare services. Hanison is listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Save for the INEDs of the Company and save as disclosed above, none of
the existing Directors was interested in any business apart from the
Group's businesses which competed or was likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group during the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

As at 31 March 2021, the following persons (other than the Directors)  #2021F3 8318« BIE AR AR E A IEH S
had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of 336 (&R EBF B2 S MRt To AL
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under (ZE =R AN RARQ T2 B 5 &8 () £

Section 336 of the SFO: BZREZIOXRWT :
LONG POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING RAEXFEKREEO25E TR M KM
SHARES OF THE COMPANY OF HK$0.25 EACH BRAOZHAE
Number of Approximate
ordinary share/ percentage of
underlying share issued share capital
Name of shareholder Capacity ZER/ HEBITREAZ
RERERE 56 HERHEHE BHED
CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited Corporate trustee 715,617,969 48.17
EERFEA
LBJ Regents (PTC) Limited Corporate trustee 101,084,280" 6.81
EEXFEA
Mingly Corporation Interest of controlled corporations 144,606,568 9.73
ENEBEERER QA XEEE s R

These share interests comprise 571,011,401 shares held directly by CCM Trust, 70,341,478 shares held indirectly through wholly-owned subsidiaries of
Mingly, and the interests arising from a right or an obligation to take 74,265,090 shares by Soar Boom pursuant to the Option Agreement (please refer to
Note 2 above). CCM Trust is interested in 87.5% equity interest in Mingly which in turn holds 100% equity interest in Soar Boom. CCM Trust holds the
above share interests as corporate trustee of certain but not identical discretionary trusts of which members of the classes of discretionary beneficiaries
comprise the late Dr CHA Chi Ming's issue.

ZERMDERBECCMTutEEZ I HE 2571011401 I8 h - BRA N2 2 EMB R RAMEFH 270341 478D -+ AR F KR E
TR 1 R SR B 74,265,000 B A 00 2 HERM S B ISP AE A 2 i (B2 B E XXM EE2) » COMTrust B 4 1 87.5% ik 2tk 2t - 4 0 B
FHAEAKZ100BE - CMTust UEBREA SO RETTITRABNEEEHFLAROER  MZEEXIHNBEIXEAREENY
EHEREL 2 &M -

The shares are held by LBJ Regents as corporate trustee of certain but not identical discretionary trusts of which members of the classes of discretionary
beneficiaries comprise the late Dr CHA Chi Ming's issue.

ZERBAD T LBIRegents UEBZEA G N AE T ARAMBEERERE MZSEALHEREACECHEERELZ&M -

These share interests comprise 70,341,478 shares held by Mingly through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, and an interest in 74,265,090 shares arising from
a right or an obligation to take 74,265,090 shares by Soar Boom pursuant to the Option Agreement (please refer to Note 2 above). Mingly is deemed to
be interested in the 74,265,090 shares under the Option Agreement.

ZEBRNERBBELNEREZENBRRITHE 27034147881 » LA K F AR 15 32 B8 #E 13 22 3R 48 74,265,000 AR B £ 2 4 ) ki %
TP EE 4 2 74,265,090 B i 1 2 M 2 (RE 2B L XXPRE2) - BN MR R AR RB B ZE TR T 2 74,265090 B i 17 2 #2 ©
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, no other interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.

DEBT SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2021, two unlisted notes issued by the Company in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$798.0 million which due in April and
May 2020 respectively were fully settled. Details of the debt securities are
disclosed in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements on page
186.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 29 July 2020, Hong Kong Resort Company Limited (the “Vendor”), an
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, accepted the
tender (the “Tender”) submitted by Ms Gaw, Cheng Hwa Selina (the
“Purchaser”) for a residential unit of Poggibonsi,
development project of Discovery Bay City (the “Property”), resulting in a
contract for the disposal of the Property by the Vendor to the Purchaser
for a consideration of HK$26,220,000. The Purchaser, by virtue of being
the spouse of Mr Johnson CHA, who is a NED of the Company, is an

a residential

associate of a connected person of the Company for the purpose of the
Listing Rules.

HKS$1,311,000 being 5% of the consideration for the Property was paid
by the Purchaser upon the Vendor's acceptance of the Tender and
HK$24,909,000 being the balance of the consideration shall be paid
upon completion. The disposal of the Property was completed on 27
August 2020.

The consideration was the price offered by the Purchaser under the
Tender submitted by the Purchaser to the Vendor. As the Vendor has not
had to pay what would have amounted to equivalent or greater estate
agent or intermediary fees in connection with the sale of the Property,
the Purchaser is entitled to a rebate at an amount equal to 7.5% of the
offered price, which equally applicable to all staff and directors of the
Company and their qualified associates as set out in the tender
documents. The rebate will be paid to the Purchaser after completion by
cheque. In addition, the Vendor will pay stamp duty to a cap of 4.25% of
the consideration for the Property, on behalf of the Purchaser as equally
applicable to other independent purchasers for the residential units of
Poggibonsi.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions as disclosed under paragraphs (a) and (b)
of note 45 to the consolidated financial statements on page 227
constitute a connected transaction which has been disclosed above and
continuing connected transaction(s) which are exempt from
shareholders’ approval and disclosure and other requirements under
Chapter 14A.76 of the Listing Rules. Save for the aforesaid transactions,
the other related party transactions shown in note 45 to the consolidated
financial statements do not constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS,
TRANSACTIONS AND ARRANGEMENTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed above, no contract, transactions or arrangements of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director or controlling shareholder had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER RULE 13.21 OF CHAPTER 13 OF THE
LISTING RULES

In accordance with the continuing obligations set out in rule 13.21 of
Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules, the following are the details of the loan
agreements with covenants relating to specific performance on the
controlling shareholders of the Company as at 31 March 2021 pursuant
to rule 13.18 thereof. There exists no reporting obligation by the
Company under rules 3.17 and 13.19 of the Listing Rules accordingly:

a)  The Company is the borrower of a loan agreement entered into
on 4 August 2020 (the “Loan Agreement |") for a term and revolving loan
facility in an aggregate principal amount of HK$3,350 million with final
maturity date falling five years from the date of the Loan Agreement I.

b)  The Company is the borrower of a loan agreement entered into
on 9 October 2020 (the “Loan Agreement II") for a term and revolving
loan facility in an aggregate principal amount of HK$1,000 million with
final maturity date falling five years from the date of the Loan Agreement
Il.
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Under the Loan Agreement | and the Loan Agreement Il (collectively, the
“Loan Agreements”), among others, an event of default is triggered
when the existing individual shareholder of the Company (together with
his associate(s)) holding the single largest shareholding (direct or
indirect) in the Company on the date of the respective Loan Agreements
ceases to be the Company’s single largest beneficial shareholder at any
time during the term of the respective Loan Agreements unless the
situation can be remedied within a prescribed timeframe pursuant to
the respective Loan Agreements.

In the Company’s case, 742,437,159 shares (representing approximately
49.98% of the Company’s issued share capital) are owned by corporate
trustees of certain, but not identical, discretionary trusts of which
members of the classes of discretionary beneficiaries include Mr Victor
CHA and his siblings, each the associate of the others (and the corporate
trustees, the associates of them all). This has been the continuing status
since the signing of each of the Loan Agreements.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER RULES 13.20 AND 13.22 OF CHAPTER
13 OF THE LISTING RULES

In accordance with the requirements of rules 13.20 and 13.22 of Chapter
13 of the Listing Rules, the following were the details of financial
assistances and guarantees given for facilities granted to affiliated
companies of the Company as at 31 March 2021 pursuant to rules 13.13
and 13.16 thereof:

a) As at 26 May 2017, the Group committed to advance to Gainwick
Limited (“Gainwick”), a joint venture formed by the Group (owned as to
40%) and Hysan Development Company Limited (owned as to 60%) for
the purpose of a residential property development in Tai Po, New
Territories, in a form of shareholders’ loan in a total amount of HK$1,437.2
million which is unsecured and has no fixed terms of repayment (the
“Shareholders’ Loan”, comprising loan for land premium amounted to
HK$1,357.2 million which is non-interest bearing and loan for working
capital up to HK$80.0 million with an interest rate of 2% per annum over
T-month Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR"). The Company
also provides guarantee up to HK$2,000.0 million in favour of a syndicate
of financial institutions in Hong Kong as a security for Gainwick's
obligation under the banking facilities granted to Gainwick by the
financial institutions (the “Guarantee”). The interest rate for the banking
facilities is a sum of HIBOR of 0.65% per annum and relevant interest
period (one, two to three months or subject to availability six months at
the selection of Gainwick and mutually agreed with the financial
institutions). Further details of the repayment terms and security of the

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2020/2021

REERBZ RERBHI(KEZEFER
waEl) (R B MR&EE K i AE
R AHFAEARNRAE - RARE (BE ME
BIZARARBERRCERFRZBHEA) 1
ZEERBHEARARATAEEIBILA
RABE-—RRE@BRER BIRIEATREZE
ERHBEREREIHRAMGERHEBR -
BRIBRENEE -

AR FIERME 742,437,159 8% I& 15 (15 A
NADBEITIRAL)4098%) I =B XA A
ATTAMBEREFE MZSELE2BHE
SEABEERKNEEREGL S B#E5EEAH
BEA(MYAELEEZTAZ)BEA - iR

E%FER RS ARRBTRDBETE -

BRIFELEMRAFI3EF 320 RFE 13220462
HE WBRBEIBBERIBIGKEZHEE T
PAEEZE2001F3A3EBR AR A B E N A &
BRREMRETREDRER 2 FIG

a)  M2017F5A28 EEEBERFT AKX
B ETEMEERIEL  UBREREREX
miEAER AR ME] &% B (3 EH40%
A& #) B A B E B R A 5 (55 B 60% A% #) &
AR zaER e ) RHESERI43728E8
Bz EREMEETERPRR(REES
FREBEZREBEERI2BEEB T
LA R 4% — {68 A & B R 17 R 337 8 02% 2 F 7
KA EFENEEESCERRS0IEE S
JL) o ANA B INAE S — A S Bl 8 R B IR 44
&S E200008 BB T ZER EAMNEE
ZECHEUBERTRECEEMERECZE
RUAIER]D - ZERTEEZMNEXBHRABEG
BH(—@A MEAE=MA  HILERE
RAEAMEANER - EmNEETILE
CREBE STRE)NEBRITREREM
065%F FI = 7 B - HRIENIPRERRE
ZE—FFBEFEERARQTRN2017F5H26



Guarantee are disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 26
May 2017. As at 31 March 2021, the outstanding Shareholders’ Loan
amounted to HK$812.6 million and out of which HK$80.0 million was
loan for working capital. The guarantee given in respect of the banking
facilities granted to Gainwick amounted to HK$1,052.5 million.

b) As at 31 March 2021, the Group advanced to Dazhongli Properties
Limited and its subsidiaries ("Dazhongli group”) an aggregate amount of
HKS$4,734.5 million. Dazhongli group is engaged in the operation of
investment properties and hotel properties in Jing'an District, Shanghai,
the People’s Republic of China in which the Group has 50% interest. The
advances were provided by the Group in the form of equity and loans in
proportion to its shareholding interest therein, for the purpose of
financing the development expenditure of Dazhongli group. Out of the
advances, HK$294.2 million are unsecured, interest bearing at 1.71% per
annum and repayable in December 2022. Pursuant to the undertaking of
bank loans, Dazhongli group is refraining from settling the loans from
shareholders until the settlement of all bank loans. The remaining of the
advances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed terms
of repayment.

Q) As at 31 March 2021, the Group also advanced to and guarantees
given for other several affiliated companies an aggregate amount of
HK$1,322.7 million. The Group has interests ranging from 31% to 50% in
these affiliated companies.

As at 31 March 2021, the aggregate amount of advances provided to
and guarantees given for these affiliated companies by the Group
amounted to HK$7,922.3 million representing 20.8% of the consolidated
total assets of the Group of HK$38,145.0 million as at 31 March 2021.

The financial information of these affiliated companies as at 31 March
2021 are set out in notes 18 and 19 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 169 to 174.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract for the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company was entered into or
existed during the year.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate revenue attributable to the Group's five largest customers
was less than 30% of the total value of the Group's revenue.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's five largest
suppliers were less than 30% of the total value of the Group's purchases.

None of the Directors, any of their associates, or shareholders of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5%
of the Company's issued share capital) had any interest in the Group's
five largest customers and suppliers.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to approximately HK$0.6 million (2020: approximately HK$0.8
million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles although
there is no restriction against such rights under the laws of the Cayman
Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to information available to the Company, the percentage of
the Company's shares which are in the hands of the public exceeds 25%
of the Company’s total number of issued shares.
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REVIEW OF THE ANNUAL REPORT BY AUDIT
COMMITTEE

The Group'’s annual report for the year ended 31 March 2021 has been
reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Company established in
compliance with rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the relevant provisions
of the CG Code.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”), the former auditor, retired upon
expiration of its term of office at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 20 August 2020. PricewaterhouseCoopers (“‘PwC") was
appointed as the new auditor of the Company after the retirement of
Deloitte at the conclusion of the said annual general meeting of the
Company.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021
have been audited by PwC. A resolution will be submitted to the 2021
AGM to re-appoint PwC as Auditor.

On behalf of the Board
REESE

CHA Mou Zing Victor
Executive Chairman
ERRR

HITFE

Hong Kong, 23 June 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES AND
FUNCTIONS

The Company is committed to good corporate governance which it
believes to be core to the success of its business and operations.

The corporate governance functions are undertaken by the Board of
Directors (the “Board”), through the Corporate Governance Committee
as delegated by the Board, as prescribed by code provision D.3.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) which
are included in the terms of references of the Board and the Corporate
Governance Committee.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company fully complied with
the code provisions of the CG Code save for a deviation of E.1.2 (Chairman
of the Board's attendance of the annual general meeting ("AGM")).
Details and reasons for the deviation are set out below in the paragraph
headed "Attendances of General Meetings, Board and Board Committee
Meetings”.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

BOARD COMPOSITION

During the year ended 31 March 2021, Mr Payson CHA, the Company’s
late Chairman passed away on 6 November 2020 (PST) as well as Mr
CHEUNG Ho Koon and Ms NGAN Man Ying were appointed as Executive
Directors ("EDs") of the Company with effect from 1 February 2021. In
addition, Mr Abraham CHUNG resigned as ED and Ms Barbara SHIU was
appointed as Independent Non-executive Director (“INED") of the
Company both with effect from 1 April 2021.

The Board currently comprises twelve Directors of which four are EDs
and eight are Non-executive Directors (“NEDs") of whom five and hence,
with more than one-third of the Board, are INEDs. Each Director
possesses skills and experience appropriate to the business of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) and the
particulars of Directors are duly set out on pages 32 to 39 of 2020/2021
annual report.

Save for Mr Victor CHA, Mr Johnson CHA and Ms Madeline WONG who

are siblings, all other Directors have no family relationship with each
other.
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BOARD RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board has the responsibility for strategic leadership, control and
providing guidance to management to ensure the Company's objectives
are achieved.

Upon appointment to the Board, every Director is given comprehensive
and formal induction documentation of the business operation of the
Group and information for his/her understanding and awareness of his/
her responsibilities as Director under the Listing Rules, legal and other
regulatory and statutory requirements together, if required, with brief
meetings with senior executives and department heads of the Group.

Each Director ensures that he/she can give sufficient time and attention
to the affairs of the Group and has informed the Company in a timely
manner for any change, the number and nature of offices held in public
companies or organisations and other significant commitments. Details
of Directors’ other appointments are shown on 32 to 39 of 2020/2021
annual report.

A list of the Directors, their roles and functions and, in particular whether
they are INEDs, is maintained on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange and is updated as and when required.

BOARD PROCESS

The dates of the regular Board meetings in a particular year are
scheduled ahead to give all Directors adequate time to plan their
schedules to attend meetings. There are four regular Board meetings in
a year which are held on a quarterly basis and ad hoc Board meetings
will also be held as and when required. For the year ended 31 March
2021, seven Board meetings were held and attendance records of the
Board meetings held during the year are set out in the below paragraph
headed "Attendances of General Meetings, Board and Board Committee
Meetings”.

At least 14 days formal notice would be given before each regular Board
meeting and reasonable advance notice would also be given for other
Board meetings. All Directors are consulted as to whether they wish to
include any matters in the agenda and the Chairman of the Board would
review and approve the agenda before the agenda for each Board
meeting is issued.
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Agendas and accompanying Board papers are sent to all Directors/Board
Committees members at least three days (or such other period as
agreed) before meetings. With the assistance of the EDs, the Chairman of
the Board seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings and receive adequate documents and
information about the Group in a timely manner. The Chairman of the
Board, or in his absence, the Deputy Chairman, leads meetings and
ensures that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Directors
in a timely manner. Directors are provided sufficient time for discussion
on issues in the meetings and encouraged to express their viewpoints
on the Board's affairs and voice their concerns, if any. The Chairman
directs discussions in the meetings in reaching a consensus and
consolidates discussions with conclusions. Minutes of Board/Board
Committees meetings record matters considered and decisions reached.
Draft and final signed minutes of Board/Board Committees meetings are
sent to all Directors for their comment and records respectively. Director
is entitled to seek independent professional advice, at the Company’s
expenses, if he/she considers necessary in order to perform his/her
duties.

The Chairman of the Board meets at least once annually with the INEDs
without the presence of EDs and NEDs. In March 2021, the Chairman of
the Board met the INEDs without the presence of EDs and NEDs and all
four then INEDs attended the same.

Where necessary, INEDs meet privately to discuss matters which are their
specific responsibilities. During the year, no such meeting was required
to be held.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The CG Code requires that the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separated and not be performed by the same
individual to ensure there is a clear division of responsibilities between
the Board and the executives who run the business.

During the year, Mr Payson CHA, the late Chairman of the Company,
passed away and Mr Victor CHA assumed the position as the Chairman
and ceased as the Deputy Chairman and Managing Director of the
Company. In addition, Mr TANG Moon Wah was promoted as the
Managing Director of the Company, and hence, the roles of Chairman
and Managing Director of the Company throughout the year have been
taken up by two different individuals. The respective roles and
responsibilities of Chairman and Managing Director are clearly separated
and set out in writing.
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The Chairman provides leadership to, and overseeing the functioning of,
the Board to ensure it acts in the best interests of the Group. With the
support of the Company Secretary and Corporate Governance
Committee, the Chairman also takes primary responsibility to establish
good corporate governance practices and procedures of the Company.
The Managing Director, assisted by other EDs and executive
management team, implements the strategies approved by the Board.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (INCLUDING INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS)

NEDs of the Company are appointed with a specific term of three years
which is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election of Directors
under the Articles of Association of the Company (the “Articles”). Details
of the mechanism are set out in below paragraph headed “Appointments,
Re-election and Removal”.

The roles and responsibilities of NEDs are clearly set out in writing. NEDs
are not involved in the day-to-day management of the Group's
businesses but participate in Board/Board Committee meetings where
they bring independent views and judgment on issues of strategy,
policy, performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and
standards of conduct.

INEDs, in particular, will oversee the management and the Company
implementing the rules, procedures and plans established and help
ensure that the interests of the shareholders as a whole are taken into
account by the Board. Each of the INEDs has provided to the Company
an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and the Company considers that all of them continue to be
independent with reference to the terms of guidelines set out in the
relevant requirements of the Listing Rules.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

The Articles stipulate that at each AGM, one-third of the Directors for the
time being, or if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years and any Director appointed by
the Directors shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a casual vacancy) or until
the next following AGM (in the case of a new appointment to the Board)
and be eligible to offer for re-election. Re-election of each eligible
Director is subject to approval by shareholders at the general meeting of
the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors are provided with continuous updates on latest changes or
material development in laws, the Listing Rules, corporate governance
practices relating to the duties and responsibilities of Directors and are
encouraged to participate in continuous professional development
seminars to update their knowledge for discharging directors’
responsibilities.

The Directors, who in office during the year under review and remain at
the date of 2020/2021 annual report, have participated in the following
various continuous professional development activities in order to
develop and refresh their skills and knowledge. Each Director has
provided his/her training record for the year under review to the
Company with particulars set out as follows:

ESCREEXRRE

EETRESEREETRG MBE ZEH
EHRAERERERZENETXLERXN
BR2EFEHN RETEZB2EFER
XERVSN G NEHNEETESTBRAEZ
A o

R Bl EE A A & 52020/2021 F I B BT AR FE1E
JEZCD2RTHZEAREZEERIHIN
BRI FHERFERNHS SEZECRARD
RAIREFEREEFRZEFILE Fi58E7
LU

Type of training(s)

Name of director EENF g R
Victor CHA B A

TANG Moon Wah BB 2 A
CHEUNG Ho Koon oREE A

NGAN Man Ying g A B
Ronald ARCULLI EER A B
Johnson CHA EE A B
Madeline WONG FEXE A

Linus CHEUNG iR K FF A

Henry FAN BB R A

Loretta HO [ER=N=t A B

TANG Kwai Chang b =g-7 A B

Notes:

A.  Reading/viewing materials/articles/videos in relation to director responsibilities, as
well as the updates, developments and refreshments on tax compliance, risk
management and governance.

B. Attending training/seminars/workshops/forums/conferences/programme in
relation to director and supervision development, updated statutory and regulatory
requirements as well as developments on financial, legal, risk management, technology,
data security and privacy, trust, banking, real estate market, tax, environmental, social
and governance (“ESG") and economic environments.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board has delegated and set out levels of authority and expressed
terms of reference for the Board Committees and reserves the rights to
oversee and decide all other non-delegated matters, in particular, major
acquisitions or disposals and connected transactions. The Board also
delegates certain management and administration functions to the
management as it considers appropriate from time to time, with
directions as to the powers of management, including circumstances
where management shall report to and obtain prior approval from the
Board.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up the Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee, Corporate Governance Committee and other
committees, namely Finance Committee, Investment/Divestment
Committee, Buy-back, Reissue and Transfer of Shares Committee, Inside
Information Committee and ESG Committee. The Board may also on a
need basis set up special committees with clear terms of reference to
deal with specific transactions or matters of the Company.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee of the Company was established on 26
March 2012 and its terms of reference follow closely the requirements of
the CG Code. The full text of the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee require, inter alia,
that the Nomination Committee comprises not less than three members
with a majority of INEDs and the Chairman must be either an INED or the
Chairman of the Board. During the year, Mr Henry Fan was appointed as
the chairman of the Nomination Committee with effect from 18
November 2020 to fill the vacancy left by the late Mr Payson CHA. In
addition, Mr Victor CHA and Ms Madeline WONG were appointed as
additional members of the Nomination Committee with effect from 25
November 2020. The Nomination Committee currently comprises five
members, namely Mr Henry FAN, Mr Victor CHA, Ms Madeline WONG, Ms
Loretta HO and Mr TANG Kwai Chang with Mr Henry FAN acting as the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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The principal role and function of the Nomination Committee is to
identify and recommend to the Board suitably qualified persons to
become members of the Board, to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board on a regular basis, to maintain (i) a policy
concerning diversity of Board members (the “Board Diversity Policy”) and
consider the measurable objectives, if required, for recommending to
the Board for adoption; and (i) a policy concerning nomination of
Director (the "Director Nomination Policy”). The Nomination Committee
is entitled to seek independent professional advice, at the Company’s
expenses, if it considers necessary in order to perform its duties.

The Board Diversity Policy was adopted by the Board in March 2013.
Pursuant to the policy, the Nomination Committee will review, discuss
and agree annually all measurable objectives in accordance with the
structure, size and composition of the Board for achieving diversity on
the Board and recommend them, if any, to the Board for adoption. The
Nomination Committee also monitors the progress and its policy
implementation for annual reporting in the corporate governance
report. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of services. The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board. The policy will be reviewed by the Nomination Committee on an
annual basis and when required to ensure effectiveness.

The Director Nomination Policy was adopted by the Board in November
2018. Pursuant to the policy, the Nomination Committee will discuss and
consider the nomination of candidates from various sources for new
Directors, examine the qualification of these candidates, and then
recommend such candidates to the Board, which have the final authority
on determining the selection of such candidate to be appointed as a
Director. The major criteria considered by the Nomination Committee
are, inter alia, candidates’ educational backgrounds, experience and
expertise in their chosen industries, their proposed commitment to the
Company and the goal, if any, of diversity of the Board. Regarding the
nomination of INEDs, the Nomination Committee will also particularly
consider the independence of such candidates. The policy will be
reviewed by the Nomination Committee on an annual basis and when
required to ensure effectiveness.

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2020/2021

REZECSTERBERBEADERAES
CHEEBABERKAESTEREZA
T THRTEEG 2R ABRMAR MU
ERFIESERELZTELBRE(ESES S
TAEBREKD YR EFEEEEA A EEZ
NEZEFERM MEFERRE(E
ERABXR]) REZECERLKERAR
BIBREMEHRKBYEEEZER  BEHHAL
NAEIESE o

EEE2Z b BRER203FIAEEES K
Mo BMEZREX REZLZEBTBHRESESZ
B ABREKRSFETRS B ED
TEREZEZubzmBAEZE I
EREETeRAMNZEERE(E) - REZE
ENCEEFHEERERRBITUARGE
ERABENIEFEER - REBAZBEAR
ZTEERE  BEEBRNERER - Fi&k - Xt
M#HEES EKR BELR g AH#EK
RISFH WERAMBEZBERAZITAEZES
CHERZEZRERMERKRRAT - 25
ZECHEEE RN Y BERTZEE AER
HAEWIME -

EEREBRDNR08FIIAREETEH
M-REZBRR REZEEHIRLEE
RERTAZEHENREARHTIES
BERABREAZERE RERAEFTSHER
ERAZE BEFARZCABREARE
EHREERRER - RBZBEEMEEZE
ZEAR(EPEBE)BREAZHEESR H
RARETEZRBREERNE  EHEX
RARBZERAREZFE®Z T B RN
B) MBEZRAME REZBENHEH
MZERAEREREAZEBLIME -RBZEEH
BFEMRRLERR ZBER AR WIE -



During the year, the Nomination Committee in the meetings held in
November 2020 and March 2021 as well as by written resolutions have (a)
recommended for the approval of the Board the reorganisation of the
Board and some Board committees upon the passing away of Mr Payson
CHA, the late Chairman of the Company, including i) the appointment of
Mr Victor CHA as the Executive Chairman of the Company, a member of
the Nomination Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee
as well as cessation of his position as the Deputy Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company; ii) the appointment of Ms Madeline
WONG as the Non-executive Deputy Chairman of the Company, the
chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee; iii) the appointment of Mr TANG Moon Wah as
the Managing Director of the Company and a member of some
functional committees; (b) with the proposal of the Chairman of the
Company, considered pursuant to the Director Nomination Policy and
recommended for the approval of the Board the appointment of Mr
CHEUNG Ho Koon and Ms NGAN Man Ying as the EDs of the Company; (c)
with the proposal of the Chairman of the Company, considered pursuant
to the Director Nomination Policy and recommended for the approval of
the Board the appointment of Ms Barbara SHIU as the INED of the
Company and a member of the Audit Committee; (d) reviewed the
retirement of Directors and recommended to the Board the re-election
of Mr Victor CHA, Mr CHEUNG Ho Koon, Ms NGAN Man Ying, Mr Johnson
CHA, Mr Henry FAN, Ms Loretta HO and Ms Barbara SHIU at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company to be held in August 2021; (e)
reviewed, assessed and considered all INEDs are independent, in
particular for Ms Loretta HO who has served the Board as INED for more
than nine years; (f) reviewed, assessed and considered the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy and Director Nomination
Policy; and (g) reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board
during the year of 2020/2021 and considered that after the aforesaid
restructure of the Board composition, the current diversity of the Board
is appropriate and it was not necessary to set out any measurable
objectives for enhancing the diversity of the Board for the year of
2021/2022. The records of the meeting held and written resolutions of
the Nomination Committee during the year are set out in the below
paragraph headed “Attendances of General Meetings, Board and Board
Committee Meetings”.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was established on 2
December 2004 and its terms of reference follow closely the
requirements of the CG Code. The full text of the terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee is available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee require, inter
alia, that the Remuneration Committee comprises not less than three
members with a majority of INEDs. The Remuneration Committee
currently comprises three members, namely Mr Linus CHEUNG, Mr Henry
FAN and Mr Victor CHA with Mr Linus CHEUNG acting as the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee.

The principal role and function of the Remuneration Committee is to
exercise the powers of the Board to review and determine the
remuneration packages of individual EDs and senior management, if any,
including salaries, bonuses, benefits in kind, share options and other
plans. Such factors as remuneration paid for comparable positions, time
commitment and responsibilities of the EDs and senior management as
well as the Company’s remuneration policy will be considered. The
Remuneration Committee is entitled to seek independent professional
advice, at the Company’s expenses, if it considers necessary in order to
perform its duties.

During the year, no Remuneration Committee meeting was held but the
Remuneration Committee reviewed and approved by means of
electronic circulation (a) 2020/2021 salary review for senior executives; (b)
employment extension for two EDs; (c) remuneration adjustment for
four EDs due to the change of their positions with greater responsibilities;
(d) 2020/2021 bonus payment for senior executives; and (e) an ex-gratia
payment for an ED. The records of circulated electronic communication
of the Remuneration Committee during the year are duly set out in the
below paragraph headed “Attendances of General Meetings, Board and
Board Committee Meetings”.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company was established on 17 July 1998
and its terms of reference follow closely the requirements of the CG
Code. The full text of the terms of reference of the Audit Committee is
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2020/2021

FEEE

RABEHMEZEE@RN2004F 124280 &
BESEZELE TR ZHRE- %M?E
BEHE 22X RARR KRBT,

B -

&
=

CEERBHERA T (ARl FME
TR R =R EAN EPKEH
%%%% %Miﬁaﬁ%m H K
W DRI ARKFEE BBEBRLER
%WW%E H Ao K AR %iﬁ T E e
FF o

il
m) i

m 3
“m@
= N

4

FMZE e T ERBRBERTEESS

BN A Kk E Mﬂ%%&mﬁ B A
BEWMB)2HMEE BREF % “EY
ﬂm*%@%%&hﬁﬁ% M§AE%
%%@ﬂ%&%E%EAETWm@%uW

ZHEM N EzHRRBERE UEAX
QTZ%MEMMI% FMEZ R e R ER

/\wu\ﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁfjgﬁk,\ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
ERBARRAAE

SSRBUEEER

o

RERN HFWEZEE S EEBITEE - MW
BEgREERETFTERN T AFTH LI E
@ = &7 A B2020/2021 F & 7 % B 8 51
OEEMEREERBBR: 0N EAH
E%ﬁEEK%EHMZﬁELﬂZ 5t B 53
B (d)mmBITBA BIK 20202021 2
bq Fem—ZHEXRz2EE® - FK
THEESERETFBRA ISR TR
%KA ExghEseaegact®

E]—F -

EREES

KRBIEZZEGMNI198F7 A17B K
BESEEECE T ZRE- %ﬁ%%*
B S E 2 2 A AN A A R B R BT 49

FIEE -

)€H{ e

pu]

hW®W



The terms of reference of the Audit Committee require, inter alia, that
the Audit Committee comprises not less than three members who are
NEDs and a majority of them must be INEDs of the Company. Upon the
appointment of Ms Barbara SHIU as an additional member of the Audit
Committee on 1 April 2021, the Audit Committee currently comprises
four members, namely Mr TANG Kwai Chang, Mr Linus CHEUNG, Ms
Loretta HO and Ms Barbara SHIU with Mr TANG Kwai Chang leading the
Audit Committee as the chairman.

The principal role and function of the Audit Committee is to assist the
Board in meeting its responsibilities for ensuring an effective system of
risk management and internal controls and compliance, as well as
meeting its external financial reporting objectives. The Audit Committee
is entitled to seek independent professional advice, at the Company'’s
expenses, if it considers necessary in order to perform its duties.

During the year, five Audit Committee meetings were held, of which two
meetings were held for the consideration on the proposed change of
Independent Auditor from Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu ("Deloitte”)
to PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC") and met with PwC's representatives.
A recommendation for the change of Independent Auditor after the
retirement of Deloitte at the conclusion of 2020 annual general meeting
of the Company (the “2020 AGM") was then submitted for the approval
of Board and thereafter the shareholders of the Company at the 2020
AGM. The other three meetings were held with the Independent Auditor
together with senior management and has (a) reviewed and received
the client service plan for audit of the financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2020; (b) reviewed and received the report
of risk management review for the year ended 31 March 2020; (c)
considered the Independent Auditor's projected audit and non-audit
services fees; (d) reviewed the independence of the Independent
Auditor, the nature and scope of the audit; (e) reviewed and discussed
the interim and final financial statements and the Independent Auditor’s
review and report for the Board's approval. During two of these three
meetings, the Audit Committee also met with the head of the Internal
Audit Department of the Company to receive their work plan and,
review and discuss on their findings and rectification actions taken by
the business units.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Corporate Governance Committee was established on 12
September 2018 for the purpose to enhance and ensure the Company
maintains a high standard of the corporate governance. Its terms of
reference follow closely the requirements of the CG Code and pursuant
to which, the Corporate Governance Committee requires, inter alia,
comprising of not less than three members with majority of them must
be NEDs (including INEDs) of the Company. During the year, Ms
Madeline WONG, the Non-executive Deputy Chairman of the Company,
was appointed as the chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee
with effect from 25 November 2020 in place of the late Mr Payson CHA.
In addition, Mr Victor CHA was appointed as an additional member of
the Corporate Governance Committee on the even date. The Corporate
Governance Committee currently comprises four members, namely Ms
Madeline WONG, Mr Victor CHA, Mr Henry FAN and Mr TANG Kwai
Chang with Ms Madeline WONG leading the Corporate Governance
Committee as the chairman.

The principal role and function of the Corporate Governance Committee
is to assist the Board and the Chairman in developing, reviewing and
monitoring the Company's policies and practices on corporate
governance on assurance the compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements. The Corporate Governance Committee is entitled to seek
independent professional advice, at the Company’s expenses, if it
considers necessary in order to perform its duties.

During the vyear, the Corporate Governance Committee held two
meetings in June 2020 and March 2021 and has (a) reviewed the
corporate governance report to be incorporated in the annual report of
2019/2020; (b) received and reviewed the training records of all Directors
for the financial year 2019/2020; and (c) reviewed all the key Company’s
policies and practices, including the code of conduct and terms of
reference of officers and various Board committees as well as made
recommendations to the Board for amending some terms of references.
The records of the meetings held of the Corporate Governance
Committee during the year are set out in the below paragraph headed
“Attendances of General Meetings, Board and Board Committee
Meetings".
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ATTENDANCES OF GENERAL MEETINGS,
BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Directors’ attendances in the general meetings and the meetings of the
Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Corporate Governance Committee held during the year

under review are set out below:
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Remuneration Nomination Corporate AGM held on
Audit Committee Committee Governance 20 August
Board Committee circulated meeting/ Committee 2020
meeting meeting communication resolutions meeting 72020
Exe ENRZEE® FHMERE REZ8E tEER 8H20H
Name of director BEEnE =f ] =f EHER gB/RBR ZEESR BOIIRERES
Payson CHA'®* B 2/5 - - - 1/1 X
Victor CHA™e* B 6/7 - 5/5 22 1/1 X
TANG Moon Wah HWimzE 717 - - - - v
Abraham CHUNG? EL A 7/7 - - _ _ /
CHEUNG Ho Koon oROEER I - - - - X
NGAN Man Ying* &N 11 - - _ 7 X
Ronald ARCULLI BEE 6/7 - - - - X
Johnson CHA ERE 4/7 - - - - X
Madeline WONG*** TEERE 717 - - 2/2 2/2 X
Linus CHEUNG** ?Eﬂ@q*“ 6/7 5/5 5/5 - - X
Henry FANS* B R 77 - 5/5 3/3 2/2 v/
Loretta HO*® ﬂ e 717 5/5 - 33 - X
TANG Kwai Chang*®* B & g xer 77 5/5 - 3/3 212 v/
Notes: Bﬁ [
* members of Audit Committee BEREEEKE
# members of Remuneration Committee tHMEEEeK 8
@ members of Nomination Committee e IBEZEFEBEeRE
* members of Corporate Governance Committee v PEEREEERKE
1. Mr Payson CHA passed away on 6 November 2020 (PST). 1. BB S AER200F 1N A6 (K FIFZERR)
Bt o
2. Mr Victor CHA was appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee and 2. Z’@ﬁ}z EAEB20FEAAREZTEAIEREZE

Corporate Governance Committee with effect from 25 November 2020.
3. Mr Abraham CHUNG resigned as a director of the Company with effect from 1 3.

April 2021.

4. Mr CHEUNG Ho Koon and Ms NGAN Man Ying were appointed as directors of 4,

the Company with effect from 1 February 2021.

5. Ms Madeline WONG was appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee 5.
with effect from 25 November 2020.

6. Mr Henry FAN was appointed as the chairman of the Nomination Committee 6.
with effect from 18 November 2020.
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Due to other business engagements, Mr Payson CHA, the late Chairman
of the Board and Mr Victor CHA, the then Deputy Chairman of the Board
and Managing Director of the Company could not attend the 2020 AGM
of the Company held on 20 August 2020 and Mr TANG Moon Wabh, an
Executive Director of the Company took the chair of that meeting and
Mr Henry FAN (INED as well as a member of the Remuneration
Committee and Corporate Governance Committee) and Mr TANG Kwai
Chang (INED as well as the chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of Nomination Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee), together with another ED and the representative of the
Company's Independent Auditor were present to answer questions from
shareholders.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge they are responsible for the preparation of
accounts for financial year which is required to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group, its results and the
cash flows for the Group. For preparation of the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2021, the Directors selected
appropriate accounting policies and applied them consistently, made
judgments and estimations that are prudent and reasonable, and
prepared accounts on a going concern basis. The statement of the
Company’s Independent Auditor about their reporting responsibilities
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2021 is contained in the Independent Auditor's report of
2020/2021 annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has an overall responsibility for evaluating and providing
direction to the Company on the nature and extent of the risks that shall
be taken in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and ensuring
that the Company establishes and maintains appropriate and effective
systems of risk management and internal controls, which include
financial, operational and compliance controls.

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2020/2021

HREELHEMER ARFEHNEES
TEERBAERBIE SR EIRERES
44838 B IR PK ST A R AR B AR A Bl R 2020 4F
8H20ARITZ2000EEFE - AmAR A
BTESEBRMELEETZASERE M8
BRAE (BERIFNZEGRERGEE
AEEBEREBI R ETLE(BERTEZ
ZESTITR REZEGHRERDEERE
BEKB)ERS —NERARQRIBE LM
ZREHEHFEZAS AL ERE ZIRM -

BERE%

EETHFSEEARYBRFEREEEL
FEMRBMARNRREBREBERAULREER
XELRREREZHKRE  -REREZE2021F3
A3 BILEFEZHRAVBHRENE EFC8
TABZEBRERTERER (EHBEEK
BEZHEMGEE  URFEKLEEERY
IR B o ANAQ A 2B % EAD 3L & E & = 2021
FIANBULFEGAVBRER A REERE
BA L 72 2020/2021 3R 2 W L BN IR S A ©

JE B 3R e B BE 4

EEesRAAREHARARBEREM
FEHHNER 2 EE R &BEETHE kAR
NRERETEMER TEARARAEZILR
HEFEBEARZAREE KA MMEE RS
BREME EERTEERE-



The main features of the risk management and internal control systems
are to provide a clear governance structure, policies and procedures, as
well as a reporting mechanism to facilitate the Group to manage its risks
across business operations. Key policies and procedures have been
developed, implemented and communicated to staff as well as regularly
reviewed to ensure there are continued relevant and effective risk
management and internal control systems and for continuous
improvement which includes (a) setting core values and beliefs which
form the basis of the Group's overall risk philosophy and appetite; (b)
having an organisational structure in place with defined lines of
responsibility and delegation of authority which hold individuals
accountable for their risk management and internal control
responsibilities and provides necessary information flow for risk analysis
and management decision-making on an on-going basis; (c) imposing
budgetary and management accounting controls to efficiently allocate
resources and providing timely financial and operational performance
indicators to manage business activities and risks; (d) ensuring effective
financial reporting control to record complete, accurate and timely
accounting and management information; and (e) having structural
internal audit function to perform independent appraisal of business
units and corporate functions on an on-going and cyclical basis.

The Board has delegated to the Audit Committee responsibility for
providing oversight in respect of risk management and internal control
activities. The Audit Committee discusses the risk management and
internal control systems with management for the year under review to
ensure that management has performed its duty to have an effective risk
management and internal control systems. Discussion covers areas, inter
alia, the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programme and budget (collectively, “Resources”) of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting functions.

To assist the Board and the Audit Committee in overseeing the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group, the Internal
Audit Department is responsible for performing independent reviews on
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s systems of internal
controls and risk management and reports audit findings to the Audit
Committee and the Board regularly. An Internal Audit Charter, which was
adopted in 2008, formulates the processes and procedures of internal
audit function for strengthening of the control framework. The Audit
Committee also separately consults with the Internal Audit Department
in respect of the adequacy of Resources of the Company’s internal audit
function.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The successful management of risks is essential for the long-term growth
and sustainability of the Group’s business. To ensure risk management of
the Group is integrated into the day-to-day operation of the Group and
is continuously carried out at all levels of the Group, the Company has
established a risk management framework and governance structure
which consists of the Board, the Audit Committee, risk management
steering group and business lines to facilitate a systematic approach to
the management of risks within the Group.

The following diagram illustrates the Group'’s risk governance and
management framework:

..................................................

¢ Delegation } ¢ Overseeing :

Boardof | iz Audit P em

Directors i Committee : :
¢ Reporting % ¢ Reporting
EHR P ER

..................................................

Monitoring Reporting
BER E R

.......................................

Internal Audit
Department

R EBF LB

.......................................

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

® evaluate and provide direction to the Company on the nature and extent of
the risks that shall be taken in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives
e ensure that the Company establishes and maintains appropriate and effective

systems of risk management and internal controls
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

® oversee management in design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems

e review, at least annually, the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group with the support of Internal Audit Department to ascertain whether
management has fulfilled its responsibilities in establishing and maintaining
effective systems

® review risk assessment results, including changes in the nature and extent of
significant risks since the last review and the Group's ability to respond to
changes in its business and the external environment

® consider major investigation findings on risk management and internal control
matters and management's response to these findings

e identify any significant risks that should be the attention of the Board

e review and consider enhancement to the risk management and internal
control systems as proposed by the risk management steering group and/or

the Internal Audit Department

RISK MANAGEMENT STEERING GROUP

e establish and maintain risk management infrastructure and recommend
change as appropriate

e conduct, at least annually, risk identification and assessment on group-wide
basis

e escalate risk and control issues on a timely manner as appropriate

® ensure business line conduct risk assessment and control self-assessment
within their business units/departments on a regular basis

e provide assurance on the effectiveness of the risk management and control

systems of the Group to the Audit Committee and the Board

BUSINESS LINES

® manage risks within their business units/departments

e identify and evaluate risks potentially impact the achievement of business
objectives within their business units/departments

® mitigate and monitor risks identified on day-to-day operation

e conduct risk assessment and control self-assessment on regular basis

INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT

e perform audits to evaluate the proper functioning of the risk management
and internal control systems

® report findings to the Audit Committee and provide the Committee with an
independent and objective assurance on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group

® propose any enhancement to the risk management and internal control
systems for consideration by the Audit Committee and the risk management

steering group
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The Company has also formulated and adopted Risk Management Policy
in providing directions in identifying, evaluating and managing
significant risks. At least on an annual basis, the risk management
steering group, which comprises of the heads of all business units and
corporate functions, collects and collates risk information from business
lines, identifies risks, on a group-wide basis, that would adversely affect
the achievement of the Group’s objectives, and assesses and prioritises
the identified risks according to a set of standard criteria. Risk mitigation
plans are established and risk owners are also assigned to closely
monitor those risks which are considered to be significant on an on-
going basis and implement the mitigation plans. The identified risks
which are considered to be significant to the Group, including their
changes in nature and extent since the last review, and the relevant
mitigation plans for the year under review have been presented and
accepted by the Audit Committee and the Board in April and June 2021
respectively.

The Internal Audit Department acts as an independent assessor as
another line of defence on risk management system. It conducts
independent review and assesses, at least on an annual basis, if all the
key risks are properly identified and evaluated in accordance with the
Risk Management Policy and whether the existing risk controls are
operating effectively. A control self-assessment process was also
established which requires risk owners to assess, through questionnaire,
the adequacy and effectiveness of risk controls over the areas under their
responsibilities. The process and its results were reviewed by the Internal
Audit Department and form part of the Audit Committee’s annual
assessment of control effectiveness.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

In addition to the independent assessment on the risk management
system, during the year, the Internal Audit Department also carried out
reviews on (a) the operation of Discovery Bay Transportation Services
Limited; (b) the operation of Discovery Bay Transit Services Limited; (c)
the operation of Discovery Bay Road Tunnel Company Limited; (d) the
operation of Discovery Bay Enterprises Limited; (e) the operation of
Auberge Discovery Bay Hong Kong; (f) the improvement on the
purchasing control of the Procurement Department; and (g) other
business units with audit follow-up. With the implementation of follow-
up measures after the reviews, the effectiveness in areas with
irregularities has gradually improved. Findings on the reviews, control
weaknesses, if any, and the relevant recommendations have been
presented to and accepted by the Audit Committee and the Board in
November 2020 and June 2021.
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The risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. The Board, through the works of
the Audit Committee, risk management steering group and the Internal
Audit Department, has conducted an annual review on the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2021 and considers that the Group's risk
management and internal control systems for the year were effective
and adequate. Management of the Group has also provided
confirmation to the Audit Committee and the Board on the effectiveness
of such systems for the year under review.

HANDLING OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group complies with requirements of Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO") and the Listing Rules. A Disclosure of Inside
Information Policy has established by the Company to set out the
procedures on reporting the likely inside information to ensure that
potential price sensitive or inside information of the Group can be
promptly identified, assessed and escalated for disseminating to the
public. The Company discloses inside information to the public as soon
as reasonably practicable unless the information falls within any of the “Safe
Harbours” as provided in the SFO. Before the information is fully
disclosed to the public, the Company ensures the information is kept
strictly confidential. If the Company believes that the necessary degree
of confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may have
been breached, the Company will immediately disclose the information
to the public. The Company is committed to ensure that information
contained in announcements are not false or misleading as to any
material fact, or false or misleading through the omission of any material
fact in view of presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which
requires equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE ESG REPORTING
GUIDE

The Group has complied with the ESG Reporting Guide of the Stock
Exchange and has released its standalone ESG Report for the year ended
31 March 2021 online at the same time with the publication of
2020/2021 annual report, which captures in detail the Group's ESG-
related initiatives, policies and performance in Hong Kong, mainland
China and Thailand throughout the financial year.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company strives to maintain a stable dividend to shareholders and
has adopted a dividend policy (the “Policy”). Pursuant to the Policy, the
declaration or recommendation of dividends is subject to the sole
discretion of the Board. The Board shall consider the following factors
before declaring or recommending dividends:

e the Company's actual and expected financial performance;
® shareholders’ interests;

e the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the members of the Group;

e the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity and
the relevant financial covenants;

® any restriction on payment of dividends that may by imposed by the
Group's lenders;

e the Group's expected working capital requirements and future
expansion plan;

® general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s motion
control business or financial performance and position of the Company;

® taxation considerations;

® statutory and regulatory restrictions; and

e any other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The Board will continually review the Policy and reserve the right in its
sole absolute discretion to update, amend and/or modify the Policy at
any time, and the Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Company in respect of its future dividend and/or in

no way obligate the Company to declare dividend at any time or from
time to time.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration (save for directors’ fees which are subject to
shareholders’ approval at general meeting) is determined with reference
to prevailing market situation, their respective duties and responsibilities
and the Group'’s remuneration policy. Under the terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee, the Remuneration Committee should
make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and it
has the delegated responsibilities to determine the remuneration of the
EDs. The EDs are entitled to salary, contribution to retirement schemes
and discretionary bonus which are subject to the ED's and the
Company's performance.

In general, the Executive Chairman, who is a member of the
Remuneration Committee, is involved in recommending proposals on
the remuneration of other EDs for due consideration and approval by
the Remuneration Committee. However, he abstains from voting when
his remuneration is reviewed and considered by the Remuneration
Committee. No Director will participate in the discussion and review of
his/her own remuneration.

The NEDs are entitled to a director’s fee for their service which was
determined by the Board, pursuant to the authority given by the
shareholders at general meeting from time to time, with reference to
their duties and responsibilities in the Company and the prevailing
market situation. Currently, a sum of HK$100,000 per annum being the
basic fee for acting as a NED, additional fee of HK$100,000 per annum
will be paid to each member, who is NED, of each of Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company and additional fee of HK$150,000 per
annum will be paid to each member, who is NED, of Audit Committee.
An additional fee of HK$50,000 will also be paid to each INED having a
seat in any independent board committee which is required to be set up
from time to time under the Listing Rules.

Remuneration details of the Directors (on individual name basis) for the
year ended 31 March 2021 are disclosed in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 157 and 158 of 2020/2021 annual report.

EEME

EFEHE (BEBRRNBRRAS LM EZES
WERINTI2EERNTR BREZTBZBB
LFBEAREEZHMBEMET - RiEH
MEzBEesBESRE FWHEZBESEHNFM
BRABEFSRLEZZR UERBASET
HEZHFMFB BEBEWEFM  RIK
B RA RIREARARRARRBEMERZ
BB TEAL -

—RME ATEE(RAFGSFHEE X
B)enEmaE s HFMraRMtES Uit
FMZESFEE LR MM E AT N
WEZEeEMEEEELFHMEBE  KRAIZE
REXKRE - BEEZEAN2ETHELBHER
HZME -

FHRERERBERRDMZESHVEHES
CREBRETERBRERNS EREZ&EE
WE2EFRERARAZEBEBEBEARE
BMAMET HEINFIHFEBEZELN
& BT FEI1000008 T MIFREFREARARF]
FTHEZET REZEGRLEERLZET
KEZENINME(EBREEZEEET) AEF
1000008 T W ERIFERERTEZZE LK
B ZEINEE BT F 1500008 7T © o - A
FTEBEEABRE EMBAURNE AR ZE
MBIEEEEZE LK E 2 EINEE AR50000
BT e

HE20DF3A3BLEFE2EEMEFIE
(I (f N 278 2 E %) 220202021 F B 157 &
FEISSEZEEMEmEAM E12RIFE -

FERRAXEREEERAF 20202021 £ 79



80

Corporate Governance Report
TERER/RRE

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

PwC is the Independent Auditor of the Company. The remuneration for
audit services provided by PwC to the Group for the year under review
amounted to approximately HK$8.2 million. In addition to the audit fee,
the Company had appointed PwC for the interim results review and the
other non-audit advisory services, remuneration of which amounted to
approximately HK$2.0 million for the year under review.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
(including amendments as effected from time to time) as its own code
of conduct to regulate securities transactions by Directors (the "Model
Code"). All Directors, who in office during the financial year ended 31
March 2021 and remain at the date of 2020/2021 annual report, have
confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during
the year from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 (both days inclusive). The
Model Code has been extended to and has become equally applicable
to dealings in the securities of the Company by members of senior
management and relevant employees.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is an employee of the Company
and has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affair. During the year
ended 31 March 2021, she has taken not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in accordance with rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules and
will continue to comply with such requirement for the year ending 31
March 2022 and report regularly.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Pursuant to article 72 of the Articles, extraordinary general meetings shall
also be convened by the written requisition of any two shareholders of
the Company representing not less than 5% of the issued share capital
of the Company at the time of requisition. Shareholders wishing to do so
must serve a duly executed written requisition to the Company's
principal place of business in Hong Kong at 23/F, China Merchants
Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong (the
“Principal Place of Business”) specifying the object(s) of the meeting. If
the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed to duly convene the meeting, such shareholders
may convene the general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meeting(s) may be convened by the Directors,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by those shareholders as a result of
the failure of the Directors to convene the general meeting shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

In addition, any shareholder acting on his/her own or together with
other persons whose shareholding interests in the Company in
aggregate representing not less than 5% of the issued share capital of
the Company (other than the person to be proposed) may nominate a
person to stand for election as Director at the general meeting in
accordance with article 120 of the Articles. Any shareholder wishing to
do so must serve (a) a written notice of intention to propose such person
for election as Director; (b) a notice executed by that person of his/her
willingness to be elected; and (c) the information of that person as
required to be disclosed under rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules to the
Principal Place of Business between the period commencing from the
date after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and ending on (and excluding) the date that is seven
days prior to the date of such general meeting. The Company shall issue
an announcement and/or a supplementary circular, if applicable, to
inform the shareholders the biographical details of the candidate
proposed if a valid notice to propose a person to stand for election as
Director is received.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company is committed to promoting and maintaining effective
communication with the shareholders and other stakeholders. A
shareholders’ communication policy has been adopted by the Board
which set out the Company’s policy for maintaining an on-going
dialogue with shareholders and investment community. The policy is
subject to regular review by the Board to ensure its effectiveness. The
Company’'s AGM, for which at least 20 clear business days’ prior notice is
given, is one of the principal channels of communication with its
shareholders. Shareholders have the opportunity to communicate face
to face with the Directors if they have any questions on the Company’s
performance and operations. In addition to the AGM, extensive
information on the Company's activities in respect of its financial,
business and operations is provided by way of announcements, annual
and interim reports and circulars which are sent to shareholders and/or
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Shareholders may also send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by
addressing them to the Company Secretary of the Company whose
contact details are available on the Company’s website at www.hkri.com.
The Company Secretary is responsible for forwarding communications
relating to matters within the Board's direct responsibilities to the Board
and communications relating to ordinary business matters, such as
suggestions, inquiries and customers complaints, to the relevant
executive officers of the Company under the direction of the Chairman
of the Board and/or Managing Director of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company is
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. No
change was made to the Company's constitutional documents during
the year ended 31 March 2021.
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Financial Highlights

M=

2021 2020

For the year ended 31 March BZE3AMALFE HK$'M HKS'M

Results B BEBTT BEAT

.

Revenue g A 3,942.3 4,696.5
Profit attributable to owners KRFEER ANENL ST

of the Company 897.3 1,624.6

Basic earnings per share (HK cents) FRERNER GEW) 60.4 109.4

2021 2020

At 31 March MW3A31H HK$'M HKS'M

Financial Position Bt AR R BEBTT BEBTT

.

Total assets BEME 38,145.0 37,2409

Total liabilities BERE 11,540.3 12,494.7
Equity attributable to owners NARHE AEGRER

of the Company 23,683.9 22,067 4

Net asset value per share (HKS) BREEFEGET) 15.9 149

NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE (HKS)

BREEFEGET)
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Financial Review
B 7% Bl 8

OVERALL RESULTS

The Group's consolidated revenue of HKS$3,942.3 million (2020:
HK$4,696.5 million) for the year ended 31 March 2021 ("FY2021")
decreased by 16.1% as compared to the preceding year. Such decrease
was mainly attributable to the decline in revenue contribution from
property development, hotel operations and healthcare segments.

The Group'’s underlying net profit after excluding net unrealised gains on
fair value of investment properties for the FY2021 amounted to HK$868.6
million (2020: HKS$1,142.1 million), decreased by 23.9%.

With the exclusion of the one-off gain on disposal of the Group’s medical
operations in the Philippines in the preceding year of HK$163.5 million,
the Group'’s underlying net profit would have decreased by 11.2% as
compared to HK$978.6 million for the preceding year.

The Group's profit attributable to owners of the Company was HK$897.3
million (2020: HK$1,624.6 million), decreased by 44.8% as compared to
the preceding year. Basic earnings per share of the Group was HK60.4
cents (2020: HK109.4 cents), dropped by the same magnitude.

SEGMENT RESULT ANALYSIS

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

Segment result of the property development segment slightly declined
by 3.5% to HK$735.8 million (2020: HK$762.1 million), mainly due to less
projects completed during the FY2021 and sales recognition of major
projects such as Poggibonsi in Hong Kong and inventory sales of Oasis
One and Elite House in mainland China. For the preceding year, segment
result mainly represented sales recognition of Riviera One, Oasis One, as
well as inventory sales of Elite House in mainland China. As at 31 March
2021, the Group has HK$767.8 million contracted but unrecognised
property sales.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

Segment result of the property investment segment declined by 0.8% to
HK$539.2 million (2020: HK$543.8 million) mainly due to the renovation
works undertaken during the FY2021 on West Gate Tower which have
affected the occupancy rates. Apart from this, the overall performance of
investment properties portfolio remained stable. During the FY2021, the
Group has strengthened the overall earnings potential of the portfolio
with the acquisition of United Daily News Centre, an industrial building
and disposal of non-core residential rental properties in Hong Kong.
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SERVICES PROVIDED AND HOTEL OPERATIONS

Services provided and hotel operations segments were hit hardest by
COVID-19 pandemic and the social distancing measures, two of the
Group's businesses that rely heavily on tourism and travel.

Despite the impact of COVID-19 pandemic on the usage of the Group's
transportation and the services and facilities of Discovery Bay Golf Club,
Discovery Bay Recreation Club and Club Siena, with various grant and
subsidies under the Government's Anti-epidemic Fund and the 5-year
Special Helping Measures availed to the Group's services providers, the
Group's services provided segment’s contribution of HK$90.3 million (2020:
HK$39.5 million) increased by 128.6%. The Group has also adopted cost
saving measures and flexible servicing schedule to cope with the
challenging times.

The Group's hotel occupancies, especially that of The Sukhothai Bangkok,
have been greatly impacted by the lockdown in Bangkok since the
outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic. Occupancy of The Sukhothai Bangkok
has dropped to historically low level and the segment result plummeted
to a loss of HK$88.0 million (2020: loss of HK$32.8 million). Auberge
Discovery Bay Hong Kong, benefited from the strong local demand for
staycations and promotion packages, has managed to achieve above-
the-market performance in occupancy. Besides, proactive measures have
been deployed by the Group to reduce operating costs to alleviate the
financial burden.

HEALTHCARE

Though healthcare segment’s contribution of HK$11.3 million (2020:
HK$150.2 million) decreased by HK$138.9 million, the overall
performance was stable as if the one-off gain of HK$163.5 million on
disposal of its medical operations in the Philippines in the preceding
year was excluded.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

NET DEBT AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had bank balances and cash of
HK$3,060.9 million (2020: HKS$2,511.4 million) and a net debt of HK4,623.9
million (2020: HK$4,809.8 million) after deducting total bank borrowings
and other loans of HK$7,684.8 million (2020: HK$7,321.2 million).
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As at 31 March 2021, about 37% of the Group’s bank balances and cash
were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, 47% in Renminbi, 2% in US
dollars, 6% in Japanese Yen, 5% in Singapore dollars and the remaining
were mainly in Thai Baht.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group's debt portfolio comprised of primarily
bilateral and syndicated bank loans to finance its working capital and
development projects. The unlisted notes were fully redeemed in May
2020 and the Group may continue to tap into capital market through
Medium Term Note programme or standalone issuance when necessary.

The maturity profile of bank borrowings and other loans were 10.1% (2020:
56.1%) falling within one year, 1.4% (2020: 6.3%) falling between one and
two years and 88.5% (2020: 37.6%) falling between two and five years.

As at 31 March 2021, all bank borrowing and other loans were at floating
rate bases. About 87% of the Group's total bank borrowings and other
loans were denominated in Hong Kong dollars and the remaining were
in Japanese Yen.

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUND AND GEARING

As at 31 March 2021, the shareholders’ funds of the Group increased by
HKS$1,616.5 million to HK$23,683.9 million (2020: HK$22,067.4 million).

The Group's gearing ratio was 19.5% (2020: 21.8%) as calculated by the
Group's consolidated net borrowings to the shareholders’ funds as at 31
March 2021.

AVAILABILITY OF FACILITIES

Total available loan facilities as at 31 March 2021 were HKS$10,461.0
million (2020: HK$12,820.6 million), of which 95.2% were committed.

As at 31 March 2021, the unutilised credit facilities were approximately
HK$2,772.4 million (2020: HKS$5,495.6 million). The reduction was mainly
attributable to refinancing of a syndicated loan facility for a lower size
with more favourable terms and redemption of the Group's unlisted
notes. The Group closely monitors its liquidity requirements and arranges
financing for its development projects and operations as and when
appropriate.
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During the FY2021, the Group refinanced notes amounted to HK$798
million and syndicated loan of HK$2,300 million with new corporate loan
and lowered the average financing cost to 14% from 3.0% in the
preceding year.

With the unutilised loan facilities, cash on hand and expected cash flows
from operations, the Group has sufficient financial resources to fund its
current commitments and future potential investment opportunities
ahead.

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has centralised treasury functions and adopted a conservative
approach for its treasury management. The Group closely reviews and
monitors its foreign currency exposure. To manage foreign currency
exposure in certain overseas investments, the Group maintains certain
naturally hedged positions and will make any swap or future
arrangements as appropriate. The Group’s banking facilities are
principally on floating rate basis and interest rate swaps will be employed
to manage interest rate risk for its short to medium term borrowings
when appropriate and necessary.

The use of derivative financial instruments is strictly controlled and are
primarily used for management of interest rate and currency exposures.
It is the policy of the Group to restrict the use of financial derivatives for
speculative purpose.

MAJOR ACQUISITIONS AND PROJECTS

In June 2020, the Group acquired a plot of land in Lin‘an, Hangzhou City,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC at a consideration of HK$557 million. 50% of
the consideration was paid and the balance payment will be made in
July 2021.

In January 2021, the Group purchased United Daily News Centre, a
16-storey industrial building in To Kwa Wan, Kowloon at a consideration
of HK$310 million. The building is currently held as an investment
property but is under planning for redevelopment into residential
building.
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In March 2021, the Group paid a deposit of HK$37.5 million to acquire 18
shops and residential units at Hollywood Road and Upper Lascar Row in
Sheung Wan for a consideration of HK$375.3 million. The acquisition was
completed in April 2021.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2021, certain bank loans of the Group were secured by
certain investment properties at the carrying value of HK$306.6 million
(2020: HK$315.4 million).

In addition, the loans to a joint venture by the Group amounting to
approximately HK$803.9 million (2020: HKS$771.9 million) were
subordinated to banks to secure a banking facility granted to the joint
venture for financing the development in Tai Po.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

The Group had financial guarantee contracts relating to a corporate
guarantee on the Group's proportionate share to the extent of HK$103.2
million (2020: HK$117.4 million) as at 31 March 2021 given to a bank in
respect of a banking facility granted to an investee company.

As at 31 March 2021, no guarantees were provided by subsidiaries of the
Company (2020: HK$342.3 million) in respect of mortgage facilities
granted to purchasers of the Group's properties.

The Company provided a corporate guarantee of proportionate share to
banks for securing a banking facility granted to a joint venture to finance
the development in Tai Po. The bank loan balance of proportionate share
of 40% is HK$1,052.5 million (2020: HK$779.3 million) as at 31 March
2021.

In addition, the Company provided a corporate guarantee to a bank
securing a banking facility granted to a subsidiary of the Company. The
related outstanding bank loan as at 31 March 2021 is HK$300 million of
which the guarantee is limited to 50% of the indebtedness.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have other significant
financial guarantee contracts as at 31 March 2021.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% AR

e
pwc

To the Shareholders of HKR International Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

WHAT WE HAVE AUDITED

The consolidated financial statements of HKR International Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 98 to 230,
which comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2021;

. the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

3 the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
a summary of significant accounting policies.

OUR OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BE RS

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

INDEPENDENCE

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

. Valuation of investment properties held by the Group and its joint
venture

. Recoverability of properties held for/under development for sale
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Key Audit Matter
ARETER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNBEAONNEEFARETSR

Valuation of investment properties held by the Group
and its joint venture

BRBRAEGEXNAFHEHNREYENEE

Refer to notes 4, 15 and 19 to the consolidated financial
statements

As at 31 March 2021, the investment properties held by the
Group were stated at fair value of HK$15,075.2 million with a
net fair value gain of HK$23.5 million recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. The Group also has
significant investment properties held by its joint venture.

Independent external valuers were engaged to determine
the fair value of the investment properties held by the Group
and its joint venture.
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Our procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

o We understood management’s controls and processes
for determining the valuation of investment properties and
assessed the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and the
judgement involved in determining the fair value;

o We evaluated the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent external valuers;
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Key Audit Matter
ARETER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNEBEANNEEFARETSR

Valuation of investment properties held by the Group
and its joint venture (Continued)

BREBRASERNAFFENREY XN 1EE (F)

For completed investment properties, fair value was generally
derived by the income capitalisation approach and where
appropriate, by direct comparison approach. Income
capitalisation approach was based on the capitalisation of the
rental income and reversionary income potential by adopting
appropriate capitalisation rates and prevailing market rents.
Direct comparison approach assumed sale of property in its
existing state based on comparable market transactions as
available in the relevant market.

For investment properties under construction, fair value was
derived using the residual method based on capitalising the
rental income that would be generated from the investment
property in its completed form and deducting development
costs together with developer's profit from the estimated
gross development value of the proposed development
assuming completed as at the date of valuation.

We focus on this area because the fair values of investment
properties are subject to estimation uncertainty.
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o We obtained the valuation reports and met the
independent external valuers to discuss the valuation
methodologies and key assumptions;

o We involved our in-house valuation experts and
assessed the valuation methodologies and the reasonableness
of the key assumptions used in the valuation of investment
properties, based on our knowledge of the property industry,
research evidence of capitalisation rates, prevailing market
rents and comparable market transactions for similar
properties, where applicable; and

o We tested, on a sample basis, the data used in the
valuation of investment properties, including rental rates from
existing tenancies and estimated cost to complete, by
agreeing them to the underlying agreements with the tenants
and approved budgets, respectively. We also compared the
estimated developer's profit to properties with comparable
stage of development, where appropriate.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the
methodologies used in preparing the valuations were
appropriate and the key assumptions were supportable in light
of available evidence.
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Key Audit Matter
ARETER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNBEAONNEEFARETSR

Recoverability of properties held for/under development
for sale

R EFRE/REFYE R I 4%

Refer to notes 4 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying values of the Group's
properties held for/under development for sale amounted to
HK$932.4 million and HK$2,131.6 million respectively.

Management assessed the recoverability of the properties
held by the Group based on estimates of the net realisable
values of the underlying properties. These involved the
estimation of selling price of the properties based on current
market prices of properties of comparable locations and
conditions, the costs necessary to make the sales and the
construction costs to complete based on the existing
development plans, where applicable.
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Our procedures in relation to the recoverability of properties
held for/under development for sale included:

o We understood and evaluated management’s internal
controls and processes in determining the recoverable
amounts of the properties and assessed the inherent risk of
material misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and the judgement involved in determining the
net realisable values;

o We evaluated and tested the operating effectiveness of
key controls around the property development cycle with
particular focus on, but not limited to, controls over cost
budgeting for estimated costs to completion, where
applicable;
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Key Audit Matter
ARETER

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNEBEANNEEFARETSR

Recoverability of properties held for/under development
for sale (Continued)

HRUEFRE/REFYE D A KB (E)

If the estimated net realisable values of the underlying
properties were significantly different from their carrying
values as a result of changes of market conditions and/or
significant variation in the budgeted development costs,
material write down for the properties held for/under
development for sale may result. Accordingly, the existence
of estimation uncertainty warrants specific audit focus and
attention on this area.
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o We evaluated management’s assessment on the
recoverability of the properties, and assessed the
reasonableness of key assumptions and estimates in
management’s assessment including:

(i) For the estimated selling prices, we compared, on a
sample basis, to the current market prices of properties of
comparable locations and conditions; and

(i) For the estimated costs necessary to make the sales and
costs to completion, we assessed the reasonableness of the
costs necessary to make the sales and the latest budgets of
total construction costs and tested, on a sample basis, to
committed contracts and other supporting information.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the key
assumptions in the recoverability assessment were supportable
in light of available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BE RS

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2020/2021
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. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Ho Chiu Ping, Dennis.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
BEORKESMEHEAR
Certified Public Accountants

HEEEED

Hong Kong, 23 June 2021
B 20215F6 A23H
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & Z2021F3A31HIEFE

2021 2020
Notes HK$'M HK$'M
P &£ BEET BEBT

e

Revenue WA 5 3,942.3 4,696.5
Cost of sales 3 € B R (2,159.0) (2,756.1)
Gross profit Bl 1,783.3 1,9404
Other income Hfb g A 296.2 1682
Other gains and losses Hia Wz Kk EE 7 83.3 456
Selling, administrative and other operating HE TR RHEMEERS

expenses (677.8) (494.4)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB ARz WS 36 - 1825
Gain on revaluation of certain properties upon ETYWELRBIELEDMEN

transfer from properties held for sale and HEERRPYEERS

properties under development for sale to WEMER 2 &G

investment properties 15 - 297.6
Change in fair value of investment properties KEMENFLEE

Realised gains on disposals HER 2B ERE S 15 3.5 33

Unrealised gains AEIH W 15 20.0 144.1
Finance costs DR = 8 (88.3) (271.8)
Share of results of associates DAGEE QR EE (0.1) ©.1)
Share of results of joint ventures DIEEERAREE 220.6 506.6
Profit before taxation B F AT v A 9 1,640.7 2,522.0
Taxation g 10 (512.1) (837.7)
Profit for the year KEE m H 1,128.6 1,684.3
Profit for the year attributable to: B FEAR AR F s A

Owners of the Company ViN/NEETE7 = IN 1 897.3 1,624.6

Non-controlling interests FE1E AR FE 2 231.3 59.7

1,128.6 1,684.3
HK cents HK cents
Al Al

Earnings per share FRAF 14

Basic 2R 60.4 109.4

Diluted g 60.4 109.4

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2020/2021



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income
meEmkHMEENGEE

For the year ended 31 I\/\arch 2021 EE2021F3A318IEFE

2021 2020
HK$'M HKS'M
BEAET BEAT
N
Profit for the year N 4E JE 55 F 1,128.6 16843
Other comprehensive income/(expense): Emermmbas/(AX):
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss B rEEH P HE B EA
Investments in equity instruments measured at 1% A P {E 5t )\ HEfv2mEKmFrE
fair value through other comprehensive ZIRARTBAKE
income:
Fair value changes during the year FRAANFEZH (3.5) (30.0)
Deferred tax arising from fair value changes NP EEHEE ZELERIE (0.7) 1.0
Revaluation gain on property, plant and ME BMERRBERZRE
equipment upon transfer to investment E S =R Ll
properties - 15.7
Share of asset revaluation reserve of a joint DIHEE QAR EEEGHFEE
venture - 3.2
(4.2) (10.1)
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit  HiZ st @ B » B F 1% 2 EH
orloss
Exchange differences arising from foreign joint BINEERNRELAZER =5
ventures 563.7 (388.0)
Exchange differences arising from translation of ~ #HE HE B INE K E AL 2 [E K
other foreign operations ZEE 411.6 (295.7)
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal/ RN A &) B /8 S R
deregistration of foreign subsidiaries iR [ [ 7, G5 15 (77.8) (16.4)
897.5 (700.1)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) for AFEEEMmEEmKE/ (FAX)
the year (net of tax) (B FIER) 893.3 (710.2)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEErEKFLAEE 2,021.9 974.1
Total comprehensive income attributable to: THEGEEE SR :
Owners of the Company ZIN/NETE RSN 1,790.6 906.5
Non-controlling interests FE 12 A b 2 231.3 67.6
2,021.9 974.1

HREXEREEERDF 20202021 £ Q9
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B ISR &

At 31 March 2021 7202143 H31H

2021 2020
Notes HK$'M HKS'M
B 5 BEART BEATT
N
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties wEWE 15 15,075.2 14,766.5
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE RERE 16 2,768.0 2,724.8
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 17 103.0 716
Interests in associates iR l/NC P 18 - =
Interests in joint ventures ABEDNRZER 19 9,643.0 9,046.7
Properties held for development for sale HHESLEREDE 23 932.4 =
Equity instruments measured at fair value BAFEFAREMEZE
through other comprehensive income WaHstEzRAT A 20 52.6 55.9
Financial assets at fair value through profit or BRATFEFABRZZ
loss TREE 20 527.3 4888
Investments in debt instruments measured at RBHEK AT EZER
amortised cost TEKE 20 85.1 81.1
Other assets HEm&EE 21 335.7 212.7
Deferred tax assets EERIHEE 31 113.9 394
29,636.2 27,4875
Current assets MEE E
Inventories e 22 443 438
Properties held for sale RELEMmE 2,205.1 2,584.3
Properties under development for sale HEEZRERYE 23 2,131.6 3,297.6
Trade receivables EIE 5 EBRNR 24 79.5 29.5
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e BANFBERAEM
J& s k1A 25(a) 733.9 1,039.8
Amounts due from associates & U Bt & A |l ,T/\ R IE 18, 25(b) 4.1 4.1
Amounts due from joint ventures =R /NETE S| 25(c) 193.3 1889
Investments in debt instruments measured at 2 # 5 W ZiN Ef"i 2B
amortised cost THEKE 20 26.8 300
Taxation recoverable ] 3R [O] §i I8 29.3 240
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRARIRE 25(a), 34(c) 3,060.9 25114
8,508.8 9,7534
Current liabilities mEAE
Trade payables, provision and accrued charges B B SRR - #E &
Bt &R 26 1,032.2 1,289.1
Deposits received and other financial liabilities cWiRE REMES B E 151.7 1934
Contract liabilities aHBE 27 300.2 1,204.9
Bank and other loans due within one year —FREHBZRITR
Hth B 3 28 776.8 4,1088
Lease liabilities HERE 29 18.9 17.3
Other liabilities due within one year —FRIPZEMERE 30 295.0 3506
Taxation payable FERT B IE 463.3 2493
3,038.1 74134
Net current assets MEEEFE 5,470.7 2,340.0
Total assets less current liabilities REERLBAEG 35,106.9 29,827.5

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2020/2021



2021 2020
Notes HK$'M HKS$'M
P &£ BEET BEBT

e

Non-current liabilities EnBEE

Contract liabilities AHEaE 27 30.3 =
Bank and other loans due after one year —FRIBA2BITR

H &R 28 6,908.0 32124
Lease liabilities HE&E 29 57.9 65.7
Other liabilities due after one year —FRIBzHMEE 30 1,037.0 1,330.5
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIBRE 31 469.0 4727
8,502.2 5,081.3
26,604.7 24,746.2

Capital and reserves BEARKR B
Share capital % 2% 32 371.3 3713
Reserves &1 23,312.6 21,696.1
Equity attributable to owners of the Company KANREA AEMLEZR 23,683.9 22,0674
Non-controlling interests FE1E AR fE 2,920.8 2,678.8
26,604.7 24,746.2

The consolidated financial statements on pages 98 to 230 were £ 98H £ F230B &4 A MKz 2 12021
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 June  “Fe B3R EB =i A M IERETIZ  YH T

2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

TANG Moon Wah
Managing Director
w2
EEELIE

IEERERE

NGAN Man Ying
Executive Director
BANE
HITEE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

1\

e
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & Z2021F3A31HIEFE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & Z20213 8318 IEFE

2021 2020
Notes HK$'M HK$'M
P &£ BRERT BEATT

e

Cash generated from operations LEMB/RE 34(a) 1,441.5 13575
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ERNEBMNEH (37.6) (54.6)
Overseas tax paid BAEINR IR (444.3) (5983)
Net cash from operating activities BB XTSRS F A 959.6 704.6
Investing activities REEE
Repayment of loan from a joint venture AEENFEEERK 79.5 3789
Cash distribution from a joint venture KEAZELNFMNESHIK 110.1 =
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEWE WMEMEREZ
equipment FT 18 5018 0.8 0.8
Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries HENBARIZRERA
R 36 - 19238
Redemption of investments in debt instruments & Bl 1R 5 Ak A58 2
measured at amortised cost BEHRLAKE 30.0 279
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair ~ HE&EZ QA FEF ABRZ
value through profit or loss CREEZFHIE 20.1 332
Interest received B F B 17.2 292
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties & 1% & ¥ 2 2 Fr 15 7018 15 147.1 24.6
Repayment of loans from associates B NFEEEN - 4.0
Capital injection to a joint venture AETEERNA (2.4) =
Loans to joint ventures EXRTEERA (104.7) (204.4)
Additions of investment properties REREYE (444.3) (247.4)
Additions of property, plant and equipment NBEYE BMENMEKE (276.2) (467 4)
Addition of investments in debt instruments REREHKATEZ
measured at amortised cost BB LERKRE (31.0) (50.7)
Addition of financial assets at fair value through R B A FE 5T A E 4th
other comprehensive income THKE EREE - (52.5)
Addition of financial assets at fair value through ~ AEBIR AT ETABZR 2
profit or loss SREBEE (48.6) (92.3)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiaries WEEHT B AR 2R e R
SFEE 35 - (758.9)
Net cash used in investing activities KETZEMAIR &35 (502.4) (1,182.2)
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2021

Note HKS$'M
B 3 BEAETRL

2020
HK$'M
BEATT

Financing activities mE T E
New bank and other loans raised IR IT R EME R 4,913.4 3,215.0
Advance from a non-controlling shareholder FE 78 A% A% B EA R - 1022
Advance from a joint venture RN E- P - 1756
Club debentures issued BOISMES 2.4 =
Repayment of bank and other loans EBRFETREMER (4,520.7) (2,597.3)
Interest paid B F & (119.1) (267.6)
Dividends paid 2k % 2 (163.4) (163.4)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEAaE (23.7) (26.0)
Repayment of shareholder loan to a MIEIERER R EER R
non-controlling shareholder I=E (195.7) (2.6)
Dividend paid to a non-controlling shareholder 2 [A] FE 422 A% A% B Ik 1 IR 2 - 6.0)
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities mMEES(FTE)/MERS
- (106.8) 4299
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash RekBEEEEE 2
equivalents 0/ Crk ) F 58 350.4 47.7)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FF#] 2 IR & KIR& ZEIE B 2,511.4 26109
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EREEH s wE 199.1 (51.8)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRZEBEFRSEEEE 340 3,060.9 25114
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M ISR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & Z2021F3A31HIEFE

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

HKR International Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated in the
Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information
section of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
development, management and provision of essential and recreational
services for residential housing and leisure projects in Discovery Bay,
Lantau Island, other property development, property investment, hotel
operations and provision of healthcare services. The Group's associates
and joint ventures are principally engaged in property development and
property investment.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the functional currency of the Company.

2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”") for
the first time in the current year:
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Conceptual Framework for Revised Conceptual Framework for

Financial Reporting 2018 Financial Reporting
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In addition, the Group has early adopted Amendment to HKFRS 16
“COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions” ahead of its effective date and
applied the practical expedient to all its COVID-19 related rent
concession from 1 April 2020. The amendment provides an optional
practical expedient allowing lessees to elect not to assess whether a rent
concession related to COVID-19 is a lease modification. Lessees adopting
this election may account for qualifying rent concessions in the same
way as they would if they were not lease modifications. The practical
expedient only applies to rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the following
conditions are met: a) the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as, or less than,
the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change; b)
any reduction in lease payments affects only payments due on or before
30 June 2021; and ¢) there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has
had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & Z=2021F3831HLEFE

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT

YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 39,

HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

Annual Improvements

Accounting Guideline 5
(Revised)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5

(2020)

Insurance Contracts

Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

Leases

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current
Definition of Accounting Estimates

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform Phase 2

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018—
2020 Cycle

Merger Accounting for Common Control
Combinations

Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand

The Group anticipates that the application of above new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for certain properties and financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment’, leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 16 “Leases”, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
“Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset taken into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which are transacted
at fair value and a valuation technigue that unobservable inputs is to be
used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition the results of the
valuation technique equals the transaction price.
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In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or

indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Group.
Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and

circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above.
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When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an
investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in
an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

° the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size
and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

° potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders or
other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

° any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the
Group has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the relevant
activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting
patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss from the date the Group gains control until the date
when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from
the Group’s equity therein, which represent present ownership interests
entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & Z=2021F3831HLEFE

BUSINESS COMBINATION

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee
Benefits” respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment arrangements of
the Group entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 at the
acquisition date (see the accounting policy below);

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations” are measured in accordance with that
standard; and

° lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the present value
of the remaining lease payments (as defined in HKFRS 16) as if the
acquired leases were new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases
for which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months of the acquisition
date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low value. Right-of-use assets are
recognised and measured at the same amount as the relevant lease
liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the
lease when compared with market terms.
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Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree,
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment,
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant subsidiary’s net
assets in the event of liquidation are initially measured at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that
arise from additional information obtained during the “measurement
period” (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about
facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration that do
not qualify as measurement period adjustments depends on how the
contingent consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured to
fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with the corresponding gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss.
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ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY NOT CONSTITUTING A
BUSINESS

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that do not
constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises the individual
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed by allocating the
purchase price first to investment properties which are subsequently
measured under fair value model, and financial assets and financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining balance of the
purchase price is then allocated to the other identifiable assets and
liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase.
Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase
gain.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

Ajoint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint
control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements of associates and joint
ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture. Changes in net
assets of the associates and joint ventures other than profit or loss and
other comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such changes
resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When the
Group's share of losses of an associate or a joint venture exceeds the
Group's interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net
investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint
venture.
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The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the
interest in an associate or a joint venture may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment
is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent
that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group's consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or
joint venture that are not related to the Group.

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is
satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good and service (or a bundle of
goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group's performance as the Group performs;

° the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.
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Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”. In contrast, a
receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e.
only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or
an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same contract are
accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations (including
allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance obligations, the
Group allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service underlying
each performance obligation is determined at contract inception. It
represents the price at which the Group would sell a promised good or
service separately to a customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not
directly observable, the Group estimates it using appropriate techniques
such that the transaction price ultimately allocated to any performance
obligation reflects the amount of consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised goods
or services to the customer.
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Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
is measured based on output method, which is to recognise revenue on
the basis of direct measurements of the value of the goods or services
transferred to the customer to date relative to the remaining goods or
services promised under the contract, that best depict the Group’s
performance in transferring control of goods or services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to consideration in an
amount that corresponds directly with the value of the Group's
performance completed to date, the Group recognises revenue in the
amount to which the Group has the right to invoice.

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised
amount of consideration for the effects of the time value of money if the
timing of payments agreed (either explicitly or implicitly) provides the
customer or the Group with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer. In those circumstances, the
contract contains a significant financing component. A significant
financing component may exist regardless of whether the promise of
financing is explicitly stated in the contract or implied by the payment
terms agreed to by the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and transfer of the
associated goods or services is less than one year, the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the transaction price for any
significant financing component.

For advance payments received from customers before the transfer of
the associated goods or services in which the Group adjusts for the
promised amount of consideration for a significant financing
component, the Group applies a discount rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and the customer
at contract inception. The relevant interest expenses during the period
between the advance payments were received and the transfer of the
associated goods and services are accounted for on the same basis as
other borrowing costs.
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Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that the Group
incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it would not have
incurred if the contract had not been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales commissions) as an asset if it
expects to recover these costs. The asset so recognised is subsequently
amortised to profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with
the transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which the assets
relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all incremental
costs to obtain a contract if these costs would otherwise have been fully
amortised to profit or loss within one year.

LEASES

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative standalone price of the lease component and the aggregate
stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease component on the
basis of their relative stand-alone prices.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to leases
of buildings and office equipment that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. Lease payments on short-term lease are recognised as expense
on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.
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Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,
less any lease incentives received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling
and removing the underlying assets, restoring the site on which it is
located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories.

Except for those that are recognised as investment properties and
measured under fair value model, right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the lease term
are depreciated from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of
investment property as a separate line item on the consolidated
statement of financial position. Right-of-use assets that meet the
definition of investment property are presented within “investment
properties”.
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Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments that
are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise the option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by interest
accretion and lease payments.

The Group as lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance or
operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset
to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term except for
investment properties measured under fair value model. Variable lease
payments for operating leases that depend on an index or a rate are
estimated and included in the total lease payments to be recognised on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income when they
arise.
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Rental income which are derived from the Group'’s ordinary course of
business are presented as revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease components, the
Group applies HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customer” to
allocate consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease components.
Non-lease components are separated from lease component on the
basis of their relative stand-alone selling prices.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise, except for exchange differences on
monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for
which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore
forming part of the net investment in a foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the Group's
interests in associates or joint ventures.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group's operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (ie. Hong Kong dollars) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expenses items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of exchange reserve.
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On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the Group's
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a partial
disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a
financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation, attributable to owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements
that do not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint
control), the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. For properties under
development for which revenue is recognised over time, the Group
ceases to capitalise borrowing costs as soon as the properties are ready
for the Group's intended sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the related asset is
ready for its intended use or sale is included in the general borrowing
pool for calculation of capitalisation rate on general borrowings.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit before taxation because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests
in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on the tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same taxable entity
by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than freehold land and properties under construction as
described below). Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Freehold lands are not depreciated and are measured at cost less
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly attributable to bringing
the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of properties
which includes both leasehold land and building elements, the entire
consideration is allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement
of financial position except for those that are classified and accounted
for as investment properties under the fair value model. When the
consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease building
element and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land, the
entire properties are classified as property, plant and equipment.

If a property becomes an investment property because its use has
changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item (including
the relevant leasehold land) at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in asset revaluation reserve.
On the subsequent sale or retirement of the property, the relevant
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to accumulated profits.
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Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets, other than
freehold land and construction in progress, less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.

Hotel properties

Freehold land

Buildings, commercial and
leisure facilities

3-40 years

No depreciation

5-50 years, or over the lease term if
shorter

Leasehold improvements 5 years, or over the lease term if shorter

Furniture, fixtures and 3-7 years
equipment

Plant, machinery and 5-15 years
equipment

Ferries, launches and motor ~ 3-20 years

vehicles

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation (including properties under construction for such
purpose).

Investment properties also include leased properties which are being
recognised as right-of-use assets and subleased by the Group under
operating leases.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair value, adjusted to exclude
any prepaid or accrued operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

Construction cost incurred for investment properties under construction
are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the investment
properties under construction.
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An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals.

If there is a transfer from investment property carried at fair value to
owner-occupied property evidenced by the commencement of owner
occupation, the property’s deemed cost for subsequent accounting shall
be its fair value at the date of change in use.

The Group transfers a property from properties held for/under
development for sale to investment property when there is a change in
use to hold the property to earn rentals or/and for capital appreciation
rather than for sale in the ordinary course of business, which is evidenced
by the observable actions taken to support the change in use. Any
difference between the fair value of the property at the date of transfer
and its previous carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine whether there is
any indication that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets
not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication that corporate
assets may be impaired. If such indication exists, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-
generating unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of the corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-
generating units, with the recoverable amount of the group of cash-
generating units. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss
is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value
in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR/UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR
SALE

Properties held for/under development for sale are carried at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a specific
identification basis including allocation of the related development
expenditure incurred and where appropriate, borrowing costs
capitalised. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
the properties less estimated cost to completion and costs necessary to
make the sales. Properties held for/under development for sale are
transferred to properties held for sale upon completion. Properties under
development included in the current assets are expected to be realised
in, or is intended for sale in the Group’s normal operating cycle.
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PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Properties held for sale are completed properties and are classified under
current assets. Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost relating to the development of properties,
comprising lands and development costs, are included in properties
held for/under development for sale until such time when they are
completed. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
less all anticipated costs to be incurred in marketing and selling.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount
is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time
value of money is material).

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
except for trade receivables arising from contracts with customers which
are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL"), are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,
to the gross carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective
is to collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both selling and collecting contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.
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All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL, except
that at the date of initial application of HKFRS 9/initial recognition of a
financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost and debt instruments
designated as at FVTOCI

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for
financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost and debt
instruments/receivables subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost
of the financial asset from the subsequent reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit- impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

(i) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently measured
at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit
or loss on disposal of the equity investments, and will be transferred to
accumulated profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is
established, unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of
the cost of the investment. Dividends are included in the “other income”
line item in profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at
amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOC| are measured at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the
“other gains and losses” line item.
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Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit loss
(“ECL") model on financial assets (including investments in debt
instruments measured at amortised cost, trade receivables, loan to a
joint venture, loan to an investee, other receivables, amounts due from
associates, amounts due from joint ventures, bank balances) and other
item (financial guarantee contracts) which are subject to impairment
under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. The ECL
on these assets are assessed individually for debtors with significant
balances and/or collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.
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In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk, e.q.
a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor; and

° an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due,
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk on a debt
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the
debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting
date. A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has a
low risk of default, (i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and (i) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may,
but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers a debt
instrument to have low credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of “investment grade” as per globally understood
definitions.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Group becomes a
party to the irrevocable commitment is considered to be the date of
initial recognition for the purposes of assessing impairment. In assessing
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since
initial recognition of financial guarantee contracts, the Group considers
the changes in the risk that the specified debtor will default on the
contract.
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The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to
identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.

(i) Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event of
default occurs when information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has occurred
when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation.

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and there
is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss
given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition. For a lease receivable, the
cash flows used for determining the ECL is consistent with the cash flows
used in measuring the lease receivable.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is required to make
payments only in the event of a default by the debtor in accordance
with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly, the
expected losses is the present value of the expected payments to
reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that
the Group expects to receive from the holder, the debtor or any other

party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which the effective interest
rate cannot be determined, the Group will apply a discount rate that
reflects the current market assessment of the time value of money and
the risks that are specific to the cash flows but only if, and to the extent
that, the risks are taken into account by adjusting the discount rate
instead of adjusting the cash shortfalls being discounted.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for cases where
evidence at the individual instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped on the following basis:

° Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's trade and other
receivables, are each assessed as a separate group. Loans to associates
and joint ventures are assessed for ECL on an individual basis);

o Past-due status;
° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the
constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.
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Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowances are recognised at
the higher of the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9; and the amount initially recognised less,
where appropriate, cumulative amount of income recognised over the
guarantee period.

Except for financial guarantee contracts, the Group recognises reversal of
impairment or impairment loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception of
trade receivables, where the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial
asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the
Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to
accumulated profits.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification of debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.
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Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities, except for derivative financial liabilities, are
subsequently measured at amortised costs, using the effective interest
method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including bank and other loans, trade payables,
deposits received, advances from non-controlling shareholders,
advances from joint ventures and club debentures are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method. Club
debentures were issued to members at the principal amount and is
recognised initially at fair value. The difference between the initial fair
value and the principal amount is recognised as deferred income.
Deferred income is recognised to profit or loss over the terms of
debentures.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contracts are measured initially at their fair values. It is subsequently
measured at the higher of:

° the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance with
HKFRS 9; and

° the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amount of income recognised over the guarantee period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes/state-
managed retirement benefits schemes/the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing
similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments
at the grant date.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair
value of the share options granted is expensed immediately to profit or
loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in
share options reserve will be transferred to share premium. When share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to accumulated profits. Regarding to the share
options of the subsidiary, when share options are exercised after the
vesting date, the amount previously recognised in share options reserve
of a subsidiary will be transferred to share of net assets of subsidiaries
within non-controlling interests.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS/SUBSIDIES

Grants/subsidies from the government are recognised at their fair values
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant/subsidies will be
received and the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Government grants/subsidies relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to compensate. Government
grants/subsidies relating to the purchase of property, plant and
equipment are deducted from the cost of the property, plant and
equipment.

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the financial statements in the financial period when the
dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders/directors, where
appropriate.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The Group has considered the existing and potential impacts arising
from the COVID-19 when preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Assumptions and estimate are based on circumstances and
conditions available when the consolidated financial statements were
prepared and in particular, assumed that the current market condition as
a result of the COVID-19 is not a long-term norm. Given the severity,
duration and economic consequences of the COVID-19 are uncertain,
actual results may differ significantly from those assumptions and
estimates. The Group will remain alert and cautious on the ongoing
development of COVID-19 that may cause further volatility and
uncertainty in the global financial market, economy and business
environment, and will take necessary measures to address the impact
arising therefrom.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The followings are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimation, that the directors of the Company have made in the process
of applying the Group'’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.
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Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
directors of the Company have reviewed the investment property
portfolio of the Group and concluded that none of the investment
properties are held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time. Therefore, the directors of the
Company have determined that the “sale” presumption that the carrying
amounts of investment properties measured using the fair value model
are recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted. The Group has not
recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair value of investment
properties to the extent in which the disposal of those investment
properties are not subject to income taxes.

The directors of the Company also determined the investment
properties held by a joint venture whose business objective is to
consume substantively all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, the
directors of the Company have determined that the “sale” presumption
set out in HKAS 12 is rebutted.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

Management had made the following estimations that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements and a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2021 at their fair value of HK$15,075.2
million (2020: HK$14,766.5 million) (Note 15). The fair value was based on
valuation of these properties conducted by independent firms of
professional valuers (the “Valuers”). In determining the fair values of the
Group's investment properties, the Valuers applied a market value basis
which involves, inter-alia, significant unobservable inputs and significant
judgements, representing appropriate market rent, capitalisation rates
and adjusted market price that has taken into account of property-
specific adjustments including location and timing of referenced
transactions. In determining the fair values of the Group’s investment
properties under construction, the Valuers applied a market value basis
which involves, inter-alia, significant unobservable inputs and significant
judgements, representing appropriate market rent, capitalisation rates,
estimated construction costs to be incurred and developer's profit. The
management of the Company has reviewed the valuation techniques
and inputs for fair value measurements.
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As at 31 March 2021, the fair value of the investment properties held by
a joint venture amounted to HK$24,057.0 million (2020: HK$22,212.7
million) (Note 19) and the Group's share of the value of the investment
properties amounted to HK$12,028.5 million (2020: HK$11,106.4 million).
The valuation of such investment properties was conducted by an
independent firm of professional valuers (the “Valuer”). In determining
the fair value of the joint venture's investment properties, the Valuer
applied a market value basis which involves, inter-alia, significant
unobservable inputs and significant judgements, representing
appropriate rentals and capitalisation rates.

Properties held for/under development for sale

Management reviews the recoverability of the Group’s properties held
for/under development for sale amounting to HK$3,064.0 million (2020:
HK$3,297.6 million) (Note 23) with reference to current market
environment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of the assets may exceed its net realisable value.
Write-down for estimated irrecoverable amounts is recognised in profit
or loss when the net realisable value is below cost. The estimates of net
realisable value are based on the evidence available at the time the
estimates are made of the amount the properties held for/under
development for sale that are expected to realise. Actual realised amount
may differ from estimates or changes in facts and circumstances may
result in downward revision of estimated net realisable value of these
properties held for/under development for sale and additional write-
down may be required.

Interests in joint ventures

The Group determines whether interests in joint ventures are impaired
by regularly review whether there are any indicators of impairment of
the investments by reference to the requirements under HKAS 28 (2011)
“Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures” and HKAS 36. For
investments where impairment indicators exist, management estimated
the recoverable amounts of the investments, being higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use.

The measurement of ECL of the loans to joint ventures is measured as
either 12-month ECL or lifetime ECL, depending on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, through
the management’s critical assessment on the recoverable amounts
based on cash flows from underlying assets, the actual and expected
changes in business performance and general market default rate. If a
significant increase in credit risk of a receivable has occurred since initial
recognition, then impairment is measured as lifetime ECL.
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 W AR 7D EHEFR
SEHAEALED: DESR WER
& RERG(RFEY BERDEEER
%) BEEBRBRRE  SEEBPILK
£ EEERT2HD T -

The Group is organised into five operating divisions: property
development, property investment, services provided (clubs operation,
transportation and property management services), hotel operations
and healthcare. Each of the operating divisions represents an operating
and reportable segment.

WA 8
For the year ended 31 March 2021
BE201F3A3MALFE

(i) DISAGGREGATION OF REVENUE (i)

Property  Property Services Hotel
development investment provided operations Healthcare Total
MERRE YERE BRERE EEEE BERE #st
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M  HK$'M
BE#®Er HBHEERT HEERT HEERXT HEBRT AEAER
. ' ' ]
Types of goods or services: ERBRBEESE:
Sales of properties HEME 2,766.1 - - - - 2,766.1
Hotel revenue B IEBA - - - 1244 - 124.4
Provision of healthcare services REEERRERSE - - - - 132.8 132.8
Other services rendered IR E RS 133 29.4 397.5 - - 440.2
Revenue from contracts with REBFAHNZ
customers KA 2,779.4 29.4 397.5 124.4 1328  3,463.5
Rental income GEEAON 5.5 473.3 - - - 478.8
Consolidated revenue, as reported &M A - 10 2 3R 2,784.9 502.7 397.5 124.4 1328 3,9423
Geographical markets: #EWE
Hong Kong and Macau B RORMM 1,558.7 446.0 397.5 104.1 132.8  2,639.1
Mainland China Fh B A it 1,183.2 - - - - 1,183.2
Japan =N - 56.7 - - - 56.7
South Fast Asia REBk 43.0 - - 20.3 - 63.3
Total st 2,784.9 502.7 397.5 124.4 1328  3,9423
Timing of revenue recognition: W A RESLBS R ¢
A point in time AR B2 2,766.1 - 294.4 58.8 1328 3,252.1
Over time & B 1 133 29.4 103.1 65.6 - 211.4
Total Mt 2,779.4 29.4 397.5 124.4 1328  3,463.5
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & Z=2021F3831HLEFE

For the year ended 31 March 2020

HZE200F3A3NBIEEE

Property Property Services Hotel
development  investment provided  operations  Healthcare Total
MEBRE WMERE BEERE BEEXE BERE et
HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M
BEXAT BEAL BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAR
Types of goods or services: ERBREESE !
Sales of properties HEME 32103 = = = - 32103
Hotel revenue B - = = 2644 - 2644
Provision of healthcare services IR BB R IR = = = = 2589 2589
Other services rendered Tt E A AR 7% 78 283 4222 - - 4583
Revenue from contracts with RERFEHZ
customers WA 32181 283 4222 2644 2589 41919
Rental income N 47 4999 - - = 504.6
Consolidated revenue, asreported & & WA N2 1R 32228 5282 4222 2644 2589 46965
Geographical markets: HEmE
Hong Kong and Macau B KR 76 4718 4222 1532 1512 12060
Mainland China H B 3 32103 05 - - - 32108
Japan =N = 559 = = = 559
South Fast Asia RED 49 - - 112 107.7 2238
Total Bt 32228 5282 4222 2644 2589 4,696.5
Timing of revenue recognition: W ARG ¢
Apointin time N E (RS R 32103 - 3170 1263 2589 39125
Over time & B 78 283 105.2 138.1 - 2794
Total ) 32181 283 4222 2644 2589 41919
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(ii) PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS FOR CONTRACTS
WITH CUSTOMERS

Property development

Revenue from sales of residential properties is recognised at a point in
time when the completed property is transferred to customers, being at
the point that the customer obtains the control of the completed
property and the Group has present right to payment and collection of
the consideration is probable.

The Group receives 5% to 70% of the contract value as deposits from
customers when they sign the sale and purchase agreement. However,
depending on market conditions, the Group may offer customers a
discount compared to the listed sales price, provided that the customers
agree to pay the balance of the consideration early while construction is
still ongoing. Such advance payment schemes result in contract liabilities
being recognised throughout the property construction period for the
full amount of the contract price.

The Group considers the advance payment schemes contain significant
financing component and accordingly the amount of consideration is
adjusted for the effects of the time value of money taking into
consideration the credit characteristics of the Group. As this accrual
increases the amount of the contract liability during the period of
construction, it increases the amount of revenue recognised when
control of the completed property is transferred to the customer.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all incremental
costs to obtain a contract if these costs would otherwise have been fully
amortised to profit or loss within one year.

Property management

Revenue from property management represents charge-out collections,
which consist of payments in respect of the operation of the properties
which are payable by the tenants, are recognised over time using output
method when the services and facilities are provided. The Group applied
the practical expedient in HKFRS 15 by recognising revenue in the
amount to which the Group has right to invoice, since the Group is
entitled to bill a fixed amount in advance for each month according to
the terms of the relevant agreements. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the
aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied
contracts is not disclosed.

(i) REBFENZENER

MR R
KEHEEEMENRAREEX Y EZER
TEPHNKRAMER IXNZEEAMETFPE
BEERY R IR FI#E B & B 1S 35 B UK
I RATRE M EAE -

SEEEFZEREHZRAEZKRNEMNE
BEZ5ETNEREE - AT BFMR - &£
BAmErRHEZEMEEERLOITN
HEREFARBRYFEZBREA X NRE
Eih e REENFHEEHRNE@MY FEE
HERERANERERNANAE -

SERAZEFENRFEREEABEN
D RAEREREENEERE SERE
BRREENFEMARBRRKESE - ARZ
EEFRBEZE NN E THRENEGHNABESE
HENMRE SR EEFRERTELER
RH) WAL EE o

AT A EE & AR IR AR R AT — FRE
BNEREE ASESERAAUTEENZE
XHRERA

MEER

MEEBBARBREER(BEEHEL M
ZMELERIR) PR HEIRS KR B
) DA B th O FERR - AR O AR IR AR B 1 A 16K
SEERSARMBLBEESENERE ¥
SEREREAYBRELEMNEISHKANAIT
BENE BRASBERAAZENEREZ
WA o o028 B 75 3R & 2 A S5 155% AT AL &
DEERERAN IR ZERBBEL RKE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & Z=2021F3831HLEFE

Transportation

Revenue from provision of various transportation services in Discovery
Bay, including ferry, land transport and tunnel operation, is recognised
when the related services are provided.

Clubs operation

Revenue from using the club facilities in Discovery Bay by customers is
recognised over time during the period in which the customers are
entitled to use the facilities.

Revenue from sales of food and beverage and various services provided
in the clubs in Discovery Bay is generally recognised at point in time
when the good and service are provided.

Hotel operations

Hotel revenue from the room rental is recognised over time during the
period of stay for the hotel guests using output method. Revenue from
sales of food and beverage and other ancillary services provided is
generally recognised at point in time when the goods and services are
provided.

Healthcare
Revenue from healthcare services is recognised when the related
services are provided.

Other than property development, all the services income are for periods
of one year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price
allocated to the unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

(iii) TRANSACTION PRICE ALLOCATED TO THE
REMAINING PERFORMANCE OBLIGATION FOR
PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT CONTRACT WITH
CUSTOMERS

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 March 2021 and
31 March 2020 and the expected timing of recognising revenue are as
follows:

RiBEH

RS EREZBEIREGRSE  BEE
o ERERBEBEEE ZRARIEEAERS
Pl 75 B RERR o

=HES

EERBSEFERTHR MZWA 2FH
e {55 PR a5 e HA ] B8 er T T 3R

KERMREZERBEERREMBEHRSZ A
R 2 WA —BREHRE ®ERBE X E
Ry ] B HE AR o

B I T
REBREFHAZBERAREBIERAATH
AR HEERBRER - REERIEE RIE
HEMEERSE WA —BREREm KR
%HTE’]%,IIHTFﬁ%ﬁﬁEHUO

BERERE
B8 R 02 Al 7% U A 0 2 {14 AE B B 75 B RE AR

BROEZERIN IARBUARHE —FRHE
o RIFBFEM B REERF 155 AAHLE
ERERABHNZRHBERALRKE -

RENEBRREFAHNZ

i) 2ME
BRITEBAEENRZER

gJ‘

x

202193 A31H &2020F3831H %
TEAEE(CREKS T RERK) HR
BRTEEERWARBELNT :

@E:n:ﬁ%

Sales of properties

HEWE
2021 2020
HK$'M HKS'M
BEAT BEATT
e
Within one year —F R 767.8 1,908.7
Over one year —F P - 552
767.8 1,963.9
These amounts disclosed above do not include transaction price ENXFARB ZESETBHERENERER

allocated to performance obligations which have been satisfied but not

yet recognised due to variable consideration constraint.
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OPERATING SEGMENTS

Segment information

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by

operating and reportable segments for the year:

Property
development
MEER
HK$'M
BE#ER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # 20214

EESH
2 EBE ¥
NTREBELEERAZ
B2 WA RELE
Property Services Hotel
investment  provided operations
NERE BERE BEEXK
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BE#ET HBHEERT HEER

BoOMOMAFERSE

Healthcare Total
BRERE st
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEER

3ANALEE
Revenue 'ON
Segment revenue - sales to external 2 2 UL A - &
customers derived by the Group, LN &/\ &
an associate and joint ventures NRIHNBEP
ZHER 30156  2,170.8 397.5 124.4 1328  5.841.1
Excluding revenue of an associate and %4 4 B 4 2 7] )2
joint ventures BERAZKBA (230.7)  (1,668.1) - - - (1.898.8)
Consolidated revenue, asreported &R A IA - 12 2,784.9 502.7 397.5 124.4 1328  3,942.3
Results E4
Segment results - total realised results 2 Sf £ 45 - £ & -
of the Group, associates and joint ’a‘ﬁ EWNE] &/\ =
ventures (note a) NAIZEERE
B (Micta) 729.8 765.9 90.3 (88.0) 113 1,509.3
Excluding realised results of associates AR JE &£ B 5 15
and joint ventures not shared by AN D
the Group BERAZ
= Q REE 6.0 (226.7) - - - (2207)
Results attributable to the Group SEEGES 735.8 539.2 90.3 (88.0) 1.3 1,288.6
Unallocated other income RAAOBREMKA 91.5
Unallocated corporate expenses AARARER (196.4)
Finance costs and corporate level HEER KRR
exchange difference HzERZER (70.4)
Net unrealised gains on fair value REMELTEE
change of investment properties B2 REHR W
(note b) 528 (fit3Eb) 20.7
Net unrealised losses on fair value SEEGEERT
change of investment properties REEE#ER
attributable to the Group's interest 7 AP EEE 7
in a joint venture, net of deferred RELHBEBF
tax 8 HRET
RIA (5.4)
Profit for the year AEEHFI 1,128.6
Non-controlling shareholders’ share of 3E#22 % B 58 21
profit for the year REZER (231.3)
Profit for the year attributable to /NG XN A
owners of the Company AEEER 897.3

EREEFREBEBRAF 2020/2021 F#H
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & Z=2021F3831HLEFE

Property Property Services Hotel
development  investment provided  operations  Healthcare Total
MERE WMERE BEERE BEEXE BERE st
HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M
BEEAT BEAL BEAT HBHEAT BEBEAT BEAR
Forthe yearended 31 March 2020 & £ 20204F
3A3IBLEEE
Revenue A
Segment revenue - sales to external 3 EB U A - £ & -
customers derived by the Group, Ey’ﬁ ERAREE
an associate and joint ventures NEHINBE P
ZHE 4301.0 2,164.7 4222 2644 2589 74112
Excluding revenue of an associate and A BR Bt = 1\ 8] &
joint ventures BERARZHA (1,0782) (1,6365) = = - @n47)
Consolidated revenue, asreported &2 &M A - 10 2 R 32228 528.2 4222 2644 2589 46965
Results £
Segment results - total realised results 2 Zf %45 - £ & »
of the Group, associates and joint BENAIREE
ventures (note a) NAIZEERE
B (Msta) 875.2 7555 395 (328) 1502 17876
Excluding realised results of associates %A Bk 3k &= B {5
and joint ventures not shared by BENR R
the Group BEDRAZ
BEREE (113.1) 2117) = = = (3248)
Results attributable to the Group SEEGESR 762.1 5438 395 (328) 1502 14628
Unallocated other income FAoEEMEA 62.0
Unallocated corporate expenses KPR ATER (1743)
Finance costs and corporate level BEERRAR
exchange difference EEELES (2120)
Gain on revaluation of certain AHTHERFE
properties upon transfer from W K it
properties held for sale and HERRERME
properties under developmentfor ~ ERZIREYE
sale to investment properties 2 B 2485
Net unrealised gains on fair value REMEATER
change of investment properties B2 KRB M
(note b) 528 (Fit3Eb) 1333
Net unrealised gains on fair value EEEGEEERT
change of investment properties RIEEME R
attributable to the Group's interest 7 A EE & 2
in a joint venture, net of deferred RER WY @‘
tax B MRET
fR1E 164.0
Profit for the year REEZHEF 16843
Non-controlling shareholders’ share of JE#22 fi% B B 2 1
profit for the year AE B H (597)
Profit for the year attributable to N/NETE =N A el
owners of the Company AEEER 16246
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Notes:

(@) The segment results of the Group include the entire results of associates and joint
ventures, excluding the net unrealised gains or losses on fair value change of
investment properties net of deferred tax arising from change in fair value.

(b) The net unrealised gains on fair value change of investment properties for the year
ended 31 March 2021 of HK$20.7 million (2020: HK$133.3 million) represented the
unrealised gains on fair value change of investment properties of HK$20.0 million (2020:
HK$144.1 million) net of deferred tax credit arising from change in fair value of HK$0.7
million (2020: deferred tax charge of HK$10.8 million).

Segment profit/(loss) represents the profit earned by/(loss from) each
segment without allocation of unallocated other income, unallocated
corporate expenses, finance costs and corporate level exchange
difference, gain on revaluation of certain properties upon transfer from
properties held for sale and properties under development for sale to
investment properties, net unrealised gains on fair value change of
investment properties and net unrealised gains/(losses) on fair value
change of investment properties attributable to the Group’s interests in
a joint venture, net of deferred tax. This is the measure reported to the
chief operating decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment.

All of the segment revenue reported above is from external customers.

No analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by operating and
reportable segments is disclosed as they are not reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker nor otherwise regularly provided to the chief
operating decision maker for review.

By &E

) REZ D MEEABRBERRARAERRAZE2HME
,%fﬂf‘%ﬁ RRREAVEATEES 2 ARERWENE
BRE YHERRQTFESSHMESE ZREHIE -

b) Bl E2021F3A3NBILFE BREVMELAFEEF
Zik B W FEA2078 & B (20209F 1 13338 8
BIL)  BREVEATFEEH Z AZRIKRF 200858
BIL(Q00F 14 BEBBT)NBERAFEZEMmE
EZBREFRIER207E BB T (20206  BELEHELZ H
108EEBBT) ©

2 BB A/ (B 18) 18 % 7 BB ERER 2 A/ (B &
ZEE)  NEFADERD EEMBA - KD
ERRER MKEERLRAREmMIERYZ

ETOEBEBFELHENERFHERR
TYEEREREMER Z2ER KT KRE
MERATFEEH 2 RAERE R FEANEE
BIEEERARNRRENERD I A FEE
ZAREBHR W/ (BR)FE - ?M‘%Lk%ﬁlﬁ °
IR ERDPERKRBEFBRATIEEERR
EWRE 2B -

NEZRZABDABBABGEBINBEPL o

B ERBEREERATERDMEA D2 E
EZ&E\EZJJM'IZ%EE@%WI?FEEI%
LERRERIINEDRRBTEIELERE
EIERAT -

o
<
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & Z=2021F3831HLEFE

Other segment information H fth 5 &0 & R
Property  Property  Services Hotel Unallocated
development investment provided operations Healthcare amounts Total

NERRE NERE RERE EEXE BERE XoEEE s

HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M

BEET HE®RRT BEET BEER FHEEn HEERT HEER
e s B

For the year ended 31 March 2021 2202138318

Amounts included in the measure of segment 5t & 9 #1855

profit or loss: Frefses:
Revenue from inter-segment sales* DEEZHEE WA - (1.9) (5.0) (0.3) - - (7.2)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ % - BifE K& 316 2
e 234 18.2 485 71.6 6.0 114 179.1
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREESEZFE 3.9 - 13 - 13.6 34 22.2
Impairment loss reversed on loans to joint BOERTAERA
ventures ZREE ?‘,E - (0.3) - - - - (0.3)
Impairment loss on investments in debt REBHEKATEZ
instruments measured at amortised cost ERTEREZ
HEBE - - - - - 0.2 0.2
Net losses on financial assets at FVTPL BATEFABEL
TREEFRTE - - - - - 29 29
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plantand ~ tHE ¥ % - BE K
equipment Rz Wwm)/EE (03) 23 0.6 - 0.4 - 3.0
Interest income M EWA (33.4) - - (0.2) 0.2) (16.3) (50.1)
Finance costs Ezn‘*% ER 18 3.2 2.0 - 0.7 80.6 88.3
Income tax charge/(credit) NEML L/ (ER) 479.5 116 (0.1) (0.7) 13 20.5 512.1
Share of results of associates 2 5595 ERAEER 0.1 - - - - - 0.1
Share of results of joint ventures DEARERRESE 0.7 (226.7) - - - 5.4 (220.6)
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Property Property Services Hotel Unallocated
development investment  provided  operations  Healthcare amounts Total
NEER NERE BRERE BEEE BERR XoEL® w@ar
HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M
BEAT BEAT BEAT RABAT BEAT RBEAT BEAR
For the year ended 31 March 2020 BZE2020F3/31H
IEEE
Amounts included in the measure of segment 5t &9 218 25
profit or loss: FaEseE:
Revenue from inter-segment sales* DR 2 HE WA = a.1) a1 ©.1) = = (123)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1% * BiE R & & 2
e 208 202 447 65.5 74 103 1689
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 35 ﬁ BEEZHE 02 43 16 - 158 03 22
Impairment loss on loans to joint ventures FTRERRLZ
ﬁ@%ﬁ - 07 - - - - 07
Impairment loss on investments in debt REHEKAGTEZ
instruments measured at amortised cost BEEIAREZ
REER = = - - - 03 03
Impairment loss on other receivables Hio W HIE 2
HEBE = - - - 37 - 37
Impairment loss on property, plant and mE - BEREEL
equipment HEER = - - - 33 - 33
Net gains on financial assets at FVTPL BRATEGFABRZ
CREERE TR = = = - - (483) (483)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBRARZ W - - - - (182.5) - (182.5)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plantand ~ HEW ¥« KE K
equipment HfE 2 B/ () - 05 (02) = = 0.1 04
Interest income A S dA @1.1) (120) - (09) - (243) (583)
Finance costs HBEER 276 34 24 - 23 236, 2718
Income tax charge PGB i 6553 1397 40 28 198 161 837.7
Share of results of associates DIEBENREE 02 ©.1) - - - - 01
Share of results of joint ventures DMERENREE (1312) 214) - - - (164.0) (506.6)

*

Inter-segment sales are entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements, if  * DA ZIHENBRIBEREZE T2 6@ HE (N

any, governing those transactions, in which the pricing was determined with reference B )# 17 X S EBR D2 BB T H B H T B E £ K A
to prevailing market price or actual cost incurred, as appropriate.

Revenue from major products and services
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from its major I TAEEFEEJRRB WA DI :

products and services:

(RTERBRME)ETE -

TEEmREHE WA

2021 2020
HK$'M HK$'M
BEBETR BEAETT

e

Sales of properties HEYE 2,766.1 32103
Rental income e WA 478.8 504.6
Hotel revenue B JE WA 124.4 2644
Provision of healthcare services RHBEERERS 132.8 2589
Other services rendered REE MR 440.2 4583

3,942.3 4,696.5
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & Z=2021F3831HLEFE

Geographical information
For each of the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, the
Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and Macau, mainland
China, Japan and South East Asia.

The Group's revenue from external customers based on the location of
properties and goods delivered or services rendered, and location of
properties in the case of rental income, and information about its non-
current assets by geographical location of the assets are detailed below:

ih & & ¥}

H 22021F3A31H K2020%E3A318 I & F
B EEZEBMNNES KB - AEAH -
BANERET: -

SEREIBEEADE XNERIEHR
Rz EMREE  RESWKAME - KA
MEMEMAEE) ZWARBHEREEW
BUEBSDZIRBEEER ZFBHT

Revenue from Non-current
external customers assets (note a)
REMBEFZWA EREEE (K &Ea)
2021 2020 2021 2020
HK$’'M HKS'M HK$'M HKS'M

BEEET BEAET BHEER BAEAET

.

Hong Kong and Macau BB MBI 2,639.1 1,206.0 15,904.0 15,747.0
Mainland China & B A it 1,183.2 3,2108 3,511.8 2,758.8
Japan B A 56.7 559 1,125.1 1,157.1
South East Asia (note b) RET (D) 63.3 2238 1,789.9 840.0

3,942.3 4695  22,330.8 20,502.9
Notes: B 5T :

(@) Non-current assets excluded those related to financial instruments and deferred tax
assets.

(b) Revenue from respective country within “South East Asia” contributed less than
10% of the Group's revenue.

Information about major customers

The revenue from individual customer contributed less than 10% of the
total revenue of the Group for both years.
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6 OTHERINCOME

6 HMA

2021 2020

HKS'M HKS'M

BEBT BEBTT

Bank and other interest income RITREMF B U A 50.1 58.3
Other income (note) H iU A (B %) 246.1 109.9
296.2 168.2

Note: Included in other income are government grants and subsidies of HK$149.3
million (2020: HK$41.1 million) recognised by the Group during the year, which are
mainly contributed by the Employment Support Scheme, Anti-epidemic Fund, 5-year
Special Helping Measures and other government subsidies that compensate the Group
for staff costs and other expenses incurred.

7 OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

M HtRAREEERFENERZBITHE &E
Bh1403 B BH T (2020 - 411 EEB L) TBHXK B[R
MEIFE -BEREES AHRAFONERIREER
MBRFzEMEN UWHESEEEEZEIRAR
Hih -

7 HibhaREE

2021 2020
HKS$'M HKS'M
BEAET BEAT
Other gains/(losses) include the following: HE s/ (BB BE T &E :
Net gain on deregistration of subsidiaries BT B A 5 2 F W 77.2 16.8
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) HMNEE [ 5, F U ws/ (B3 18) 11.9 (11.1)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment H &% - B k&R E 2 Eig (3.0) (0.4)
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment ¥ % - & 5 & 5% i 2 B (B & 18 - (3.3)
Net (loss)/gain on financial assets at FVTPL EAFEFAEG L EMEEZ
F(BR) /M (2.9) 483
83.2 50.3
Impairment losses under ECL model, EHEEBBEERXT 2 REBIE
net of reversal, include the following: (MBpEE) BFETIEIE :
Impairment loss reversed/(recognised) on loans [0/ (FER)ERX T A ZL R A
to joint ventures Z R EEE 0.3 0.7)
Impairment loss on investments in debt REHEANAGTTE BB LA
instruments measured at amortised cost wEZBERBE (0.2) (03)
Impairment loss on other receivables H b fE WK IE 2 R E B 1R - 3.7)
83.3 456
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & Z=2021F3831HLEFE

8 FINANCE COSTS

8 HMBEHR

2021 2020
HKS$'M HKS'M
BEETT BEATT
Interests on TA I8 2 F E
Bank and other loans |ITRHEMER 95.3 2056
Advances from non-controlling shareholders FE 5 A% AR R E R 19.8 36.9
Lease liabilities HEAE 3.0 42
Finance costs from significant financing REEGHBEBBERBEXNS Z
component of contract liabilities W% E A - 255
Bank and other loans arrangement fees RITREMERLHEER 23.8 344
141.9 306.6
Less: Amounts included in the qualifying assets i : st A BB EZ &
(note) (Bt 3E) (53.6) (34.8)
88.3 271.8

Note: To the extent funds are borrowed generally and used for the purpose of
financing certain properties under development for sale, assets under construction and
investment properties under renovation, the capitalisation rate used to determine the

amounts of borrowing costs eligible for the capitalisation is 1.65% (2020: 3.43%) per F 1 343%) ©

annum.
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9 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

B

Al 2
2021 2020
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEETT

e

Profit before taxation has been arrived at after
charging/(crediting):

Auditor's remuneration

B W A e A 2 0 ER/ (GEA)

IR

ZBED I &

Audit services FET R 8.2 94
Non-audit services I AT AR 7% 2.0 29
Cost of properties sold EHEEWEKR 1,467.4 13723
Salaries, wages, bonus and other benefits IE #He BehEAMET 585.9 665.0
Retirement benefits schemes contribution R IKAE F ET &8I 3K 21.2 255
Staff costs incurred (including directors’ EELEETHRA(BIEEEHE)
remuneration) 607.1 690.5
Gross rental income under operating leases on:  REHE N2 & W A E%58 -
Investment properties WEYE (466.5) (493.0)
Other properties Hfih ¥ 3 (12.3) (11.6)
Less: Outgoings W 45,0 464
(433.8) (458.2)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BMELRXREZITE 179.1 168.9
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEECZITE 22.2 222
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10 TAXATION

10 1B

2021 2020
HK$'M HKS'M
BEETT BEAT
e
Hong Kong Profits Tax calculated at 16.5% of N E [ EHERR ﬁ s MR B 16.5%
the estimated assessable profit for the year AEZEBNG 136.2 33.7
Overseas tax calculated at rates prevailing in REBRZEEBRAZBEFEZ
respective jurisdictions N IE 224.7 3259
Land appreciation tax (“LAT") =+ b 1B T 242.7 401.8
603.6 7614
Deferred taxation for the year REEZRLERIA (91.5) 76.3
512.1 837.7
Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China ("PRC") on Enterprise  1RIEFRFE AR L FMBE ([ E]) D ERE R A
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT & H & i & fll - & B M B A &l R % M & 2

Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing
in the relevant jurisdictions for both years.

According to the requirements of the Provisional Regulations of the PRC
on LAT effective from 1 January 1994 and amended on 8 January 2011,
and the Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations of the PRC
on LAT effective from 27 January 1995, all gains arising from the sale or
transfer of real estate in the PRC with effect from 1 January 1994 are
subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from the sale of
properties less deductible expenditures including payments made for
acquisition of land use rights, costs and expenses for the development
of the land or for construction of new buildings and supporting facilities,
or the assessed value for old buildings and structures, tax payable
relating to transfer of the real estate and other deductible items
prescribed by the Ministry of Finance.
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REMmEFEEEMRDERREEZREAR
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BEETzh R L ERETIEMN RS
1%%ﬁﬂyat¢ﬂz¢lim%ﬁﬁgﬁ
1551 E e 48 B &9 48 7€ » 7199441 A1 8 AT
BB E M E 2 ok B R W as 7B B i (B 15
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The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before ~ AFEEFIE S B EHLRE B & AR AR A

taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows: ZEBERMT
2021 2020
HK$'M HKS'M
BEAT BEATT
e
Profit before taxation 23 %)EE A1l 4 A 1,640.7 2,522.0
Less: Share of results of associates W D IEEE AR EE 0.1 0.1
Share of results of joint ventures SEEENT XS (220.6) (506.6)
1,420.2 2,0155
Tax charge at the domestic income tax rate of RN BT 15 7 F R 16.5%5T & 2
16.5% mMmELX 234.3 3326
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose #7832 B W A 2 B #6552 & (52.6) (53.2)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax NAHBFASZ 2 BE &
purpose 59.2 68.5
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERRBEEBEBZHEZE 25.6 210
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised 1§ Fi i@ 1+ R FER 2 Tl JE &5 18 (3.8) 0.8)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating R H th B A R & 8 2 1B A A
in other jurisdictions MEANRZFE 50.9 1171
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences not KRR AR LR ZB o HREFE
recognised 0.4 0.1
Effect of LAT in the PRC PR MEER I FE 182.1 301.3
Withholding tax on undistributed earnings of BN B AR AR D IRBA 2 AN
foreign subsidiaries 25.6 50.1
Others Hib (9.6) 1.0
Taxation 71 18 512.1 837.7
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11 PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company comprises:

(@) Net unrealised gains/(losses) on change in fair
value of investment properties during

@ FAREVMERAFEEIZ
AEHR W/ (B18) F 5

ARRFEEARERFRE RN EIE

2021

HK$'M
BEAETRT

e

11 ARFHEBAEBEEFE
iz A

2020
HK$'M
BEABTT

the year
— The Group - £5 20.0 144.1
Deferred tax credit/(charge) EEFIER R/ (T H) 0.7 (10.8)
Attributable to non-controlling interests FE 158 A e 2w FE 1S 13.4 537
34.1 187.0
— Joint venture, net of deferred tax - 5 AR - IRELHIE (5.4) 164.0
— Gain on revaluation of certain properties - B TYERBELEYE
upon transfer from properties held for Lt EEREPME
sale and properties under EREREYER 2
development for sale to investment B - MBRIET
properties, net of deferred tax and FIE & I IR M =
non-controlling interest - 1315
28.7 482.5
(b) Profits excluding net unrealised gains on fair (b) BRBREEMELATFERER
value of investment properties W55 358 2 ;A 868.6 1,142.1
Net accumulated gains on change in fair value FANEHEMERBEFER
of investment properties, net of deferred tax BEaBER2BREMERTE
recognised in profit or loss in prior years for FE) o Rt FEE Nk
properties disposed of during the year EAE B IE 74.2 40
942.8 1,146.1
Sub-total ANGr 971.5 1,628.6
Less: Net accumulated gains on change in fair W FAEHEMERBAEFER
value of investment properties, net of EaBRoREMELTE
deferred tax recognised in profit or loss FEr 25T R kR
in prior years for properties disposed of IR E R I8
during the year (74.2) (4.0)
Profit for the year attributable to owners of RATHEE NEEREE R T
the Company 897.3 1,624.6
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12 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION

(a) DETAILS OF DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION ARE AS
FOLLOWS:

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the thirteen (2020: eleven)
directors were as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2021

—_
=

=]

REEWSRAER
EziE

EEMEFHROT

% &

(a)

BT B 134 (20209F 1 11RB)EE S A Z B
W

BZ2021F3A31HILLFE

Independent Non-executive Directors

Executive Directors (note a) Non-executive Directors (note b) (notec)
HTES (Wita) FUTES (With) BIFHTES (Wit
Cha Cha Chung Cha WongCha Cheung Fan Ho
Mou Mou  Cheung Sam Ngan Tang  Ronald Mou May Wing Hung Tang Pak
Sing Zing Ho Tin Man Moon  Joseph Daid Lung Lam Ling Kwai  Ching
Payson  Victor Koon Abraham Ying Wah  Arculli Johnson Madeline Linus  Henry  Chang Loretta Total
ERE SRR FEE BEOR BEXE BRE EEE ERE ILEE RAF UMk ¥E¥ kg 8
(notef) (noteg)  (noteh) (noteg)
(M &Ef) (BizEg) (BiiEh) (Mrztq)
HKS'M  HK$'M  HK$'M HKSM  HKS'M  HK$'M  HK$'M  HKS'M HKS'M  HK$'M  HK$'M  HKS'M  HKS'M  HK$'M

BEAT BE%R BEAT BEET PAET PEET PEER PEER EEET EEER BT EEERT BEER AEER

Fees e - - - - - - 0.1 0.1 0.2 04 03 04 04 19
Other emoluments Hin e
Salaries and other benefits ZEREMBF 35 10.2 0.6 29 0.6 55 - - - - - - - 233
Performance related incentive 448 (Ff 3 d)
payment (note d) 6.0 210 - 1.0 - 6.8 - - - - - - - 348
Ex-gratia payment (note e) HEFE (i ie) 20,0 - - - - - - - - - - - - 20.0
Total emoluments Meus 295 312 0.6 39 0.6 123 0.1 0.1 0.2 04 03 04 04 80.0
For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE2020F3831HIEFE
Executive Directors (note a) Non-executive Directors (note b) Independent Non-executive Directors (note ¢)
WITEE (Wita) ¥ (Witb) BUkHTES (Wi
Cha Cha Chung Cha  WongCha  Cheung Fan Ho
Mou Mou Sam Tang Ronald Mou May Wing Hung Tang Pak
Sing Zing Tin Moon Joseph Daid Lung Lam Ling Kwai Ching
Payson Victor ~ Abraham Wah Arculli Johnson  Madeline Linus Henry Chang  Loretta Total
e sRR ELE HRE  EE ERE IBEXE FAF  BER  HEY @Rs 4
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BEAT BEAn BEATL BEAT BEAT BRAT AEAL BEAT BEEN BEAL BEATL AEAR
Fees e - - - - 01 01 02 04 03 04 04 19
Other emoluments Hip@e
Salaries and other benefits FeREMRET 54 98 29 52 - - - - - - - 33
Performance related incentive B (Mekd)
payment (note d) 100 340 20 110 - - - - - - - 570
Total emoluments MesR 154 438 49 162 01 01 02 04 03 04 04 822
Notes: Mtz :
(a) For Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their services in @ FERFAHAITEEMEIEARSEARNT RE

connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the Group.

(b) The Non-executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for their
services as Directors of the Company.

(c) The Independent Non-executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly
for their services as Directors of the Company.

EEREHEABORYE -

o) ERAMTAHNIERTEEHE I ZRRELEARA
BT

© ERFITHBLFNTEETHEIERREFHEMER
NEEBEORT -
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(d) The performance related incentive payment is determined with reference to the
operating results of the Group and comparable market statistics of the Group, and
individual performance of the directors.

(e) The ex-gratia payment was given to the Executive Director to recognise his long
service and contribution to the Group.

() Mr.Cha Mou Sing Payson passed away on 6 November 2020 (PST).

(9) Mr. Cheung Ho Koon and Ms. Ngan Man Ying were appointed as Executive
Directors of the Company with effect from 1 February 2021.

(h) Mr. Chung Sam Tin Abraham resigned as Executive Director of the Company with
effect from 1 April 2021.

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join. No directors waived any emoluments
during both years.

(b)

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the five highest paid individuals of
the Group included five (2020: four) Executive Directors, whose
emoluments are disclosed above. One of the five highest paid individuals
of the Group were appointed as an Executive Director of the Company
with effect from 1 February 2021. The emoluments of the newly
appointed Executive Director (2020: one employee) are as follows:

EMPLOYEES’ REMUNERATION

o) EREDNSEEE ZKEFERALBRT S 8E
A Re 3 (R Bl R IR E -

@ FEFRERNTESTENFANRATREEEZ
RHIRS AR

0 % B % £ R 200511 H68 (K T HEHR)
Bt -

Q) REBIEERBEXEZTH2IF2A1HREZE
BARBRITES -

hELBEEB220F48 1B EBETAR AT
EE-

RMER SELTERAEEIMIERRER
EMAKEZME -KBMER BEEFN
REMME -

(b) EEME

HE2021F3A3HILEFE SEREZ&ESH
AT HAFP AL (Q020F : WR) BRITES
BEZHEN EXHE - REBRERS H
MALTH —RBBE2001F2A1BRLEZTA
HMITEE - XL EZTHITE S (20209 ¢
—ZEB)ZBHEWT :

2021 2020

HKS$'M HKS'M

BEBT BEBETT

. ————MMMM

Salaries and other benefits He MEMEF 4.0 44
Retirement benefits schemes contribution IR IKAE F FT 8 3K 0.1 0.1
4.1 45

The emoluments of the aforesaid Executive Director (2020: employee)
were within the following bands:

FHRMITEFTQRF :EE)ZCHESBER T
H 48 B -

2021 2020

HK$4,000,001- HK$4,500,000
HK$4,500,001- HK$5,000,000

4,000,001 7 JT - 4,500,000 7T 1 =
4,500,001 7 JT - 5,000,000 7T - 1
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13 DIVIDENDS

13 RE

2021 2020
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEETT

e

Final dividend paid for the financial year ended 31
March 2020 of HK7 cents (2020: final dividend
paid for the financial year ended 31 March 2019

RSB ZE20200F3 831 HIEHEBREE
2 REARE BERR 7811l (2020 4F ¢
IRNEZE2019F3 A31 B IEF B

of HK6 cents) per share FEZRPBEFReEN) 104.0 89.1
Interim dividend paid for the financial year ended & 15 & £ 2021 63 31 H L BT BUF E
31 March 2021 of HK4 cents (2020: interim 2 H AR B A48 Il (20205 ¢
dividend paid for the financial year ended 31 KA &L 220203 A31 B LEBF R
March 2020 of HK5 cents) per share FE2HHREGRRSEMWL) 59.4 743
163.4 163.4

The directors of the Company proposed a final dividend for the financial
year ended 31 March 2021 of HK5 cents (2020: for the financial year
ended 31 March 2020 of HK7 cents) per share totaling approximately
HKS74.3 million (2020: HKS104.0 million).

RABEERERZ2021F3A31 B ILM B E
[§ 2 REARR B & M58 1L (20204 « & = 20204F
3AIBELEMBFEESR7EMN) - & £4743
BAEB T (20205 - 1040B BB L) ©
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14 EARNINGS PER SHARE 14 BRZF
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to ARG EAABGSRERN R BERF TR
owners of the Company is based on the following data: BT ASETE
2021 2020
HK$'M HKS'M

BEEART BEET

-

Earnings 2R
Earnings for the purpose of calculating basicand st E G E AR M #E R N 2 BT
diluted earnings per share (Profit for the year (RRRER NELAFEEREF)

attributable to owners of the Company) 897.3 1,624.6
2021 2020
I
Number of shares RE
Number of ordinary shares in issue during the year 5t E R ERE R 2 KFE B 21T
for the purpose of calculating basic earnings LBk EE
per share 1,485,301,803 1,485,301,803
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary share: BEEBNEBR 2 FE
Adjustment in relation to share options issued by FLAR R &) # 1T 2 D HARE(EH 2
the Company B - -

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for 5+ & 7 i% 2 58 21 F| 2 N F 15
the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per 3 38 i £t B
share 1,485,301,803 1,485,301,803

For the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, diluted earnings per share B AR D EIEE B R B EEAH - WE E 20015
was the same as the basic earnings per share since the share optionshad [ 202043 A31 B It FE TR #E 2 ) E T &
anti-dilutive effect. EXRBFIERE -
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15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

15 REWE

2021 2020
HKS$'M HKS'M
BEETT BEAT
Fair value A¥E
At beginning of the year F 1) 14,766.5 12,4346
Exchange translation differences PE X =% (12.0) (93)
Additions NE 444.3 2523
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 35) U B B /8 X A (Bff 5£35) - 760.0
Change in fair value recognised in profit or loss REZERZ AT EES
— Realised gains on disposals - HERZEERWZE 3.5 33
— Unrealised gains - AEHWE 20.0 144.1
Disposals H & (147.1) (24.6)
Transfer from properties held for sale (note a) EEBAFEDEWE (M) - 1,181.0
Transfer from properties under development for 88 & 4 1 & 3% & 4 % (Mt 31 a)
sale (note a) - 98.0
Transfer from property, plant and equipment ERAME  BE &&HE D)
(note b) - 29.2
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (note ¢) R E ¥ % - = & %4 (i sEc) - (102.1)
At end of the year FR 15,075.2 14,766.5

Notes:

(@) During the year ended 31 March 2020, properties with total carrying value of
HK$981.4 million at date of transfer were transferred from properties held for sale and
properties under development for sale to investment properties at the date of transfer,
which is evidenced by the observable actions taken to support the change in use. The
difference between the fair values of the properties and the carrying values at date of
transfer was recognised in profit or loss amounting to HK$297.6 million.

(b) During the year ended 31 March 2020, properties with total carrying value of
HK$13.5 million at date of transfer were transferred from property, plant and equipment
to investment properties at the date of end of owner occupation. The difference
between the fair values of the properties and the carrying values at date of transfer was
recognised in asset revaluation reserve and non-controlling interests amounting to
HK$7.8 million and HK$7.9 million respectively.

(c) During the year ended 31 March 2020, the uses of certain properties of the Group
have been changed from capital appreciation and leasing out for rental income to
owner-occupation. The investment properties amounting to HK$102.1 million at date
of transfer were transferred from investment properties to property, plant and
equipment at the date of commencement of owner occupation.

GEE

@ MEZ2020F3A3HEFE BEREAZEREA
BABAIBEBTZVECREREBHBELED
¥RHEPERRPVEEBREREMEURI R
FHAMKRRZAUBRTHAEE) MELAFERSE
EBCEEBEZEZECREBEXPER 28 A29768
BHETT -

(b) REE2020F3A3HIEFE BREEAZREA
BABSEEBTZYEECREZIRIIEAEZAEED
¥ BERREEREEZRENE - WEA T EEE K
EACZRAE ZBCREEEGHEERIFERERS
TR HRA/SEBETR/IIABET

© REBZE2020F383BLEFE SEETHEZA
PHEAGERIHAUIKRES)BAXEFAA-R
EEOHECEARIBEB TZREMEREIRSA
BERZBEBREMEEETYE  BEREE-
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For the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group disposed of

REE2021F N2020F3831BIEFE &8

certain investment properties and the details of which are as follows: HEETREMEZHBWOT -
2021 2020
HK$'M HKS'M
BEET BEAET
I
Sales proceeds received B U 4 E FTi5 sE 147.1 246
Original cost of acquisitions @il S N L (44.2) (5.9)
Accumulated gains on change in fair value BAFEERRZATEE
recognised in prior years E (99.4) (15.4)
Realised gains on disposal recognised FRHERERZEE R e
during the year 3.5 33

The Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation.
The management works closely with the qualified external valuers to
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model.
The management reports the findings to the board of directors of the
Company every half-year to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair
value of the property.

In estimating the fair value of the property, the highest and best use of
the property is the current use.

The fair values of the Group's investment properties at 31 March 2021, 31
March 2020, the date of transfer from properties held for sale and
properties under development for sale and the date of transfer from/to
property, plant and equipment have been arrived at on the basis of
valuation carried out on the respective dates by the following Valuers
with appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation
of similar properties in the relevant locations.

SEZRE= T RERMGEMETHEE:
BEEREAERINBEEMBEESIF J«/leﬁ_L
BEMNGEETEARBELNBARE BEEE
BYFRAARAEETCTERER UREY
ERTFERSZRA -

REFTMEZAFER MESEREDHE
BERE-

E B MN2021%3 8318 ~ 2020F3 831 8 -~ 8 #
ERIELEERELEZETWEZ B
LEEBE/EME BELMRKBERZIKREY
(7 VE DEATAEEZERKEBHE
BB EUMEMELSR 2 HERR
ERMETZHEETE °

Location of investment REMEEEZ
Name of valuer properties HEEZRE &
Cushman & Wakefield Limited Hong Kong and mainland China HEZTAR LT EA TR
JLL Morii Valuation & Advisory KK, Japan JLL Morii Valuation & Advisory KK. =
N&A Appraisal Company Limited ~ Thailand N&A Appraisal Company Limited gEl
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VALUATION TECHNIQUES

The fair value of investment properties located in Hong Kong is
determined either by using income capitalisation approach or direct
comparison approach. The income capitalisation approach is calculated
by capitalising the rental income derived from the existing tenancies
with due provision for any reversionary income potential. The direct
comparison approach assumes sale of property in its existing state by
making reference to comparable sales transactions as available in the
relevant market.

The valuation of investment properties under construction is determined
by residual method based on capitalising the rental income that would
be generated from the investment property in its completed form, and
has taken into account the developers’ profit and construction costs
already incurred as well as the estimated costs to be incurred to
complete the project.

The fair value of investment properties located in mainland China and
Thailand is determined by using direct comparison approach assuming
sale of the property in its existing state by making reference to
comparable sales transactions as available in the relevant market.

The fair value of investment properties located in Japan is determined by
using income capitalisation approach. The income capitalisation
approach is calculated by capitalising the rental income derived from
the existing tenancies with due provision for any reversionary income
potential.

SUMMARY OF FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY AND LEVEL 3
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

As at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, all investment properties of the
Group are valued by reference to a Level 3 fair value measurement.

EERD

NRBBNREVENRAFENDERARAZE
FOESLERLBEMEE - WA B R(LZE
BRENECEHREHEP WA E S AER
HEMEBEARCOWARNBEREMNE -
BEERLEAER2EHAMESAFSLA LR
ZHEXRGBEUADERERELEYMEMN
BT -

ERREVENEENIRESBEERIRE
MEEEZHERABRTENERREEM
S YA EBREAGEMNEREELEZESE
PRANERIR B 58 TS 2 4 2 fl st ARAS

RPEALNREENREYENRFETD
ERERLEE2ERAM SN FLA LT
ZHERGIBRUAMERBERELEMEM
BT -

MNRAANKREDENRFELERRAE
AAEEMEE - WMABROEEBE RNEHR
BAMPKEMNES W AZER S EFAEER
BEWAWEEBREMmatE -

RFEEARE=ZBERAFEFE
M=

M2021F3H31 8 K20205E3A31H - £B 2 FF
EREMENREEZE="BHRAFEFE(EHE-
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Level 3 valuation methodologies
Below is a table which presents the significant unobservable inputs:

EZBREESE
TRENERTABEH AR :

Unobservable inputs (note a)

TABESAYE (Ha)
Market rent (note b) Adjusted market price (note c)
Fair value Capitalisation rate (per square foot per month) (per square foot)
Lk EAGED) AETHER (i
AYE X[ (BASEAR) (BFAR)
Investment properties (note d)
BEME (MiEd)
Hong Kong
Industrial HK$370.8 million 3.500% to 3.875% HKS$14 to HK$39 N/A
(2020: HKS608 million) (2020:3.875%) (2020: HK$28 to HK$39)
T% 308E BB T 3500% % 3.875% 14T EBT TEA
(200%F : 608EBETT) (2020 : 3875%) (2020%F : 8B TTE39BT)
Commercial HK$9,205.4 million 3375%t0 7.250% HKS$18 to HK$82 N/A
(2020: HK$9,230.0 million) (2020:3.375% to 7.250%) (2020: HK$ 18 to HK$83)
GRS 92054BBHT 3375% 2 7.250% 18BTEBT TEH
(2020 : 92300 B A TT) (20204 : 3375%Z7.250%) (2020%F : 18 TEBHET)
Residential HK$2,752.0 million N/A N/A HK$7,400 to HK$31,700
(2020: HK$2,862.0 million) (2020 HK$7,300 to HK$31,700)
e 2S20BEBT @R @R 7408 TTE31,7008 T
(20204 : 28620 A EETT) (20204 : 73007 JL 231,700/ L)
Mainland China
HE A
Residential HK$21.6 million N/A N/A RMB11,300
(2020: HKS604 million) (2020: RMB10,200 to RMB11,300)
FE A6BEAT THEA TEA ARE113007
(2005 : 604BEAT) (2020 : AR%10200LE
AR¥11,3007T)
Thailand
ZE
Residential HK$347.3 million N/A N/A THB2,300 to THB7,600
(2020; HK$331.2 million) (2020: THB2,300 to THB7,600)
FE M3EBATL THEA TEA 23003 85 27,600 % $
(2005 : B2BEEBT) (20204 : 2300 K E7,600% %)
Japan
BA
Commercial HK$306.6 million 3.7% PY730 N/A
(2020; HK$315.4 million) (2020:3.7%) (2020 JPY730)
GES 3066E BT 37% 7308 TEA
(20205 : 3154B BB ) (2020% : 3.7%) (2020% : 730R )
Residential HK$801.5 million 3.3%103.9% JPY410to JPY510 N/A
(2020: HK$823.7 million) (2020:3.3% 10 3.9%) (2020: JPY410 0 JPY510)
F=x 80ISEEBT 33%Z39% 410BEZ5108E TERA
(200%F : 837BEBT) (2020 : 33%Z3.9%) (200%F : 410AEZE
510 B)
Investment properties under
construction
EERENE
Hong Kong
Residential HK$109.0 million N/A N/A HK$35,300
(2020; HK$103.0 million) (2020 HK$35,300)
FE 1090B BB T THEA THEA 35,3003 T
(2005 : 1030B BB T) (20204 : 3530038 TC)
Industrial (note e) HKS1,161.0 million 3.250% HKS23 N/A
(2020; HK$980.0 million) (2020: 3.250%) (2020 HK$23)
T (fske) 1610EBAT 3250% BET TEH

(20205 : 9B0BEEHTT)
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Notes:

(@) The relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value are (i) the higher the
capitalisation rate, the lower the fair value; (i) the higher the market rent, the higher the
fair value; and (iii) the higher the adjusted market price, the higher the fair value.

(b) The monthly rent takes into account the differences in location and individual
factors, such as frontage and size, between comparables and the property.

(c) Adjusted market price takes into account the recent transaction prices for similar
properties adjusted timing of reference transactions and property-specific adjustments
including nature, location and condition of the property.

(d) Fair value measurement of investment properties is positively correlated to the
market rent and adjusted market price, but inversely correlated to the capitalisation
rate.

(e) The Group has obtained approval to convert an investment property from industrial
to commercial use and the refurbishment works are underway. Such property is valued
at HK$1,161.0 million (2020: HK$980.0 million) as at 31 March 2021.

There were no transfers among different levels of the fair value hierarchy
in the current and prior years.

By &E

@ TABEHARBRERATFERZHEEARONE N X
ME ATEEE: (TEEeEs ATEES R
(NEFHETHERES  AFELSD -

() AREFRALBMEEY X HLE RERE=
(BlomERERNZEZR -

© BABTHERETREAERZEXFRHRZFAE
MEAMUZERSENEAE(BENE LS
B AEM) ©

o BREMENAFEFEEMSES REHBMHE
REEMRRE BEENEEAZEREH -

e SECBMEH—EREMEAIEEAPEARD
B TEEETHH IR - ZWER2021F38318
H1EA1,161.0 8 &% 7T (20204F : 9800 B BB TT) °

RAFERBEFE  RVFEERZTEE
Mz EWEEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & Z=2021F3831HLEFE

The movements during the year in the balance of investment properties FRNE=ZBH A FEFE T 2R EWEE &

under Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows: ZEEINT
Investment
properties
Investment under
properties construction Total
T
REWME REYEHE BEr
HK$'M HK$'M HK$’'M

BEEET ®BREERT BEAR

At 1 April 2019 20194 H 18 12,082.6 3520 12,4346
Exchange translation differences HE =5 (93) = (9.3)
Additions NE 215 230.8 252.3
Acquisition of a subsidiary g1 ip= NG 760.0 = 760.0
Transfer to investment properties upon BRERTKEBEEREREYE

completion of development 577.0 (577.0) -
Change in fair value recognised in profitor ~ RIEZBERZ A FEEZH)

loss

— Realised gains on disposals ~HERZEERIKE 33 = 33

— Unrealised gains/(losses) - AREB W/ (EE) 144.9 (0.8) 144.1
Disposal == (24.6) - (24.6)
Transfer from properties held for sale EEAREHEYE 1,181.0 = 1,181.0
Transfer from properties under development #EE g H H EXE R Y%

for sale - 98.0 98.0
Transfer from property, plant and equipment EE B % « BE LR & 292 - 29.2
Transfer to property, plant and equipment ~ EBE E¥ ¥ HE RRE (102.1) = (102.1)
At 31 March 2020 1202034318 14,6635 1030 14,766.5
Exchange translation differences EHZEH (12.0) = (12.0)
Additions NE 329.2 115.1 444 3
Transfer to investment property under BREEEREME

construction (980.0) 980.0 -
Change in fair value recognised in profit or RERERZAFEEZS

loss

— Realised gains on disposals _HER 2R R 35 = 35

— Unrealised (losses)/gains - AREIR () /W (51.9) 719 200
Disposal & (147.1) = (147.1)
At 31 March 2021 72021 E3H31H 13,805.2 1,270.0 15,075.2
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16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16 % BERRE

Furniture, Plant, Ferries,
Commercial fixtures machinery  launches
Hotel Freehold and leisure Leasehold and and andmotor Construction
properties land Buildings facilities improvements equipment equipment  vehicles inprogress Total
KAERE BARES BR-£E HE BE E& SH
BEENE  t# £ Rit BENERE RRE  RRE  RRE  EEIR &
HKYM  HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKSM  HKSM
BEER BBER BEERT HEEn HRER BEER AREET HREER  ARERN BEER
Cost RE
At T April 2019 R019E4A1R 15383 2649 6629 6393 3940 3589 677 5897 1234 46391
Exchange translation differences ERER (254) (99 04 - (1) () = 03) oy @79
Additions NE 30 = 10 = 584 240 = 121 2720 4705
Disposals/wite-off HE/H (261) = - - (68) (116) - 26) 03 @4
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 36) HER B A (i 3E36) = = - - (73) (391) - 05) - (469)
Transfer to investment properties BERESRENE - - (232) - - - - - - 232)
Transfer from investment properties EREREME = = 1021 = = = = = = 1021
Reclassfication ENNE 47 - - - - - - - @7 =
At31 March 2020 R0E3 /318 14945 2550 7432 6393 4372 3310 677 6984 3903 50567
Exchange translation differences BXEE 25 19 93 = 09 09 = 05 19 549
Additions NE 93 = 31 478 582 248 = 210 1120 2762
Disposals/write-off &/ 38 (44 - = - @9 (285) = 86) = (894)
Transfer to right-of-use assets ERTFREREE - S (807) = = = = = = (807)
Transfer to properties under BREHNERRONE
development for sale - - - - - (156) - (256) - @12)
Reclassfication ik 419 - - 3446 - - - - (3865) -
At 31 March 2021 R202153531H 1,570.8 266.9 6749 1,031.7 4484 3127 67.7 685.7 1177 51765
Depreciation and impairment FERRE
At1 Apri 2019 R019E4A1R 6938 = 1799 410 2472 2319 676 4256 - 2270
Exchange translation differences ERER (208) = (1) = (06) 08) = (03) - (226)
Provided for the year rEERE 618 - 164 136 354 32 - 185 - 1689
Disposals/write-off HE/ME (259) - - - (63) ma4 - (26) - (462)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 36) HEHB AR (i 536) - - - - 49) (333) - (05) - (387)
Impaiment loss recognised BRAFEERR = = 32 - - 01 - _ _ 33
Transfer to investment properties ERERENE - - (98) - - = = = = 98)
At31 March 2020 R200F3A31R 7089 = 1896 4446 2708 2097 676 4407 - 23319
Exchange translation differences ERZH B0 - - - 06 08 - 1) = 243
Provided forthe year TEERE 682 = 166 165 379 196 - 203 - 179
Disposals/wite-off HE/H 43 - - - (452) (280) - ®1) - (856)
Transfer to right-of-use assets EREFRREE - - @2 - - - - - - #12)
At31March 2021 R202153531A 7958 - 165.0 461.1 264.1 2021 67.6 452.8 - 24085
Carrying values REE
At31March 2021 ®202153A31A 7750 266.9 509.9 570.6 1843 1106 0.1 2329 N77 27680
At31 March 2020 R200F3 8310 7856 2550 5536 1947 1664 1214 01 2577 3903 27248
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #;Z2021

[tems of property, plant and equipment, other than construction in

progress, are depreciated on a straight-line
useful lives as follows:

Hotel properties
Freehold land
Buildings, commercial and leisure facilities

FIA3NHIEFE

basis, over their estimated

3-40 years B 5 W) %
No depreciation KAFERE T i

BT mRAMEERE

5-50 years, or over the
lease term if shorter

ERZTRERMNINZYE BERKREEE KA
TEFAERFHABRETE

3-40%F

WEFE

5-50 4F Bk i #R 52 -
Bl &M EHR

Leasehold improvements 5 years, or over the lease HEMEEE S5 MR -
term if shorter Bl A EHR
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-7 years R EERRME 3-7%F
Plant, machinery and equipment 5-15 years B - s R ERE 5-154F
Ferries, launches and motor vehicles 3-20 years Eem o A kR E 3-204F
17 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17 EHEEE
Leasehold Furniture,
land and fixtures and
buildings equipment Total
HELtwRk FH $£B
BF REE et
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
AEET BEEBT BHEABR
As at 31 March 2021 R2021$3H31H
Carrying amount BRmEE 102.6 0.4 103.0
For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE2021F3A31HLEFE
Depreciation charge EXH 21.9 0.3 22.2
Expense relating to short-term leases and HEHEERAMBERNE
other leases with lease terms end within R E B B T R E R
12 months of the date of initial FlegE HEFT12EA A
application of HKFRS 16 EROHBEEBBORX 6.1
Total cash outflow for leases HERSRLERE 237
Additions to right-of-use assets NETREEE 0.4
As at 31 March 2020 7202053 A31H
Carrying amount R A 70.9 0.7 716
For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE2020F3H31BIEFE
Depreciation charge rEX W 21.9 03 222
Expense relating to short-term leases and HEHEEREMERN S
other leases with lease terms end within R IE BB Ww SR
12 months of the date of initial F165RE B2 A A
application of HKFRS 16 ERMNEEBBEHRXZ 164
Total cash outflow for leases HEReRTDER 38.2
Additions to right-of-use assets NEERAEEE 564
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For both years, the Group leases various offices, ferry pier, leasehold land,
warehouses and equipment for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of 6 months to 50 years, but may have
termination options. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract and
determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

The Group has termination options in certain leases. The Group assesses
at the initial measurement of leases, it is reasonably certain the Group
will not exercise the termination options after considering the significant
initial cost incurred on the leased properties and the removal cost that
may arise.

In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably certain that a
termination option will not be exercised, upon the occurrence of either
a significant event or a significant change in circumstances that is within
the control of the lessee. During the year ended 31 March 2021,
no such triggering event.

there is

18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNTS

P bt R E Elfﬂﬁﬁyﬂﬂ#“* o
miGsE HELH AELRBEZEMRSE-
HMEAHWFTANFEAE0FNEEFH

180 7] BE P 75 4% 1 4 o 0 BRZ M8 B EE R
BEREEZETEGRREGE- F%iiﬁﬂ;ﬁ

Rm AARMERARORER  SEEAS
MR ER L EE & KA A 58 5l B0 T H;%E °

m

SERETHETHEARLE NYHBTE
HER SELEZEHEMERELEZERX

MR AR AEEEZFRBXNARAERTE
M EITERLLE-
Jit?\“fﬁ?é‘iﬁ"ﬁ(fﬂ}\ZT HEBERNZEAKR

EHHEABRET FESEHIHER
T’a\@ﬁ&mn\iﬁiﬁ?%ﬁﬁ R E E 2021
F3ANHULEFEAMEREZSRE S -

R B 2 fE =/ P I B

DUE FROM ASSOCIATES /N :—a 15
2021 2020
HK$'M HKS'M
BEAETT BEEBTT
. ———MMMM
Cost of unlisted shares IEEMRRG Z AR - -
Share of reserve LG - -

Share of post-acquisition losses, ADIG U IE R B A

net of dividends received R E Wk B - =
Amounts due from associates (Note 25(b)) JE W Bt 48 N &) Fx 18 (B 3% 25(0)) 588.9 588.8
Loss allowance provision STIRBEREE (584.8) (584.7)
4.1 4.1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & Z=2021F3831HLEFE

The summarised financial information of the Group's associates as at 31
March 2021 and 31 March 2020 is set out below:

=B Z QT RN20219F3 8318 &202043 A
STEZHBERBMEENNIDT

2021 2020

HK$'M HKS'M

BEAT BEATT

N

Total assets BERE 15.7 158
Total liabilities BEAERE (1,902.0) (1,901.6)
Net liabilities BiEFHE (1,886.3) (1,885.8)
Group's share of net assets SESEEEFE - =
Group's share of net liabilities SRS ABEFEE (584.8) (584.7)
(584.8) (584.7)

Revenue A - 0.1
Loss for the year REEEIE (0.5) 0.2)
Group's share of results for the year SELSMAFEEE (0.1) 0.1)

Details of the principal associates of the Group as at 31 March 2021 and
31 March 2020 are set out in Note 44(c).

The financial information in respect of each of the Group's associates is

not material and no separate summarised financial information of each
associate is presented.

19 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

The interests in joint ventures include the Group’s 50% equity interest in

£ B R2021F3A8318 R2020F38318 & £
DN F) 2 B ER M 5440 ©

EMEESHEAT I MBERLEEA
PR T T PN T e
HE

19 EEQNRIZHER

ABERNRAZEROEEBRRARTEYEERR
RNAEI (R E ) 25008 # -

Dazhongli Properties Limited (‘Dazhongli’). An analysis is as follows: BEAMmT
2021 2020
HK$'M HKS'M
BEET BEAET
I

Interests in: A RBIREZS

Dazhongli A B 8,086.9 72699
Other joint ventures Hitbd & QT 1,556.1 1,776.8
9,643.0 9,046.7
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DAZHONGLI

Dazhongli and its subsidiaries (“Dazhongli group”) are engaged in the
operation of investment properties and hotel properties in the Jing'an
District of Shanghai in mainland China.

RKHpE
ARPEREMNBARATATEEBRDREL
BURFEALEETHREZRENDER
BTG o

2021 2020

HK$'M HKS'M

BHEBT BEAT

N

Cost of unlisted shares FE_E TR 2 PR AR 0.1 0.1
Cumulative exchange differences BEtE R ER 500.6 (65.2)
Share of post-acquisition profits i U BE 1855 A 2,868.7 2,6473
3,369.4 2,582.2

Loans to Dazhongli ERTAFE

— Non-interest bearing (note a) -5 B (fsEa) 4,423.3 44202

— Interest bearing (note b) ~-5 B (M 3Eb) 294.2 2675
8,086.9 7,269.9

Notes:

(@) The loans to Dazhongli are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand. The Group has no intention to exercise its right to demand repayment of
these loans within the next twelve months from the end of the reporting period. The
directors of the Company believe the settlement of these loans is not likely to occur in
the foreseeable future as they, in substance, form part of net investment in Dazhongli
group as the proceeds of the loans have been substantially used by Dazhongli to inject
as registered capital into its PRC subsidiary. Accordingly, the amount is classified as
non-current asset and included in the Group's interests in joint ventures for the
purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial position.

(b) The loans to Dazhongli are unsecured, interest bearing at 1.71% per annum and
repayable in December 2022. Pursuant to the undertaking of bank loans, Dazhongli
group is refraining from settling the loans from shareholders until the settlement of all
bank loans. The directors of the Company believe the settlement of these loans is not
likely to occur in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the amount is classified as non-
current asset and included in the Group's interests in joint ventures for the purpose of
presentation in the consolidated statement of financial position.

B&E

@BTRFBEZERDERR 28 RAKERE
B -SEEERBSHRERR2EARTEELRE
MO BEREEZEER - ARAPEERERMEZ
ABORBIANETBEMBARIEREIMER AR
RAEEHERZSERBTERN AR RAREEE X
EERERNARPESEZHKREFR - AL - 3
RAMBRARZENME  BHRESBECIHERRD
BE Y AKBEREGERB 2= -

b) BFRPEZERTVEERR - REFER171% B R
AR02FNAEE - REBBRITERZERH - AF
BEEBEMBMBRTER FAAEREER - &
ARIEEHEZSERBETERARAKREEE - F
b BREVNRGEMBRARMS  BESEEIIE
ERBEE Wit AKREREGE QR 2 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & Z=2021F3831HLEFE

The summarised consolidated financial information in respect of K H B £ B 7202143 A31H & 202043 A 31
Dazhongli group as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 is set out B &AM KERBMEEHI M T -
below.

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in these & Z R AR EABEEZXESEATBRE -
consolidated financial statements.

2021 2020
HK$'M HK$'M
BEREERT BEAET

e

Non-current assets IEMBEE
Investment properties "EYE 24,057.0 222127
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEKMEE 1,990.9 19116
Other non-current assets HiIERHEE 84.5 125.6
26,132.4 24,2499
Current assets mENEE
Bank balances and cash IRITEHR LIRS 1,368.2 790.1
Other current assets HM R EE 394.1 446.8
1,762.3 1,236.9
Current liabilities mEEaE
Bank loans — secured RITER-FEIF 970.2 6786
Loans from shareholders REE =R 8,892.7 8,873.8
Other current liabilities EfrgEadE 1,511.4 1,295.7
11,374.3 10,848.1
Net current liabilities mEN A EFRR (9,612.0) (9611.2)
Total assets less current liabilities REERTBEE 16,520.4 14,638.7
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank loans — secured RITER-BEA 7,129.5 7,155.6
Loans from shareholders e 542.2 501.5
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIEA G 1,967.3 1,668.8
Other non-current liabilities HuIErmsha@E 142.7 1485
9,781.7 94744
Net assets BEFE 6,738.7 5,164.3
Group's share of net assets SES(REESE 3,369.4 2,582.2
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For the year ended 31 March
BE3AMHLEE

2021 2020

HK$'M HKS'M

BEAET BEAT

I

Revenue e A 1,668.0 1,636.5
Direct operating expenses BEEEEXH (524.8) (515.7)
1,143.2 1,120.8

Other income H U A 73.3 55.5
Change in fair value of investment properties WEWMERAFEE (14.5) 4373
Other expenses HAih % H (241.1) (226.4)
Finance costs Bt 7% & (360.7) (385.5)
Taxation 71 18 (157.4) (250.8)
Net profit after taxation for the year REEBKRE%EF 5 M 442.8 7509
Group's share of results for the year EBOEAFEES 2214 3754

Note: The investment properties were measured at 31 March 2021 at fair value of
HK$24,057.0 million (equivalent to RMB20,332.5 million) (2020: HK$22,212.7 million
(equivalent to RMB20,295.7 million)) which was based on the valuation conducted by
Cushman & Wakefield Limited, who has appropriate qualification and recent
experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuation
of investment properties was determined by using income capitalisation approach. The
income capitalisation approach was calculated by capitalising the rental income
derived from the existing tenancies with due provision for any reversionary income
potential. The fair value measurement of investment properties was valued under Level
3 fair value measurement, which was measured based on the significant unobservable
inputs including the estimated market rent and capitalisation rate. The investment
properties are held within a business model of the joint venture whose business
objective is to consume substantively all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through sale.

Level 3 valuation methodology
Below is a table which presents the significant unobservable inputs:

M RERERTERARETZHE REWE
R2021F3A31HZ AFEE2405708BBT(HEER
AR #2033258 8 7T ) (20204 : 2221278 & 7 7t (18
ERARY2020578&E L)) c Z AR HABEHE
ZRENEEEFOAEABEERRARKER - 1KE
MEZHEEDNEARABERNEEMETE - WAZE R
ABEBERMRBRERF BN A S W AER BT W
BEABDWANBEEREMTE - BREMEZLAF
BHAENRE-ER/LAFAEFEGHEE ENHEREK
TR ARB(BEGFTEEERERAMEE) G
H-REMENARERRIZAEERNEE MAEBE
AZEBENREREERZSRENENMRESZR
ABOKER S MIEBBEEER -

B=BRMEESE
TREJNERTAEEHARE

Unobservable inputs (note a)

TABRE ABIE (M)

Estimated market rent (note b)

Fair value Capitalisation rate (per square metre per month)
fHErmEE S (HEb)
NEE ER{LE (BABEHEXK)
Investment properties (note c)
BEWE (Ko
Mainland China
R A
Commercial HK$24,057.0 million 3.50% t0 6.25% RMB247 to RMB1,011
EES (2020: HK$22,212.7 million) (2020: 3.50% to 6.25%) (2020: RMB247 to RMB1,015)
2405708 &8 T 3.50% £ 6.25% AR¥47TEARKI1011TT
(2020%F : 222127 E B T) (2020%F : 350%E625%)  (2020F : AR 247 E
AR#10157T)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & Z=2021F3831HLEFE

Notes:

(@) The relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value are (i) the higher the
capitalisation rate, the lower the fair value; and (ii) the higher the estimated market rent,
the higher the fair value.

(b) The monthly rent takes into account the differences in location and individual
factors, such as frontage and size, between comparables and the property.

(c) Fair value measurement of investment properties is positively correlated to the
estimated market rent, but inversely correlated to the capitalisation rate.

OTHER JOINT VENTURES THAT ARE NOT INDIVIDUALLY
MATERIAL

GEE
@ TTBRBABBRATERNZMEROE AL E
BE AFEME ROEHTHELEE AFE
B

(o) AEERIRAILLEMERYE 2R E K E5IE X
(PlaEmE RN ZER -

O BEWMENAFEFERMGBHATHES2EMRR
BREREEANZRAEM -

HEREEAZAE AT

2021 2020

HKS$'M HKS'M

BEAET BEAT

N

Cost of unlisted shares FE_ETHRR 9 2 PR AR 8.7 6.3

Share of reserve DG (3.1 (1.0)
Share of post-acquisition gains, A5 U BE 1% I ES

net of dividends received Bk E Wk B 66.2 3415

71.8 346.8

Loans to other joint ventures (note) ERXRTHMEZE RN A (M) 1,484.3 1,430.0

1,556.1 1,776.8

Note: The loans to other joint ventures are unsecured and repayable on demand. As
at 31 March 2021, the loans to other joint ventures included an amount of HK$315.4
million (2020: HK$300.2 million) bearing interest at fixed rates at 3.0% (2020: 3.0%) per
annum and an amount of HK$402.4 million (2020: HK$402.7 million) bearing interest at 2%
per annum over 1-month Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR"). The remaining
balance is non-interest bearing. The amounts of the loans to joint ventures are classified
as non-current assets as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

The summarised financial information in respect of other joint ventures
as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 is set out below:

M ERXRTFTHHEGERAR NERKBERERERE
BoR21F3A38 BERTHMBEERRIBESHE
31548 88 7T (20204 : 3002 @ & 78 7t) W IR B & E 7
R 30% (20204F : 3.0%) 5F B Z N IE A K & 5 A4024
BEBT(Q020F 4758 BT)WIR—@ABBR
TREFREENEMNERUFEZAE - B TREAR
BE-BERFEERAIZEEMN202143AH31H K2020%F
3ANBYERIERBEE -

Hi& &R A R202193 318 K20204%3 A
STEZHBERBMEEHNDT

2021 2020

HK$'M HKS'M

BEAET BEAT

N

Total assets BEMAE 6,396.3 6,155.4

Total liabilities BEHETE (6,365.4) (5,542.4)
Net assets BEFE 30.9 613.0
Group's share of net assets SEHEEEFE 71.8 346.8
Revenue WA 230.7 1,078.1
Net (loss)/profit after taxation for the year AEEKRB%EFE(ER)/GH (11.1) 2274
Group's share of results for the year EBOEAREEES (0.8) 131.2

Details of the principal joint ventures of the Group as at 31 March 2021
and 31 March 2020 are set out in Note 44(d).
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20 INVESTMENTS IN DEBT AND EQUITY
SECURITIES

20 EBERAEF R ZRE

Fair value measurement
at 31 March 2021 using
7"2021%3 8311

AFEHE
2021 Level 1 Level 3
E-EBHR XHZE#R

HK$'M HK$'M HK$’'M
BEEBERT BHEEBRT BHEER

Investments in debt instruments measured at I # K At E 2 EHE T A

amortised cost ®E&
Debt securities (note a) B EH (MiEa)
Current & 26.8
Non-current FE I & 85.1
111.9
Equity instruments measured at FVTOC| EAVFEFAEMEZAERE
FFEZIRATE
Listed equity securities (note b) EMRAE S (M iEb) 20.8 20.8 -
Unlisted equity securities (note c) JE ETHRARATE & (KT 5Fc) 31.8 - 31.8
52.6 20.8 31.8
Analysed for reporting purposes as: REFREWZTWAT :
Non-current FER B 52.6
Market value of listed equity securities ETRAETESH 2TE
Listed in Hong Kong REXELET 1.4 1.4 -
Listed overseas RGN ET 9.4 9.4 -
20.8 20.8 -
Financial assets at FVTPL BEAFEFTABRZ
Unlisted equity securities (note d) JEETRRAEH (3Ed) 400.6 - 400.6
Listed debt securities (note e) EFHEBKES (Fitke) 85.0 85.0 -
Unlisted debt securities (note f) Ik ETMEBFE S (D 4.7 - 4.7
527.3 85.0 442.3
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BEREMNZOMBT :
Non-current R 527.3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & Z=2021F3831HLEFE

Fair value measurement
at 31 March 2020 using
7202053 A31H

NEERFE
2020 Level 1 Level 3
F—EHR ZB=ZER
HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M
BEAST BEBT BEAT
Investments in debt instruments measured at IR K AT EZ EH T A
amortised cost "E
Debt securities (note a) B HEH (Mika)
Current T E 300
Non-current ERB 81.1
111.1
Equity instruments measured at FVTOC| EAFEFAEMZARE
FFECZRATA
Listed equity securities (note b) ETRAES (M iEb) 185 185 =
Unlisted equity securities (note ) EEMRAES (Fiekc) 374 = 374
559 185 374
Analysed for reporting purposes as: REFEHZDTWAT :
Non-current JER B 559
Market value of listed equity securities ETRAZBSL 2 TE
Listed in Hong Kong RES LT 129 129 =
Listed overseas RGN ET 56 56 -
185 185 -
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABRZZ
Unlisted equity securities (note d) JEEMBRAES (FeEd) 402.2 = 402.2
Listed debt securities (note e) ETEBES (MTe) 522 522 =
Unlisted debt securities (note ) EETMEBFESH (M 344 = 344
488.8 522 436.6
Analysed for reporting purposes as: REFREHZTWT :
Non-current R 4888
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Notes:

(@) The Group intends to hold the assets to maturity to collect contractual cash flows
and these cash flows consist solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

(b) The Group elected to present in other comprehensive income for the fair value
changes of certain equity investments. These investments are not held for trading and
not expected to be sold in the foreseeable future.

The fair value of listed equity securities amounting to HK$20.8 million (2020: HK$18.5
million) are determined by reference to the quoted market bid prices available on the
relevant exchanges in active markets as at 31 March 2021.

(c) The unlisted equity securities of HK$31.8 million (2020: HK$37.4 million) represent
investment in unquoted equity investment in a private operating company which is
not held for trading purpose.

The fair value of the unquoted equity investment is determined using valuation
techniques including earnings multiples (based on the historical earnings multiples of
comparable listed companies) and a fundamental discount factor (based on the
historical correlation between multiples of the private company and comparable listed
companies). The significant unobservable inputs include price-to-earnings multiples of
comparables, taking into account of the scale of the business of the comparables. A
slight increase in the price-to-earnings multiples would result in a slight increase in fair
value and vice versa. An increase in the fundamental discount factor would result in a
decrease in fair value and vice versa.

No sensitivity analysis is disclosed for the impact of changes in the relevant
unobservable data as the management considers that the exposure is insignificant to

the Group.

The movement in the unlisted equity securities is as follows:

B 5E

@ SERBSARSFEEEZINHNRBRENERS R
MZERERERINAERAREELREZHE

0 REREEEFRAREZATEEDREMEE
DI RS RALHBERHEBRERTER
RETFGHE -

ETRAEFLSRZ AFE208EEBTL(2020F 1 18588
BIL) MR ERNFEIANBEERTEZ2HABRS
iz EANREMERT °

© 318E BB T (20205 : 374B BB L) 2 IE LEHIRA
BHERERTIERFEEERRZAERRIZERE
A E -

ERERAREZATEDNERGERD(BEAT
BE(ERALLER LT AR ZE LR FMEE) RERR
BEBERNLARREATLR T AR ZEEH2ZME
MESLHEEN) MEE - EXTABREHAREERE
AEBRAAZTRERBHGIRAILRRAZEBR
B) TREFEHEMEABERAFEEMEN - &
IR BAUBRRZBEMBERAFERD k2

HREEERRSEHARYERMSLTIEKN &I
EREE I BRABEH CHERERRENN -

FEMBRABS Z BB :

2021 2020

HK$'M HKS$'M

BEBET BEET

e

Balance at beginning of the year FH 37.4 =
Acquisition during the year AU EE - 525
Net fair value loss to other comprehensive income REMEERZE 2R FEFEE (5.6) (15.1)
Balance at end of the year FRE &% 31.8 374

(d) As at 31 March 2021, the unlisted equity securities represent investments in private
equity funds of HK$184.1 million (2020: HK$188.4 million) and unquoted equity
investment of HK$216.5 million (2020: HK$213.8 million) which are measured using
valuation techniques based on inputs that can be observed in the market in addition to
unobservable inputs such as company specific financial information.

d) M2021F3A31H  FETRABHFALERER
& 2R E1841H BB T (20204 1 1884 B BB T) K &
WMEBRARNIZE21658 AT (2020F : 21388 BB T) -
DERGHEERDGHE  ZEROHR2HA2HARE
ABEMBHEBERTABEEGARB(WRAFEY
BER) MET -
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178

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & Z=2021F3831HLEFE

In accounting for the fair value measurement of the investments in private equity
funds, management has determined that the reported net asset value of the private
equity funds provided by the general partners represent the fair value of the private
equity funds. The general partners used different valuation methodologies to measure
different underlying investments of the funds. The general partners measured the
unrestricted actively traded public equity and debt investments at the closing price or
bid price of the identical assets as of measurement date. The general partners also used
methodology based on relevant comparable data whether possible to quantify the
adjustment from cost, transaction prices or latest financing price when adjustment if
necessary, or to justify that cost, transaction prices or latest financing price is still a
proper approximation of fair value of the underlying investments held by the
investment funds in determining the net asset value. The factors to be considered in
assessment may require the judgement. For those investments that have achieved
positive and sustainable operating performance, the general partners adopted Earning
Multiples Methodology. The valuation using this methodology is calculated by applying
the most appropriate and reasonable multiple derived from reference to market based
conditions of quoted companies or recent private transactions. If the multiples are
derived from public company comparable, it is discounted for considerations such as
illiquidity and differences between the comparable companies and portfolio
companies, based on company specific facts and circumstances according to the
general partner’s judgment. The general partners also adopted discounted cash flow
methodology. The cash flows are projected base on the budgeted cash flows of the
portfolio companies, which are adjusted for current market environment. The
significant unobservable inputs include discount rates ranging from 6.25% to 11.5%.
The discount rates are derived from observable return of comparable companies,
which are adjusted for considerations such as different capital structure, sizes and other
specific risk of the portfolio companies. The higher the discount rate, the lower the fair
value and vice versa.

For unquoted equity investment, the Group applies a minority interest discount on the
net assets value of the investee adjusting with the fair value of the underlying
properties to determine the fair value. The valuation of the underlying properties is
determined by income capitalisation approach. The income capitalisation approach is
calculated by capitalising the rental income derived from the existing tenancies with
due provision for any reversionary income potential. The fair value measurement of the
underlying properties is measured based on the significant unobservable inputs
including the estimated market rent ranging from RMB143 to RMB467 (2020: RMB143
to RMB469) per square meter and capitalisation rate of 4.5% (2020: 4.5%). The higher
the market rent, the higher the fair value. The higher the capitalisation rate, the lower
the fair value.

No sensitivity analysis is disclosed for the impact of changes in the relevant

unobservable data as the management considers that the exposure is insignificant to
the Group.
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The movement in the unlisted equity securities is as follows:

FLETERABTHZ ZEEHMT

2021 2020

HK$'M HKS$'M

BBET BEET

e

Balance at beginning of the year F R 402.2 3359
Acquisition during the year F AU HE 9.5 312
Net fair value (loss)/gain in profit or loss REBEZPZRAFEF (EE) /K= (11.7) 514
Proceeds from disposal L ERTB IE (12.3) (1.3)
Exchange translation differences [ 5 =% 12.9 (15.0)
Balance at end of the year FREH 400.6 402.2

(e) Even though the Group’s business model is to hold debt securities assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows, the cash flows of these investments do not meet the
HKFRS 9 criteria as solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

The fair value of the debt securities as at 31 March 2021 is HK$85.0 million (2020:
HK$52.2 million) which is valued by reference to the Level 1 fair value measurement
deriving from quoted prices in active market for identical assets. The weighted average
effective interest rate is 6.4% (2020: 6.0%) per annum.

(f) The unlisted debt securities of HKS41.7 million (2020: HK$34.4 million) represent
investment in an unquoted convertible loan to a private operating company.

The fair value of the unquoted convertible loan is determined based on Black-Scholes
pricing model with key inputs of the model including expected volatility, share price,
risk free rate and bond yield. An increase in the expected volatility used in isolation
would result in an increase in the fair value measurement of the unquoted convertible
loan.

No sensitivity analysis is disclosed for the impact of changes in the relevant
unobservable data as the management considers that the exposure is insignificant to
the Group.

@ BEKE EBEARFTEEBELFEEARRE
WRERE BHEBARECHERENEEASER
HAREERSBMNEZARMATEBEN B REE
AR ZMTE °

R2021F3A31A - EBIEHF A THEASBIBE BT
(2020F : S22EBHEL) AT ENDSEERMS L
HRABEZREMEZE " ERAFEFTEMMHE-
DIOHE 19 B IR F F & 5 6.4% (20206 : 6.0%) °

) N17BEEBTQ00F U4EBEET) 2 LTE
KBEHERENA—BLLE AT REZEREAHK
B

EREALBRERZAFENREN IR -FENE
BEAMET ZEAZETEHAREREEHE
& RE BRBRAEREFKEE RBILEARK -
FEHREENEEREREVTERERZATFENZ
by IKS

HRERERAFHAREEEMS L NEAN &I
EREETIERREEH X ERRHRESN -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & Z=2021F3831HLEFE

The movement in the unlisted debt securities is as follows:

FLEMEBESFZEEHMT

2021 2020

HK$'M HKS$'M

BEBERT BEBTT

e

Balance at beginning of the year F R4 34.4 =
Acquisition during the year F AU EE 3.6 350
Net fair value gain/(loss) in profit or loss RE&EP 2 A FEFRE/ (EE) 3.7 0.6)
Balance at end of the year FRE & 41.7 344

There was no transfer among different levels of the fair value hierarchy in
the current and prior year.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS AND VALUATION
PROCESSES

The Group determines the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
for Level 3 fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-observable data to
the extent it is available. The valuation is performed at the end of each
reporting period. Where there is material change in the fair value of the
assets, the cause of the fluctuations will be reported to the management
of the Group.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in
determining the fair value of assets are disclosed above.

21 OTHER ASSETS

RAFERBEFE RFEERZTARE
AT RIE:I

ATPEFAERMAEEBRE

SEARE-"ERRAFEAEEEAEMNGE
I R A BUER

REFARFER SERAITEATERER®
RmBABEHE - EERSREHRE
T MEEZATFELREREY HEHY
ZERAKAEEEEERS

FRETEEAVFEMERZGERTLD LS
ABBZENN EXHE -

21 HtEE

2021 2020

HK$'M HKS'M

BEAT BEAT

Mortgage instalment receivables (note a) JE W% 8 55 BA At 3 (Bt 5Ea) 214.0 90.0
Loan to an investee (note b) MR ESRE R (K D) 106.2 106.2
Other assets HEi&EE 15.5 16.5
335.7 212.7
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Notes:

(@) The mortgage instalment receivables represent the financing provided to buyers of
development properties of the Group. The amounts bear interest at prime rate minus
2.5% to prime rate and are receivable by instalments over a period of not more than 25
years (2020: 25 years) from the sale of relevant flats. The receivables are secured by a
first mortgage or a second mortgage over the respective properties. The portion of
mortgage instalment receivables due within one year of HK$10.9 million (2020: HK$3.9
million) is included as trade receivables in current assets.

(b) The Group owns a 15% interest in an unlisted company incorporated in Singapore
which holds a commercial complex comprising a retail mall, 2 office towers and a
residential rental apartment in Tianjin, the PRC. The loan to the investee is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. The Group has no intention to exercise its right
to demand repayment of these loans within the next twelve months from the end of
the reporting period. Accordingly, the amount is classified as non-current asset for the
purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial position.

22 INVENTORIES

By &E

Q FBUIZBSHHRADNRETFTEEZEVEBRR M
Bt HERIRBEBRFRFLNERERMNERA;E I
CHEEHEEEEMNE HETBIBESE (20204 : 25%)
Ao HWE -t ERERTIAE B EES —RIBK
FRIBEM T D BE09E5 BB L (20205 : 398
EETR—FRIPZEKIZBY PHREFTAR
BEEZEKRESERRA -

O EERN—KENMBEEMALZFELETARESR
5%  ZABARPERERAE -ABEEAE 8
B—EBYTL RMERAZAER -—BEAEER
B MEBKEHRERSERT 28 RIREKRME
B-SHREERBEHREFTRR22EARNTEEE
- BEREEZSER Bl RGaUBEHRRRZE
FIME  ARASEEINEIFRDEE -

22 8

2 ¥ in

Consumables

2021 2020
HK$'M HK$'M
BEREER BEAETT
443 438

23 PROPERTIES HELD FOR/UNDER
DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

BHEEFRR/IBRF
YES

2021 2020

HK$'M HK$'M

BEEET BEABTT

mE

Current:
Properties under development

e

EEEARLEERPYE

for sale in Hong Kong 1,027.8 846.5
Properties under development BABIMIEERERME
for sale outside Hong Kong 1,103.8 2451.1
2,131.6 3,297.6
Non-current: FEME
Properties held for development BEABIIMEEGFERME
for sale outside Hong Kong 9324 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & Z=2021F3831HLEFE

At the end of the reporting period, total borrowing costs capitalised in
the properties under development for sale were HK$62.9 million (2020:
HK$22.3 million). The properties under development for sale amounting
to HK$1,519.7 million (2020: HKS$3,297.6 million) are expected to be
recovered after twelve months from the end of the reporting period.

24 TRADE RECEIVABLES

The credit periods allowed by the Group to its customers are dependent
on the general practices in the industries concerned. For property sales,
sales terms vary for each property project and are determined with
reference to the prevailing market conditions. Property rentals are
receivable in advance. Payments for healthcare, clubs and hotel services
are receivable on demand.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net of allowance
for credit losses, presented based on the payment due date at the end of
the reporting period:

REEBR 62908 BB L (2020 : 2238 8
B ZBRIEBERADBIERLIEERTWE
Z AN 2151978 B4 7T (20204F : 32976 E 8
B 2 ERRTMETRHR R RERE
ST12@E A’ YKME -

24 BEIRE FERA

SEGTEEPZEERRTEA—RIED
BE-AYXHEME  HEKRFREYE
BEME Y2RERTABE VWEHED
AREGN BERRE @MEBERSE 2
ERAREREHNMN -

MTREUESER(NKEEERERERF R
BREPRRIANRBBEZNZERE DT

2021 2020

HK$'M HKS'M

BEET BEATT

N

Not yet due &) R 2 B 42.7 06
Overdue: 0 HY

0-60 days 0-60K 294 250

61-90 days 61-90K 2.2 0.6

Over 90 days B0k 5.2 33

79.5 29.5

As at 31 March 2021, included in the Group's trade receivables balances
are debtor with aggregate carrying amount of HK$36.8 million (2020:
HK$28.9 million) which are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the
past due balances, HK$5.2 million (2020: HKS$3.3 million) has been past
due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default because based
on the Group's historical information, the counterparty is of a good
credit quality and usually settles after due date. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.
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The Group has provided allowance for receivables overdue beyond 120
days because historical experience is such that receivables that are past
due beyond 120 days are generally not recoverable. Management
closely monitors the credit quality of trade receivables and considers the
trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired to be of a good
credit quality.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note 43.

25 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

(a) DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES/BANK BALANCES AND CASH

As at 31 March 2020, included in deposits, prepayments and other
receivables is an amount of HK$191.5 million which is sale proceeds
arising from property sales held by stakeholders.

As at 31 March 2020, included in deposits, prepayments and other
receivables is also an amount of HK$560.0 million which represents the
cash held by a financial institution on behalf of the Group at 31 March
2020 for the settlement of the HK$560.0 million 7-year unlisted notes
with maturity date of 2 April 2020. The amount is settled subsequently
upon redemption of the HK$560.0 million 7-year unlisted notes (see
Note 28).

As at 31 March 2021, bank balances and cash represent cash held by the
Group and short-term bank deposits at market interest rate ranging from
0.01% to 2.90% (2020: 0.01% to 2.32%) per annum. Certain property
development companies of the Group place in stakeholders’ accounts
certain amounts of sale proceeds of properties to finance the
construction of the related properties. HK$52.2 million placed in the
accounts represent normal operating fund and are presented as part of
bank balances and cash.

(b) AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, non-trade nature, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand.

() AMOUNTS DUE FROM JOINT VENTURES

The amounts due from joint ventures are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note 43.

SECOABHEBI20KZ EKEERIRRE
B ERREBEELR RTBHEB
R0ORZEMEFR—RBEAAKRE - ERER
NERBKREZIERZGEEER IRBZ
FUYEBHARECBRREZRREE R
ZIEEEE-

BRABERN A ZFIEHNH T3

25 EHttEmEE

(a) &% - FAFNIE K H B WK IE/
RITEBRRESE

M2020F3A31H  #&& FENREREME
WHREBE -2 A19588 8 THX
H ZEREAMEHEHEZHENMSRIE
WHREAFTH -

202038318 - K& BENZFEREME
WHRIB B E—2$ 5 A56008 875 TH XK
B ZERES X BBEEN2020%F3 A3
BREBFEZRS  AIESEBH600RH
BB T R20205F 48 2B B B2 78I L
ZE - ZEREERNERELDEBCIES
B2 7FEE T RIRREE (R FE28) -
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EEETETHEREARRREAERES
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(b) FEUREsEE D FRIEA
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RERALEREE -

() BWEERAFME
FEREZERAFEAREER RERAKR
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & Z=2021F3831HLEFE

26 TRADE PAYABLES, PROVISION AND
ACCRUED CHARGES

Included in trade payables, provision and accrued charges are trade
payables of HK$117.1 million (2020: HK$137.4 million), an aged analysis
presented based on the payment due date at the end of the reporting
period is as follows:

6@ﬁﬁ%$
5H

J‘ﬁ“h‘ CBEREAERTBIEREM
z 11715&%%75(2020@ 13748 8%
JT) - LATEK#&%E@X&@J%H HE 27
ZERER AT

CBERE

E‘tN

E

2021 2020

HK$'M HKS'M

BEETR BEETT

I

Not yet due &) & 2l HA 71.3 107.0
Overdue: wHA

0-60 days 0-60K 42.3 246

61-90 days 1-90 K 0.3 29

Over 90 days {8 90K 3.2 29

117.1 1374

The average credit period on purchases of goods and payment for
subcontractor works is 90 days.

The trade payables, provision and accrued charges include (i)
construction cost accruals of HK$365.9 million (2020: HKS$603.6 million);
and (i) provisions for certain construction obligations of HK$328.5
million (2020: HK$328.5 million). In the course of the property
development activities, the Group is obliged to construct certain
common or public facilities within the development projects in
accordance with the development plans approved by the relevant
authorities. Provision for such construction costs has been made when a
reliable estimate of the obligation can be made and the amount of this
obligation is HK$328.5 million as at 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020 and 31
March 2021.
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27 CONTRACT LIABILITIES 27 S AE

2021 2020
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEABTT

Property sale deposits MEHEERS 246.8 1,1703
Advance payments from customers B P EMARK 83.7 346

330.5 1,204.9
Less: Amount included under current liabilities 38 : st ARBI B E 2 £ 58 (300.2) (1,204.9)
Amount included under non-current liabilities S AJERBAEZ £ 30.3 =

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised inthe RN REINRAFE AL L EHR I A B4 E
current year relates to carried-forward contract liabilities. BHBERRM-

2021 2020
HK$'M HK$'M
HEABT BEABTT

Revenue recognised that was included FFAFYIERNEELE R
in contract liabilities balances at B E R A
the beginning of the year:
Property sales deposits MEHEES 1,167.5 15487
Advance payment from customers BEEMAR 34.6 256

1,202.1 15743
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & Z=2021F3831HLEFE

28 BANKAND OTHER LOANS

28 BITREMERK

2021 2020
HK$'M HKS'M
BEER BEBTT
Bank loans (note a) IRITE R (KY7Ea) 7,418.8 6,249.6
Bonds and notes (note b) BEH R EE (HsEb) 266.0 10716
7,684.8 7,321.2
Less: Amount included under current liabilities 35 : st AR BB E £ B (BIEAAR
(including bank loans with a repayable A pER ESRE RGN 2 IRIT
on demand clause) B%) (776.8) (4,108.8)
Amount included under non-current liabilities st AIEGREBBEZ &% 6,908.0 32124
Bank and other loans are repayable: WITREMEFBR T EARE S :
On demand or within one year BEXRF—FA 776.8 41088
Between one and two years —EWMENRN 105.0 460.4
Between two and five years —ERFER 6,803.0 2,752.0
7,684.8 7,321.2
Secured A 140.0 144.0
Unsecured R 7,544.8 71772
7,684.8 7,321.2
Bank loans that contain a repayable on demand BB AJBERF EREEIERZETE R
clause (shown under current liabilities) and (RREaEsn) BERHA
the scheduled payment is (note c): (Mt 3EC) -
Within one year —F R 465.3 526.1

Notes:

(@) As at 31 March 2021, the Group's bank loans carried interest at an average margin
of 0.96% (2020: 1.06%) plus HIBOR, other relevant interbank offered rates or other
benchmark interest rates per annum.

(b) () On 2 April 2013, the Company issued principal amount of HK$560.0 million 7-year
unlisted notes at a coupon rate of 4.5% per annum. The unlisted notes were fully
settled in April 2020.

(i) On 10 April 2013, the Company established a US$1.0 billion Medium Term Note
Programme ("MTN Programme”). In May 2013, a total principal amount of HK$238.0
million 7-year unlisted notes at a coupon rate of 4.3% per annum was issued under the
MTN Programme. The unlisted notes were fully settled in May 2020.

(i) As at 31 March 2021, there was outstanding bond with principal amount of
HK$266.0 million (2020: HK$273.6 million) which carried interest at an average margin
of 0.47% (2020: 0.47%) plus the relevant interbank offered rates per annum.

(c) The amounts due are based on scheduled payment dates set out in the respective
loan agreements.
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29 LEASE LIABILITIES

20 HEBE

2021 2020
HKS$'M HKS'M
BEETT BEAT
Lease liabilities payable: ENEEAE:
Within one year —FR 19.0 17.3
Within a period of more than one year but —FUEETBBEME 2 HEA
not more than two years 9.5 12.7
Within a period of more than two years but MER LB BERBAF ZHEAA
not more than five years 8.2 11.9
Within a period of more than five years AFENREZHEA 40.1 411
76.8 83.0
Less: Amount due for settlement with 12 B RmRBBEY 1218 8 AR H
months shown under current liabilities B8 258 (18.9) (17.3)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months ~ R IEZR BB EHI/R 1218 A % B HE S
shown under non-current liabilities 2 RIA 57.9 65.7

Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out below:

LA EEETER 2 IEEE NI EETE
ZHEREES M

Japanese yen Renminbi Thai baht
= AR® E 7
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEBET BEET HBHEER
- Y A
As at 31 March 2021 "2021%63H31H 0.6 4.4 1.9
As at 31 March 2020 MR20203 A31H 1.8 7.3 2.7
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30 OTHERLIABILITIES

30 HtE &

2021 2020
HKS$'M HKS'M
BEETT BEAT
Advances from non-controlling shareholders ~ FE3% A% A& 3R 2 24 3%

(note a) (MfzEa) 519.7 695.6
Advance from a joint venture (note b) EENEZBR (D) - 1756
Club debentures (note ¢) 2 ATE 5 (M sEc) 812.3 809.9

1,332.0 1,681.1
Less: Amount due within one year included W RTARBAEBEZ —FA
under current liabilities 2| Hi K IE (295.0) (350.6)
Amount due after one year —F 15 B HA Rk I8 1,037.0 1,330.5

Notes:

(@) The amount represents advances from non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries
to finance operation of those subsidiaries. The amounts carry interest at 3-month HIBOR
plus 3.5% per annum up to 31 December 2020. From 1 January 2021, the amounts
carry interest at 1-month HIBOR plus 2.5% per annum . Except for the advance from a
non-controlling shareholder amounting to HK$295.0 million, which is expected to be
settled in the coming twelve months that is presented as current liabilities, the
remaining amount is not repayable within one year.

(b) The advance from a joint venture is unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable
on demand.

(c) Club debentures are non-interest bearing, unsecured, redeemable on their maturity
dates in 2047. These debentures are issued to members of the following clubs operated
by the Group and the principal amount of the club debentures issued are as follows:

it -

Q) ZRBEEWBARIEEBRBERR  AUEMZSE
MBARIZEMS - E22020F12 8318 ALE  Z 38
Z=AAHEBRITRENR B M35%2 FFXREF
BB F1A 1B ZRBE—EAHEERT
B EFEM25%2 FHERFEFE - BRAE2508 8
W IFEHR AR 2 A RNEEZ FFIERBRAR (2
AERBBE N BRTHREHEAR—FREE-

(e

b ERALERARZBERREER 2ERAREX

o

i
Pl

© BREFARZE  BEARATR047FAEE ZE
HAER - hEEHFDETTTIIAEEMEEZE
FMER ERTZEHEFIASENT

2021 2020

HK$'M HKS$'M

ER- Y ¥ BEETT

—

Discovery Bay Golf Club MEESBERERE 661.2 6612
Discovery Bay Recreation Club MRERELe 151.1 148.7
812.3 809.9

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amounts of club debentures at amortised cost and
deferred income amounted to HK$597.0 million (2020: HK$587.1 million) and HK$215.3
million (2020: HK$222.8 million) respectively.
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31 DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities)/assets recognised
and movements thereon during the current and prior reporting years:

31 IEER B

KT ABH#RZEBRIEH A (8 )& R
RERRTRBEREER 2 EH

Fair value Distributable
Accelerated  change of profits of
tax investment Tax foreign Others
depreciation properties losses subsidiaries (note) Total
RENX B
MEHE AFHE BE  AFEAH Hit
nE 25 BE 2% (M) At
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BE#ET HE#ET AEErT HEER HEBRT AEER
At 1 April 2019 R2019F481H (2483) (119.3) 250 (51.0) 27.1 (366.5)
Exchange translation differences PE W =% - 84 - 30 29 85
(Charge)/credit to profit or loss (0BR) /T A B = (19.5) 06 158 (473) (259) (763)
Credit to investment revaluation reserve =t A% & & i (£ - - - = 10 10
At 31 March 2020 7202043 A31H (267.8) (110.3) 408 (95.3) 0.7) (4333)
Exchange translation differences (=% 02 (58) - 69) 03 (126)
(Charge)/credit to profit or loss (k) /st A Bz (140) 219 393 (16.1) 60.4 915
Charge to investment revaluation HBRREEMFE
reserve - - - - 0.7) 0.7)
At 31 March 2021 R202163H31H (282.0) (94.2) 80.1 (118.3) 593  (355.1)

Note: These mainly represent net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in relation
to unrealised profit of certain property development projects and gain on fair value
change upon transfer of properties held for sale and properties under development for
sale to investment properties.

For the purposes of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been
offset in accordance with the Group's accounting policy. The following is
the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for financial
reporting purposes:

M ETBERTIEETYERREBE RERET
PR BERBAEE/(BE) FREURAFIELEY
ERHHEERTVEBRERENEH A FESE
Bz o

REBRGEEVBAREME  ETELEHREA
EERABEREEZ @ REEHE - AT
SRARMHE2RE K2R EH AR (R H
BIDH

2021 2020

HK$'M HKS'M

BEAETT BEBTT

. ———MMMM

Deferred tax liabilities BB IEBE (469.0) 472.7)
Deferred tax assets ELERIEEE 113.9 394
(355.1) (433.3)
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At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$1,940.2 million (2020: HKS$1,569.9 million) available for offset against
future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
approximately HK$485.5 million (2020: HK$247.3 million) of such losses.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining
HKS$1,454.7 million (2020: HK$1,322.6 million) due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of HK$210.0 million (2020: HK$210.6 million) mainly arising
from impairment losses recognised in respect of property, plant and
equipment, inventory and certain financial assets at amortised cost. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences can be
utilised.

32 SHARE CAPITAL

RBEHR SERFEAHESER194028
BB (2020F 1 15699 E BB ) » Al AR K
5 R A5 F) o H P 494855 & 78 7T (2020 4F ¢
473EEBTT)EEERRECHBEE - &
P 4 A TR ORI R AR A - B I 3 4 kR R
145478 & 7 7T (2020%F : 13226 8 8 B T ) HE
REERIBEE -

RIFEHR SEFTEEDE  BERKE -
GFERAETERHBHEKNAFTECESREEZD
HRBAEEEASIBRZANBRERZ%E 5
2100 E &% 7T (20204 : 2106 B &EH L) - AR
TARAIBE B R A AT AR EE T RS
B = 58 - AUt 0 48 Bk 5% & ) H0O% B = B AR
RIELETHBEE -

32 A

Number
of shares HK$'M
% & BEER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each SREE25E T 2 L@k
Authorised: SERE
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020, 1 April 2020 M2019F4H1H 2020F3 H318 -
and 31 March 2021 2020F4 A1 K20213H318 4,000,000,000 1,000.0
Issued and fully paid: BEETRAR
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020, 1 April 2020 20194818 « 20203 4318 -
and 31 March 2021 20204 418 KR20215F3A31H 1,485,301,803 3713

33 SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 8
September 2011 which permits the directors of the Company to grant
options to all directors (including any Executive Directors, Non-executive
Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors), full-time
employees and any consultants (employed on a contract basis) of the
Company, its subsidiaries and/or its associated companies to subscribe
for shares in the Company.

At 31 March 2021, the number of shares in respect of which share
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the Scheme
was 44,880,000 (2020: 45,100,000), representing 3.0% of the shares of the
Company in issue at that date.
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RAFR201MFIASH N T I {5 H#E =t 2
([ZEH8l)) ZFBAHFARAEEEAR
ACHWBRA R/ EBEARZMBEES
(BREEMRITES  FRTEERB LI
TE2%) 2BEEBRAAMAEGHAFEAERZ
BEEEHTRERARG RN Z D HIE -

M2021F3A31H REFEZFTEE R LB
WMATEZRODEBEMSI R ZRNHDEE A
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Details of the movements of the share options granted are as follows: EEREROEAEZEFHFHBHOT :

Number of share option

IR HE#E

Outstanding Lapsed
Exercise asat1 April during the Outstanding

price per 2019 and year ended as at
Category of share 31 March 31 March 31 March
participants Date of grant Exercise period HK$ 2020 2021 2021

20195 REBZE

418 R 20214
=354 2020 3 A31H 720215
THEE 3A31H IEFEE 3A31H

SHEEEHN REAH 1T BT MERTE KM i R ATBE
Director 28 February 2017 28 February 2017 to 27 February 2027 3.845 12,760,000 - 12,760,000
25 201792 A28H 201782 828H=2027%2H27H
Director 12 March 2018 12 March 2018 to 11 March 2028 4373 20,460,000 = 20,460,000
- 2018F3 8128 20183 H12H £ 20283 H11H
Ex-director 28 February 2017 28 February 2017 to 27 February 2027 3.845 4,400,000 - 4,400,000
AIES 2017928288 201792 H 288 Z= 20272 H27H
Ex-director 12 March 2018 12 March 2018 to 11 March 2028 4373 6,380,000 - 6,380,000
RIESE 2018F3H12H 20183 H12H & 202853 A 11H
Employee 12 March 2018 12 March 2018 to 11 March 2028 4373 1,100,000 (220,000) 880,000
== 20183 H128 2018F3 A 12B E2028F3H11H

45,100,000 (220,000) 44,880,000

Exercisable at the end of the year
FRATTTE 44,880,000
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34 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT BEFORE TAXATIONTO (a) BBiAIRFIE L EFRER S EHE

34 IEREREBRMTE

NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS Z R
2021 2020
Notes HK$'M HKS'M
B 5 BEAET BEAT
Profit before taxation B 5% B 5 A 1,640.7 2,522.0
Adjustments for MATIEBBEE ZHX
Finance costs e R 8 88.3 2718
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment - BERREZ
e 9 179.1 1689
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZITE 9 22.2 222
Amortisation of bonds BEH B - 09
Impairment loss on investments in debt instruments &2 # $4 k N5t 2 2 B
measured at amortised cost THEHEEZ /W TEJ% B 7 0.2 03
Impairment loss (reversed)/recognised on loans to (Bt O)/ERE XK
joint ventures BERNAZ /)ER TE &5 18 7 (0.3) 0.7
Impairment loss on other receivables H b g HQ KIB 2R E
BB 7 - 37
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment ME - -BMELEREZ
A B 18 7 33
Share of results of associates SEEE QN REE 18 0.1 0.1
Net loss/(gain) from financial assets SREERE/ (W)
HER 2.9 (483)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME  MEREE
ZER 7 3.0 04
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries LEMB ARz W 36 - (182.5)
Net gain on deregistration of subsidiaries BB AR Z
F U A (77.2) -
Share of results of joint ventures DIEEERNREE 19 (220.6) (506.6)
Realised gains on disposal of investment properties .‘:lj &= ?x = #@ 3
""""" IR W (3.5) (3.3)
Interest income ﬂ SPN 6 (50.1) (58.3)
Unrealised gains on change in fair value of KEMER 1@“ E)
investment properties R EIR W = (20.0) (144.1)
Change in working capital LBECEE
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEOEMm/mL (0.4) 04
Decrease in properties held for sale BELEWERD 464.5 284.7
Decrease/(increase) in properties held for/under Tt E1 T—r BR/ERSP
development for sale LIS /J‘/ (i' jijip) 480.1 (430.9)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables FEWE SRR (3E )/
VAN (50.0) 39
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, prepayments R BAREREM
and other receivables FE U R TE L >/ (i‘ ) 305.9 (255.0)
Increase in mortgage instalment receivables & U #22 #8 > HA 45 FR A 0 (123.0) (40.4)
Increase in amounts due from joint ventures FEWE &N T = I,E 190 (4.4) (16.8)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables, provision & 1~ ‘féf 5‘; EE CBE R
and accrued charges FEFTE A (?)ﬁ A>) /4 1N (256.9) 1134
(Decrease)/increase in deposits received BlEesEMemE
and other financial liabilities & Ot ) /38 AN (41.7) 414
Decrease in contract liabilities aHEERD (897.4) (394.4)
Cash generated from operations LIEMEES 1,441.5 1,357.5
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(b) RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM RMEETHMELEEEZHER

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(b)

TRHFVNEERETDMELABZEH (B
RREMFREED) MELTHHMELEZE
BEEAERERECHKARAKRBESRESNEE
RAREREXRTPHIERABELRDRERE

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities
arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or
future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement

of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities. ZBE-
Advances
from non-
controlling
Bankand shareholders
Dividend Interest other  andajoint Club Lease
payables payables loans venture debentures liabilities Total
FERRE
RITR REEQT HE
EfRE EANE HHEX 28R BFES Bf At
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEEn HEEn BAE%ET HEET HEER BEERT BEER
! ' I/ '/ /' | ________|]
At 1 April 2020 1202054818 - - 73212 871.2 809.9 83.0  9,085.3
Financing cash flows REHERE (163.4) (119.1) 392.7 (195.7) 24 (23.7) (106.8)
Exchange translation differences EHESR - - (29.1) - - 0.6 (28.5)
Interest expenses FERAL - 81.7 - 3.6 - 3.0 88.3
Interests capitalised in the qualifying assets  RNABREEE AL
2B
- Properties under developmentforsale -~ HERERYE - 353 - 105 - - 458
- Investment properties -REME - - - 4.0 - - 40
~ Property, plant and equipment -NE BERR - 2.1 - 17 - - 3.8
Dividend from a joint venture RKERERRIZIRE - - - (175.6) - - (175.6)
Dividends declared BEERRA 1634 - - - - - 1634
New leases entered BiUHEE - - - - - 0.3 0.3
Renewal of lease EiHE - - - - - 13.6 136
At 31 March 2021 R2021%3 8310 - - 76848 519.7 812.3 768  9,093.6
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Advances
from non-
controlling
shareholders
Dividend Interest  Bankand and a joint Club Lease
payables  payables other loans venture  debentures liabilities Total
FEERBRE
ROk REERA HE
ERRE EAFS EMER ZBF effEH B @5
HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M
BEBT BEAT ABATL BEAT BEBT BEAT BEAT
At 1 April 2019 72019%4 818 = = 6,686.6 5612 8099 64.6 81223
Financing cash flows RERERE (169.4) (267.6) 6177 2752 - (26.0) 4299
Exchange translation differences ERZ=S - - 160 = = 0.7) 153
Interest expenses MERX - 2676 - - - 42 718
Interests capitalised in the qualifying assets ~ RNA AR EBEB AL
ZHE
— Properties under development for sale -HHERERYE = = = 268 = = 268
- Investment properties -REME - - - 49 = = 49
~ Property, plant and equipment -ME BERRE - - - 31 - - 3
Dividends declared EEIKRE 1694 = = = = = 1694
New leases entered BIIUFHE - - - = = 564 564
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 36) FE BB A Bl (BT 5 36) = = = = = (148) (148)
Termination of lease RIEHE = = = = = (07) (07)
Others Het - = 09 = = - 09
At 31 March 2020 R2020F3A318 = = 73212 8712 809.9 830 9,085.3
(c) ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH 0 RERRSEEEBLEHR DN
EQUIVALENTS
2021 2020
HKS$'M HKS'M
BEATT BEATT
e
Bank balances and cash RITHEHRLIA 3,060.9 25114

RITE N 2021F3 A31 B 2 5 F R 72 F 7
R 0.01% 2 2.90% (2020 F : 0.01% £ 232%) 2 &b
BN -RNRAREERAEENBTEHKRE
CRHERRZEMERBEAFERS -

The market interest rate of the bank balances at 31 March 2021 was in
the range of 0.01% to 2.90% (2020: 0.01% to 2.32%) per annum. The
directors of the Company consider the carrying amount of the Group's
bank balances and cash at the end of the reporting period approximates
their corresponding fair values.
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For the years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, the Group
performed impairment assessment on bank balances and concluded
that the probability of defaults of the counterparty bank is insignificant
and accordingly, no allowance for credit losses is provided.

35 ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 18 June 2019, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with independent third
parties to acquire the entire issued capital of Dorro Properties Limited, at
a cash consideration of HK$758.9 million. The acquisition was completed
on 5 August 2019. The major asset of Dorro Properties Limited is an
investment property representing a block of residential building situated
in Hong Kong.

The directors of the Company were of the opinion that this transaction
did not constitute business combinations as defined in HKFRS 3,
therefore, the acquisition had been accounted for as an acquisition of
assets. Details of the transaction are summarised as follows:

The assets acquired and liabilities assumed on the date of acquisition:

HE202153A831H K2020563831H IEEE -
ESEEHRTAEBRETRAEN G LRAX
SERTEHNTREETIA AT EREE
BB B -

35 WEERK B 2 7]

MN2019F6 180 AR A —REEE2ENEB
AREBYFE=FFIVEE WS NREE
MEXBRRARIZEIHIERITRA Re R
BA789BE BT ZWEN2019F8A5H
TR -BMEEERAAZEEEES 8
KREWME HE-BRUREBENEEKRE -

ARATEERE ZR DL TEHE BB
WEEAEIRFRENEEA N B &
WEBREEREAE %% 52 HE#
wmF :

RKRBEBZHKRBEENRMAERE:

HKS'M
BEAT
Investment properties "EY 760.0
Trade receivables FEUE 5 IR 0.1
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables B& - B RIE N E A E W A 02
Trade payables, provision and accrued charges ENESEDR BENETER 0.1
Deposits received and other financial liabilities PlkekEMemaE (1.2)
Taxation payable FE R IR ©.1)
Net assets acquired W v B EFE 7589
Satisfied by: SR
Cash consideration paid BENRENRE 7589
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WiE 2 B RHFE -
Cash consideration paid BENBEERE 7589
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36 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 6 December 2019, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
Healthway Asia Limited entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with an independent third party, and pursuant to which Healthway Asia
Limited disposed of its entire interest in Healthway Philippines, Inc. and
its shareholders’ loans to Healthway Philippines, Inc. granted by the
Group, Healthway Philippines, Inc. and its subsidiaries are engaged in
operation of medical clinics in the Philippines. The aggregate cash
consideration for the disposal is approximately HK$225.0 million and the
net consideration after the transaction costs is HK$210.6 million.

The disposal was completed on 17 January 2020.

Assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries on the date of disposal are as
follows:

36 HEMERQF

R2019F12R6B  ZRAG 22 &K B AT
BETHERAAEBYE = VEE
B BETHERAFTAEEER
Healthway Philippines, Inc. Z 28z R EEE T
Healthway Philippines, Inc. 2 % B B 5k ° Healthway
Philippines, Inc X EM B AR IERERE=L
EBEDH2EH HEZREREBESHL
RS0EBAT MABRXIEAEZRE
SFREAR2106B BB °

HEEIHN2020F1 B17HZK °

MEBARNHEEACEERBENT

HKS'M
BEAT
Net assets disposed of: HEZEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment M BEKEHE 8.2
Right-of-use assets FREEE 143
Trade receivables FEWE 5 IR 8.8
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables Re ~ AN RRIE K H M RE WRIE 237
Bank balances and cash WITHEHRRIES 1738
Trade payables, provision and accrued charges BNESER BELESER (25.3)
Lease liabilities HEBE (14.8)
Other liabilities HibBE (26)
30.1
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HEMBR A2 W :
Net consideration received B EFEE 2106
Net assets disposed of HEZEEFHAE (30.1)
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of LA K AT B A BIE B R m A
the net assets of the subsidiaries reclassified WEBAREEFEREZR
from equity to profit or loss on loss of ENSEEERZ
control of the subsidiaries REtEN Z58 2.0
182.5
Less: Taxation R BiIE (19.0)
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries & W B QR 2 W F R 163.5
Net cash inflows arising on disposal HEZRESRAFE
Net consideration received 2R EFE 2106
Bank balance and cash disposed of HEZRTERRES (17.8)
192.8

196 HKRInternational Limited Annual Report 2020/2021



37 PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2021, certain bank loans of the Group were secured by
investment properties at the carrying value of HK$306.6 million (2020:
HK$315.4 million).

In addition, the loans to a joint venture by the Group amounting to
approximately HK$803.9 million (2020: HK$771.9 million) were
subordinated to banks to secure a banking facility granted to the joint
venture for financing the properties development project.

38 FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

37 EEEH

MR2021F3A318 BRHEE AB30668 & 78 T
(2020F 3154 BA L) 2R EMEECES
EEETRITERZEF -

foh BE—"REERFERTFRITEER
HoEAMERRBEEZES SEEHRM
ZAE RN IRHEA039H & T (20204 ¢
J7N9BBETT) ZERARITIERERE °

38 UHEREN

Guarantee given, to the extent of the Group's
proportionate share, in respect of a banking facility
granted to an investee company (note a)

Guarantee given, to the extent of the Group's
proportionate share, in respect of a banking facility

R (Ffata)

granted to a subsidiary for the development of
projects (note a)

Guarantee given, to the extent of the Group's
proportionate share, in respect of a banking facility
granted to a joint venture for the development of
projects (note a)

Guarantees given by subsidiaries in respect of
mortgage facilities granted to purchasers of the
Group's properties (note b)

VA S5 B B B ) A TR
NRAERNRITEREHEIELZ

DASR B B A L B R PR
FIERERERNRITEER
fEH Z 4R (53X a)

NEBERELG SR REER
AIERERERNRITERSR
e 2 JE 1R (F iEa)

MEBARREENEERER 2
BIBERBED ZERPIRED)

2021 2020
HK$'M HK$'M
BEAETRT BEABTT

AR E
103.2 1174

ST B A
150.0 -
1,052.5 7793
- 3423

Notes:

(@) No provision for financial guarantee contracts has been recognised in the
consolidated financial statements as, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the fair value of the financial guarantee on initial recognition and the amount of
provision to be recognised subsequently was insignificant.

(b) The guarantees are given to banks in respect of mortgage facilities granted by
certain banks relating to the mortgage loans arranged for certain purchasers of the
Group's properties. Such guarantees will be released by banks upon the earlier of issue
of the relevant real estate ownership certificate to the purchasers or the banks have
satisfied themselves to release the guarantees in certain circumstances. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the possibility of default of the parties involved is
remote and the fair values of these financial guarantee contracts are insignificant on
initial recognition and therefore no provision for financial guarantee contracts has been
made at the end of the reporting period.

B &L

@ ARBEERR BNTERANFBEERZAT
BERERETHRANBESBVLIER RAENEF
BUBERERARBAIEERE O 2BE -
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39 COMMITMENTS

39 HiE

2021 2020
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEAETT

Contracted but not provided for:
Capital expenditure in respect of investment

e

B R LB RIERHE
BREMEARYE  BE &G

properties and property, plant and equipment - 108.9 207.2
Others Hith 2.7 43
111.6 2115

40 LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

THE GROUP AS LESSOR

Property rental income earned from investment properties and other
properties during the year was HK$478.8 million (2020: HK$504.6 million)
in aggregate, of which HK$466.5 million (2020: HK$493.0 million) was
generated from investment properties of the Group. Investment
properties and other properties with an aggregate carrying amount of
HKS$15,235.3 million (2020: HK$14,927.9 million) were held for rental
purposes at the end of the reporting period. Depreciation charge for the
year in respect of other properties was HK$1.3 million (2020: HK$1.3
million). The properties held have committed tenants for a period from
one to thirteen years. At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum leases
payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as
follows:

40 HEZH

SEAHAA

REMEREMVERFRARR 2 ERS
WA&E HBH4788E 8B 7T (20209 : 5046 85 8
B Ir) - E 46658 8 % T (20204F 1 49308
EET)REEEREME - RBEHK K
HEA 1523538 878 7L (20204 : 1492798
ERBTICEEMEREIMYETFBERER
B AFEANEMEMMEZTES L A3
BEBETQ0F 13EEET) B AYWE
EAANAHEE 2 T=F1% - RFEH
K EEECHBFPTH MBETATHHEE
EHERTIHEIBZ ARFEREMNK
Ul

2021 2020

HK$'M HKS'M

BEAET BEBTT

EEee——

Within one year —F R 395.8 426.1
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EEFERAF(BIEEREMF) 385.8 598.8
Over five years FE L 0.5 39
782.1 1,028.8
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41 RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

HONG KONG

In order to comply with Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) with employer’s
voluntary contributions has been established on 1 December 2000.

For the members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5% of the
relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000 effective 1 June 2014 for the MPF Scheme,
which contribution is matched by the employee. The Group also makes
voluntary contribution in addition to the mandatory contribution.

The amount charged to profit or loss represents contributions paid or
payable of HK$20.8 million (2020: HK$21.5 million) to the MPF Scheme
by the Group, less forfeitures on voluntary contribution of HK$3.7 million
(2020: HKS4.2 million) arising from employees leaving the Group prior to
completion of the qualifying service period.

At the end of the reporting period, there is no forfeited contributions,
which arose upon employees leaving the retirement benefits schemes
and which are available to reduce the contributions payable in future
years (2020: nil).

MAINLAND CHINA AND OVERSEAS

The employees of the Group in mainland China and overseas are
members of state-managed retirement benefits schemes operated by
the respective local governments in relevant jurisdictions. The Group is
required to contribute and recognise a specified percentage of payroll
costs to the schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligations of the
Group with respect to these schemes are to make the specified
contributions and recognise the respective retirement pay in accordance
with terms set out in the schemes and relevant jurisdiction requirements.

The total cost charged to profit or loss in respect of the above-
mentioned schemes in the relevant jurisdictions amounted to
approximately HK$4.1 million (2020: HK$8.2 million).
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42 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes
long-term bank and other loans, short-term bank loans and other
liabilities as disclosed in Notes 28 and 30, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and accumulated profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a periodic
basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors of the Company, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or
the redemption of existing debt.

43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

42 B E ke EIE

REREEETSERBIHEERELE &
BHEBEABETER UEBEEBRRA
ERRETFEMARRINEHEALDE - £ H
CEERBEBEFEETTE -

EECZEAGEEREERFR(ETRENTE
BRFTFEBEZRBPRTREMEZR T H
BTERREMAE IBRBESRREEE
HRE)RARGHEEAELERS(BEEET
A BEREFHER) -

ARREETENMRNELAERE - FRILER
=80 ARAEFCEBETRAR
EREAZHEBAR REARAEETZE
& SERIKMEE  BITHR  BRERO R
BONMEGAERREES  FATFTHER
BARERE -

43 £ RiT A

TR ZEH
2021 2020
HK$'M HKS'M
ER-%:: 5 BEETT

Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at amortised cost
Equity instruments measured at FVTOCI
TRAE

Financial liabilities
Amortised cost

BRAFEFABREZEREE

REBHKATEZESREE

BATFEFAEMEE KR
AAEZBATA

527.3 488.8
10,261.6 9,605.7
52.6 69.5
9,308.7 9,364.3
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity instruments
measured at FVTOC!, financial assets at FVTPL, investments in debt
instruments measured at amortised cost, trade receivables, amounts due
from associates, loans to joint ventures, amounts due from joint ventures,
bank balances and cash, other financial assets, trade payables, deposits
received and other financial liabilities, bank and other loans and other
liabilities. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Currency risk

The Group does not have significant exposure to foreign currency risk as
majority of the Group's sales and purchases are denominated in currency
which is the functional currency of the respective group entities except
for certain bank balances, loans to joint ventures, financial assets at
FVTPL and FVTOCI and investments in debt instruments measured at
amortised cost which are denominated in foreign currency, other than
the functional currency of the respective group entities.

The carrying amounts of the group entities’ foreign currency
denominated assets and liabilities at the reporting date are as follows:

TREAREERRERBER

SEIXEZESRTABERRAFENAEMLE
ERGEAEZBRATR RAFESAER
ZEMEE REHEKAHEZEBIAR
B EEEZERR  BUWREERRRE  EX
TREEQA BREERANIEA  RITEH
EBe HeREE BENESZEN B
WehEMeaE RITREMERMN
REMAE  ZFcRTAFBRBBMNE
BE -ZEemMTAEBRREETSER
(BE%RAR MEREREEGERRER) EF&
BB A KRB & & B K o AR R & F AR
ZHRENTX EREEBERERZEFR
B - DAREDR BB BB AU HETTE B R B

B E

BRETRITESR ERTFEERR EAF
Bt \BRRBRAFEFAEMEZAREZ
TREERBRBERAFAECEBTARE
MSNEMUFEANEREBERGEERIIE
S EEABAOEEINFHEEER D
RERIE UEBLTEAREAIIEERL
R o

SEERNBEBUINEIEZEERAE
ZEREEMT

Assets Liabilities
BE =R

Currency B 2021 2020 2021 2020
HK$'M HKS'M HKS$'M HKS'M
BEBErT BEAT BEBRT BEAT
N ——
Renminbi AR 273.0 18 - =
US dollar =T 4,695.1 48436 - -
Thai baht =k 324.8 300.2 - -
Euro dollar BT 73.5 718 - -
Singapore dollar EIIb 76.2 = - =
Others Hfth 13.4 14.0 - -
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Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the currency risk of US dollar and Thai
baht. The sensitivity analysis excludes balances which are denominated
in US dollars for an entity with Hong Kong dollars as its functional
currency since Hong Kong dollar is pegged to US dollar.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% decrease in the
functional currency of the respective group entities against the relevant
foreign currencies. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnels and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at
the end of the reporting period for a 5% change in foreign currency
rates. The analysis illustrates the impact for a 5% weakening of the
functional currency of the respective group entities against the relevant
foreign currency and a positive number below indicates an increase in
profits for the year and in exchange reserve. For a 5% strengthening of
the functional currency of the respective group entities against the
relevant foreign currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact
on the profits for the year and exchange reserve.

HREDM
SEIZEARETMNFHRELEZEERR -
MRETERETHE REGERESTTE
RERBUBTHEREDEER) UXTIIE
ZRERR

TERFINEEHRNAHEEEEB 2R
HARBONEE R T %2 BRE - 5%% M
TEEBEABAMERIIERRAA ZH
RE -V REEEHEXRSEAEEH 2
i o URE D ITE BB AININEINE 2 # R &
BEERER YRNBERRABREBEUR
BRE R 7 50 % &) - T 51| *ﬁ%ﬁlkﬁﬁﬁ%l,\
B ER L ARINERENITE
i’%IE%Z%%mKiEmﬂ&[RfaﬁﬁZ%ﬂﬂ°
MEEEEER W EE L AERINEHER
5% Z FH1E - Rl & B A F B M N E KR
EXRHERZFERE -

Increase in
Increase in profits exchange reserve
i A 48 hn BE 5 fif #5358 0

Currency 4 2021 2020 2021 2020

HK$'M HKS'M HK$'M HKS'M

BEEET BEET BEERT BAEATR

N

Renminbi AR 13.6 0.1 - -

US dollar ETT - - 212.6 2215

Thai baht e - - 16.2 15.0

Euro dollar BX JT 2.1 17 1.6 19

Singapore dollar T 3.8 - - -

In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of & 12 B3R A5 B PR & 2 K 2 b I T 88 < Be

the inherent foreign exchange risk as the exposure at the end of the FERZ AR WHRESMEITREXEE 2
reporting period does not reflect that during the year. AN BEE &L B o
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Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
investments in debt instruments measured at amortised cost and debt
securities at FVTPL (see Note 20), fixed-rate loans to joint ventures and
fixed-rate bank deposits, borrowings (see Note 28) and lease liabilities (see
Note 29). The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank deposits and borrowings (see Notes 25(a)
and 28), loans to joint ventures, advances from non-controlling
shareholders (see Note 30) and mortgage instalment receivables (see
Note 21). It is the Group's policy to keep its borrowings at floating rate of
interests so as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this
note. The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of HIBOR, other relevant interbank offered rates or other
benchmark interest rates arising from the Group’s borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments at the end of
the reporting period. The variable-rate bank deposits have been
excluded from sensitivity analysis as the management of the Group
considered that the interest rate fluctuation is not significant. For
variable-rate bank borrowings, loans to joint ventures, advances from
non-controlling shareholders and mortgage instalment receivables, the
analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability and asset
outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnels and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’'s:

° profit for the year ended 31 March 2021 would decrease/increase
by HKS$38.4 million (2020: HK$31.6 million). This is mainly attributable to
the Group's exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate bank
borrowings, loans to joint ventures, advances from non-controlling
shareholders and mortgage instalment receivables.
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Other price risk

The Group is exposed to market price fluctuation through its investments
in both listed and unlisted securities. The management manages this
exposure by maintaining a diversified portfolio. The level and volatility of
the prices of securities may be affected by general economic and market
conditions, such as interest rates, availability of credit, inflation rates,
economic uncertainty, changes in laws (including taxation law), trade
barriers, currency exchange controls, and national and international
political circumstances, if applicable.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to price of securities investments at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective securities investments had been 5%
higher/lower:

o profit for the year ended 31 March 2021 and investment
revaluation reserve as at 31 March 2021 would increase/decrease by
HK$26.4 million (2020: HK$22.0 million) and HK$2.5 million (2020: HK$2.7
million) for the Group respectively as a result of changes in fair value of
equity and debt securities instrument measured at FVTPL and FVTOCI
respectively.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties and financial guarantees provided by
the Group is arising from:

° the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position; and

° the amount of financial guarantee contracts in relation to financial
guarantees issued by the Group as disclosed in Note 38.

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to
cover its credit risks associated with its financial assets and financial
guarantee contracts, except that the credit risks associated with
mortgage instalment receivables is mitigated because they are secured
over properties.
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Except for debt securities at FVTPL, the Group performed impairment
assessment for financial assets and other items under ECL model.
Information about the Group’s credit risk management, maximum credit
risk exposures and the related impairment assessment, if applicable, are
summarised as below:

Loans to joint ventures and an investee/Amounts due from joint
ventures and associates

For the purpose of internal credit risk management, the Group regularly
monitors the business performance of the joint ventures, associates and
an investee. The Group's credit risks in these balances are mitigated
through the value of the assets held by these entities and the power to
participate or jointly control the relevant activities of the associates and
joint ventures. The management considers that the counterparty has a
low risk of default, after taking into the consideration of the value of the
assets held by these entities and the operating result of these entities.

Trade receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model on trade balances individually or based on provision matrix. The
trade receivables are grouped under a provision matrix based on shared
credit risk characteristics by reference to repayment histories for
recurring customers. Details of the quantitative disclosures are set out
below in this note.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group uses debtors’
aging to assess the impairment for its customers because these
customers consist of a large number of small customers with common
risk characteristic that are representative of the customers’ abilities to
pay all amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms.

Based on the internal assessment, the management considers that the
balances are of low risk and not credit impaired for ECL assessment if the
counterparty has a low risk of default or counterparty has past due debts
but usually settles after due date while the balances are of doubtful and
credit impaired for ECL assessment if there have been significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition through information developed
internally. For the balances that are classified as doubtful, the Group has
made full provision at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2021.
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The management considers that the amount of loss allowance at 31
March 2020 and 31 March 2021 were considered as insignificant to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group, having assessed the
nature of the business.

Investments in debt instruments and bank balances

The Group only invests in debt instruments issued by issuers that have
strong credit ratings to mitigate counterparty risk. Credit exposures to
debt instruments are monitored and reported regularly to the
management.

The credit risks on bank balances are limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

Financial guarantee contracts

For financial guarantee contracts, the maximum amount that the Group
has guaranteed under the respective contracts was HK$1,305.7 million
(2020: HK$1,239.0 million) as at 31 March 2021. At the end of the
reporting period, the management of the Group has performed
impairment assessment, and concluded that there has been no
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition of the financial
guarantee contracts. Accordingly, the loss allowance for financial
guarantee contracts issued by the Group is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECL.

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across
diverse industries and geographical areas. Other than concentration of
credit risk on loans to joint ventures and amounts due from joint
ventures, the Group does not have any other significant concentration
of credit risk.
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The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group’s major N &=y EBEBELEHREEBEBIG 2

financial assets, which are subject to ECL assessment: ESMEENARZEERR
External Internal Gross
credit credit carrying
As at 31 March 2021 Notes rating rating 12-month or lifetime ECL amount

HNEEE RBEE NRBAAREAFHRZ

R2021%3A31H MaE AR B REEEBE REAE
HK$'M
BERET

Financial assets at amortised cost

RBHERLITTECEREE
Loans to joint ventures included in interests in 19,25(c) N/A Lowrisk  12-month ECL 6,474.2
joint ventures, and amounts due from TEH &R B NREARBEESE

joint ventures
AAGERRIZEEZERTREAR
RIEWA %A R KA

Loan to an investee included in other assets 21 N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 106.6

SFAEMEEZAABEREERER TiE A &E k& NEAEHEEER

Investments in debt instruments measured 20 A3-B1 N/A 12-month ECL 113.0
at amortised cost A3ZEB1 TEH NEAEHEERFE

REHKAGELEBIARE

Bank balances 25(a), 34(c) Aal-Baa2 N/A 12-month ECL 3,060.9
RITHE B Aa1ZEBaa2 FEH NREAEHEEEE
Trade receivables 24 N/A Lowrisk  Lifetime ECL - not credit 79.5
UE 5 RRK TER 18 & B3 impaired
EREHAZEBEE
BR-BEERE
N/A Doubtful Lifetime ECL - credit impaired 23
TEA xR ERFHAZEBEE
BRE-EERE
Amounts due from associates 18 N/A Highrisk  Lifetime ECL - credit impaired 588.9
& i Bk & X B R IE TEA = B ERFHACRBEE
BE-FERE
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Gross
External Internal carrying
As at 31 March 2020 Notes credit rating  credit rating 12-month or lifetime ECL amount
SNEEE AEEE NEAXERFHAZ
720203 A31H B 5% BE BEN HHEEEE REAE
HKS'M
BEEL
Financial assets at amortised cost
REBHEREATECERMEE
Loans to joint ventures included in interests in 19,25(c)  N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 6,327.7
joint ventures, and amounts due from joint TiE A 16 /2 f2 NEAEBEEERE
ventures
FAGERRIZERZERTAEERA
REWE &R AIHIEA
Loan to an investee included in other assets 21 N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 106.6
FAREMEECMEBRERERER TERA g REAEBEEERE
Investments in debt instruments measured at 20 A3-B1 N/A 12-month ECL 111
amortised cost A3EB] T iE A REAEBEEER
BEERAFTECEBIARE
Bank balances 25(a), 34(c)  Aal-Baa2 N/A 12-month ECL 25114
RITHEER AalEBaa2 TiEH REARBEEER
Trade receivables 24 N/A Low risk Lifetime ECL - not credit 29.5
W B S8R K iE A 1K [ B impaired
THEHRZBEREER
BE-BEERE
N/A Doubitful Lifetime ECL - credit impaired 22
TE A & BR FCREHANCESREES
BE-EERE
Amounts due from associates 18 N/A High risk Lifetime ECL - credit impaired 588.8
JlE s Bk & 1 R FROR TEA = B FRFHANCEHREERR
-EERE

The table below shows reconciliation of loss allowances that have been [~ EXEHF| G A E AT 2 HFZZERT
recognised for loans to joint ventures included in interests in joint &A@ R AHMEE ZAHBERE ;T%‘RE
ventures and loan to an investee included in other assets. RERZEBEEELRR -
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12-month ECL

NREARHEEEE
Loans to Loans to
joint ventures an investee
EXT BHEBERE
BERQH HRER
HK$'M HK$'M
BEBTT BEBT
As at 1 April 2019 R2019F4H1H 204 04
Impairment under ECL model BREEREEEEER 2RE 0.7 =
As at 31 March 2020 7202043 A 31 A 211 04
Impairment under ECL model REFHEESBEENR ZRE 023) =
As at 31 March 2021 7202163 H31H 20.8 0.4

Loss allowances recognised for loans to joint ventures and loan to an
investee are measured at 12-month ECL, there is no transfer from
12-month ECL to lifetime ECL during the year as there is no significant
increase in credit risk for these financial assets.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group's operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation
of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source of liquidity.
As at 31 March 2021, the Group has available unutilised overdraft and
bank loan facilities of approximately HK$2,772.4 million (2020: HK$5,495.6
million).

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board
of directors of the Company, which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management of the Group’s short,
medium and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements.

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual maturity
for its financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms except
for the bank loans with a repayable on demand clause. For non-
derivative financial liabilities, the table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are
floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at
the end of the reporting period.

RERTRERARAMEBREHERER
ERAZEEREUREABREEEE
E BRFARSFREEZEERRY &
BEEN MHBEREAENCEEBEEE
EERFHAZEREESE-

REE € E b

REERBECRARME SEERK#ER
EEEARENREEZERTHES AR
RenBRBF B8R MREFEERA K
F-EREERRTEEZ2HABR X8

R AE R -

CEEEXKBRTEBREARDESZEER
TR R2021FE3A3H  EEHEAEAHEFERE
MABABZESIRBITERBL2INAEE
7 7T (20204F : 54956 A BB TT) ©

ARREZFENRPESCAREEALERR
B REERSBEZEH HHERHES
ERBESERFREL - BAREZIRDE
TEREBIER -

TRFINEEREHEERDRGA QR
2% @B A (BB AT RER 25K EE RN RTT
EREN) -ETTESREBEMS - IR
DEEETHRERNRZEFEH 2/ A
BZRBBAESRE - KPBEHEFERA
EZRER - WHRERZFBNEFE K
RRRSRBARBEREMRZAME-
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & Z=2021F3831HLEFE

Liquidity risk table REESEKRK
Repayable
on demand Total  Carrying
or within 1-2 2-5 Over undiscounted amount at
1year years years 5 years cash flows 31 March
BRERHE ARH R3A3A
~FhKE -ZMF —EEF BENL RENAE 2EEE
HKSM  HK$'M  HKSM  HK$'M HKSM  HKS'M
EEET BEST BEST GEERT  BEER BEER
.||
2021 20215
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ T4 ¢REE
Trade payables and accrued charges BB SRR LB
EH 140.2 - - - 140.2 140.2
Deposits received and other financial B IRE R EMH SR
liabilities =0 151.7 - - - 151.7 151.7
Bank and other loans RITREMER
- variable-rate -2E 855.5 1791  6,932.2 - 7,966.8  7,684.8
Other liabilities Hi g & 337.1 192.2 - 8123 13416 13320
Financial guarantee contracts FSERAY 1,305.7 - - - 1,305.7 -
2,790.2 3713 6,932.2 8123 10,906.0 9,308.7
Lease liabilities HEBRE 21.5 115 137 61.7 108.4 76.8
Repayable
on demand Total Carrying
or within 1-2 2-5 Over undiscounted  amount at
1 year years years 5 years cash flows 31 March
REKRK REHE R3A3H
—ENEE —EZMFE ZERF RENE BeRBE KEE
HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M
BERT BERAT RAEAT BEST BEAT REATL
2020 20204
Non-derivative financial liabilites ~ {74+ ¢ RAE
Trade payables and accrued charges ERESETRER
£H 1686 - = = 1686 1686
Deposits received and other financial B E & R EME R
liabilities BfE 1934 - = - 1934 1934
Bank and other loans RITREMER
- fixed-rate -ER 7994 = = = 7994 7980
- variable-rate 28 34242 5289 28825 - 6,835.6 6,523.2
Other labilities Hih g & 3506 400.1 159.2 809.9 17198 1681.1
Financial guarantee contracts S EREH 12390 - - - 12390 -
6,175.2 929.0 30417 809.9 10,955.8 9,364.3
Lease liabilities MEBR 201 149 179 646 1175 830
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The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for
non-derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if changes in
variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, all bank loans are classified in
respective time band based on the agreed repayment terms except for
the bank loans with a repayable on demand clause.

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are included in the
“Repayable on demand or within 1 year” time band in the above maturity
analysis. As at 31 March 2021, the aggregate undiscounted principal
amounts of these bank loans amounted to HKS$465.3 million (2020:
HKS$526.1 million). Taking into account the Group's financial position, the
directors of the Company do not believe that it is probable that the
banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The directors of the Company believe that such bank loans
as at 31 March 2021 will be repaid within one year (2020: within one
year) of the reporting date in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements, details of which are set out in the
table below:

EREHAEN AL REBEIAIA 2B -
5 7R B PR 7 8 BY B 3R 45 R B E 2 A
HRIRBEA R R R 2T -

20213 4318 K2020F3HA31H - BT A iR
TEZFNEBEERE URABRESED
B A BEREREZEKERZBRITER
B o o

AEBFABEREREEERRZBITERGT AN
LEHSAS MR B — FREE]EFHE
DEF - R2021FE3A3HE ZERTERZ
KREAFIR KRS # % B46538 & 785 7T (20204F ¢
5261 EBBL) KEEBEBZWBARRIE
ARAREERABTBEIENTEERNBEES
KA ER e R AAIEFMEE 2021534
NNBZRSRITERGIZRBE R ZFTEEE
FERBAE RREBHE;—F(2020%F :
—F)NEE  FBHINRTER:

Total
Within 1-2 2-5 undiscounted Carrying
1year years years cashflows  amount
REEE
—FR —ZEZWME ZZFEF BEREE REE
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEE®ET BEEAnT HEAR BEEBT BEAR
. !/ /! ! /' ||
At 31 March 2021 72021463 831H 468.7 - - 468.7 465.3
At 31 March 2020 R2020F3H31H 5335 = = 5335 526.1
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FAIR VALUE

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts are the
maximum amounts the Group could be required to settle under the
arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed
by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at the end
of the reporting period, the Group considers that it is more likely than
not that no amount will be payable under the arrangement. However,
this estimate is subject to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a function of the
likelihood that the financial receivables held by the counterparty which
are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as
follows:

. the fair values of financial assets with standard terms and
conditions and traded on active liquid markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices; and

. the fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The consolidated financial statements include holdings in unlisted equity
securities which are measured at fair value using valuation techniques
based on inputs that can be observed in the market in addition to
unobservable inputs such as company specific financial information (Note
20).

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of

financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised costs on the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.
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LA BRRANATANSEIINE T H
RERTEREERBEZHAENZHER
TENEReE REXRBEHROES
SERRRAUELBEARBELHEINETME
e R WEMGBFRTFHETREBEERRE D
B AV R REME T RE 0 Ut AT BE 1 AR AR
RETABAENRBUERARZEEBENH
BEME -

TREENRERABZAFEDIRATITR
BT

s AFEBREGARGELRERTETS
EEVeRMEEZATEDBENSE AR
EBmMEE: &

+ HUSRAERSBAGIAFENR
B-REBEZEEML LRERRASR
P T -

RAMBRRERWIFLTRAERTEE
ZRAENERAGBERDERABRETSEH
ABBRAABERABERNRRRENH
BRHR R FER 2 (5E20)

ARBEERR N M B RER A A HH
KRAANRZEREE R BEZREER
HERAFERBES -



44 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES
AND JOINT VENTURES

(@) Details of principal subsidiaries incorporated and have their

principal place of operations in Hong Kong are as follows:

Name of company

ACEE

31 March 2021
20213 A31H

44 TEHMENT - BEQT

4l
el]

@ HEBFEEAMKILTIELEMHURE
BZETEMNBARFEENOT

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

Ace Spring Limited
MEARA A

Active Future Limited

[EFARAR

Allmedco Group Limited

AmMed Cancer Center (Central) Limited

AmMed Hong Kong Limited
ZEBBEBERAA

Beaufort Hotels Limited

Cardiomed Limited
RHREARAA

Co-Success Investment Limited

ERRERRAA

Equity Equity
interest interest
Issued attributable Issued attributable
share capital tothe Group  sharecapital  tothe Group  Principal activities
58 £
ERITRAE BiERE BBITRA fElhiRE EEXEHR
HK$ % HK$ %
BT BT
:
1 100 1 100  Property investment
MERE
1 100 1 100 Property investment
MERE
1,500,000 80 1,500,000 456  Trading of medical and dental
equipment and supplies
EERBRETNREKR
& m
2 100 2 100  Provision of cancer treatment
services and diagnostic
imaging services
REBRDGERE RiE R
AR 7%
10,000 100 10,000 100  Investment holding
REZEK
1 100 1 100  Provision of hotel management
services
REBIEEE RS
1 100 1 100 Investment holding
REEZRK
2 100 2 100 Property investment

MERE
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & Z=2021F3831HLEFE

Principal activities

IREH

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
2021%3A31H 20203 A31H
Equity Equity
interest interest
Issued attributable Issued attributable
Name of company share capital tothe Group  sharecapital  tothe Group
£ ]
DNEEB BRITRAE EiEkE BEHTKRAX JE 16 B
HKS$ % HK$ %
B BT
-
Discovery Bay Commercial Services 2 50*% 2 50%
Limited
REBERBERR
Discovery Bay Enterprises Limited 400,000 50* 400,000 50*
Discovery Bay Financial Services Limited 2 50* 2 50%
WREFBREERL
Discovery Bay Golf Club Umited 2 50* 2 50%
MRESBRREERA
Discovery Bay Hotel Limited 2 50% 2 50%
Discovery Bay Ice Rink Limited 1 50* 1 50*
6 =2 R KI5 B R AD A
Discovery Bay Marina Club Limited 2 50% 2 50%
RERESRERA
Discovery Bay Property Limited 2 50* 2 50*
MREMERERLIDA
Discovery Bay Recreation Club Limited 2 50* 2 50%
MRERELEERA
Discovery Bay Road Tunnel Company 2 50* 2 50*
Limited

MREREER AR

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2020/2021

Commercial leasing agent

AEHEERE

Operation of a shipyard
=EMIG

Provision of financial services to
first hand purchasers of
properties in Discovery Bay

AARENELZ —FEX
R B 75 AR 7%

Provision of club facilities
Rt = ki

Hotel operator

BIE S E

Ice rink operator
Bk HE

Provision of club facilities
TA—E 1/\ = Fﬁ ﬂxﬁﬁl

Provision of property agency
services

RUMERERS

Provision of club facilities

REEFRIE

Road tunnel operator
BEeE



Name of company

ARt

31 March 2021
2021¥3 A31H

Issued
share capital

ERTRAE
HK$
BT

Discovery Bay Services Management
Limited
MRERBERFRAF

Discovery Bay Transit Services Limited
MREXBRE AR A

Discovery Bay Transportation Services
Limited
WREMEREER AR

Dorro Properties Limited

BMEXBERRAA

Emerald Property Limited
BEMERRAF

Fame Wood Limited

BIRRBR AR

Gains Century Limited
EMAR AR

Garnet Property Limited
BRMNEBERRAA

GenRx Healthcare Services Limited

EnERRERBERAR

500,000

1#

Equity
interest
attributable
to the Group
58

G R
%

50*

50*

50*

100

50*

100

100

50*

100

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

Equity
interest
Issued attributable
share capital ~ tothe Group  Principal activities
]
BETRA ElERE FEEK
HK$ %
BT
2 50*  Estate manager and principal
lessee of communication
network in Discovery Bay
BRERE RS ERA
WE 2 FEEREA
2 50*  Provision of bus and garage
services
RED T RBEERS
2 50%  Provision of ferry services
RAEE @ R 75
500,000 100 Property investment
MEKE
1 50* Property investment
MERE
2 100 Property investment
MEKRE
1 100  Investment holding
REEK
1 50*  Property investment
MEKRE
2 100  Provision of corporate

consultancy services to

healthcare operating units
o) 58 B IR {2 2 BB AR

CEFARYE

EREEFREBEBRAF 2020/2021 F#H
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Name of company

AR

31 March 2021
2021$3 A31H

Grace Investment Limited

EEREERAA

Greenyield Limited
ABER AR

Hagent Investment Limited

BERERRAA

Health & Care Dental Clinic Limited
ERIBEBEMBRA A

Health & Care Group Limited
EREREEERAA

Healthway Medical Centres Limited
RHEEEFOLBRAA

HKR (PRO) Limited
BREEX(FE)ARAA

HKR Limited
BABENEERA A

HKR Properties Limited
BREERWMR)BERRAT

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

Equity Equity
interest interest
Issued attributable Issued attributable
share capital tothe Group  sharecapital  tothe Group  Principal activities
58 £H
ERITRAK BERE BEITRA ERiRE FEEK
HK$ % HK$ %
BT B
-
2 100 2 100 Property investment
MERE
2 100 2 100 Property investment
MERE
2 100 2 100 Property investment
MERE
10,100,000 100 10,100,000 5705  Provision of dental health and
care services and operation
of dental clinics
RETRHREEERSE X
LETRD M
20,510,000 100 20,510,000 5705  Investment holding and its
subsidiaries are engaged in
development and operation
of dental clinic chain
REZR  mEKER A
At R R L EEEH
TEZ
1 100 1 100 Operation of medical centres
REBRED L
2 100 2 100 Investment holding
REEZK
2 100 2 100 Property management
MEEE
2 100 2 100 Property investment

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2020/2021
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31 March 2021 31 March 2020

2021563 A31H 202053 A31H
Equity Equity
interest interest
Issued attributable Issued attributable
Name of company share capital tothe Group  sharecapital  tothe Group  Principal activities
58 £
INCIEE ERITRAE BiERE BETRA ElERE FEEK
HKS$ % HK$ %
BT BT

Hong Kong Health Resort Limited 4 100 4 100  Property investment and
investment holding
MERERREER
Hong Kong Resort Company Limited 389,243,374.35%* 50%  389243374.35** 50%  Property development and
BREZARRAA] investment holding
MEERRREER
Humphrey & Partners Medical Services 1 94.25 1 94.25  Administration of clinic network
Management Limited ERDHAEE
Jasper Garden Limited 1% 50% 1 50%  Property investment
E2EEBERAA MERE
Kinter Limited 1 100 1 100  Property investment
BEARRA MERE
Lam Island Development Company 2,000,000 99.99 2,000,000 99.99  Property development
Limited MEERE
MERESERAA
Lee Wo Company, Limited 300,000 100 300,000 100 Property investment
FIFARA A MERE
Macro Future Limited 1 100 1 100  Investment holding
BEARRDA REZK
Moonstone Hill Limited 1H# 50* 1 50%  Property investment
AUWERAR MERE
Noble Glamour Limited 1 100 1 100 Investment holding
SEARAA REZK
Opal Property Limited 1 50* 1 50%  Property investment
BIHNEERAA MERE
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Name of company

AR

31 March 2021
2021$3 A31H

Equity
interest
Issued attributable
share capital to the Group
58
ERITRAK PEfh R
HK$ %
BT

Parocka Investments Limited

Partner Ally Limited
FXKARAA

Pearl Development Limited

BERRBERRAA

Qualigenics Medical Limited

EEBFEERAQA

Quebostage Limited
BEARAR

Rainbow Alpha Holdings Limited
REERAERAF

Regal Galaxy Investment Limited

RREREBARRAA

Royston Investment Limited
MEEXREBRRA

Scoot Development Limited

TCS Project Management Limited

The Sukhothai Hotels & Resorts Limited

20 100
1,000 75
2 100
3,000,000 100
2 100

1 75

1 100

2 100
¥R 100

2 100

1 100
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31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

Equity
interest
Issued attributable
share capital ~ tothe Group  Principal activities
5B
BT A IGRE FEEK
HKS %
BT
20 100 Property investment
MERE
1,000 75 Investment holding
REER
2 100 Property investment
MERE
3,000,000 100 Operation of diabetes and
endocrine disorders clinics
RERRBRADWKA
P2
2 100 Property investment
EL &
1 75  Property development
MEERE
1 100 Property investment
EL &
2 100  Investment holding
REER
]rE* 100  Investment holding
REER
2 100  Provision of project
management services
RUEEEEE RS
1 100  Provision of hotel management

services

REEEEERS



Name of company

ARt

31 March 2021
2021¥3 A31H

Issued
share capital

ERTRAE
HK$
BT

Victor Century Investment Limited
BARERRAF

Wells Estate Services Limited

BEMERBEERRA

Wells Property Management Limited
IS RERBRAA

World Forum Investment Limited

IWARERRA A

Yintaly Construction Company Limited

ENRETRERRAA

*  According to the shareholders’ agreement of Hong Kong Resort Company Limited *
("HKRC"), the Group is able to control more than half of the voting powers of the board

100,000

1,000

Equity
interest
attributable
to the Group
58

G R
%

100

100

100

100

100

of directors (which determines the relevant activities) of HKRC and its subsidiaries.

**|n addition to 1 ordinary share, 100% in the value of HK$389,243,373.85 deferred
shares are also held by the Group. The deferred shares held by the Group are shares
whose shareholders are neither entitled to receive notices, attend, vote at any general
meetings nor to receive any dividend out of operating profit and have very limited

rights on return of assets of the company.

*** Beside the 1 ordinary share of HK$1.00, the issued share capital of the company also

includes JPY270,875,000 divided into 270,875 redeemable preference shares.

31 March 2020
2020F3 A31H

Equity
interest
Issued attributable
share capital ~ tothe Group  Principal activities
]
BETRA ElERE FEEK
HK$ %
BT
1 100  Provision of financial services to
first hand purchasers of
2GETHER and properties in
Discovery Bay
mMEBTRMRENEZ
—FERRHM KRS
100,000 100  Property management, estate
manager and investment
holding
MEREBEBUREKE
i
1,000 100  Property management and
estate manager
MEREHER
- - Property development
MEER
2 100 Property investment

= BRI TR R
389243373858 L 2 IEERR 1) - EBIF B ELER D 2 &
REEEFNERAN HFEEMRIRAEENE LR
ZNEEMNEDRAEERHPIIRZEMBERE - &

MERE

REFERXARAR(EBEX]) 2BRERHZ
SEANENEERERENBERAR Z2EZTEORE
HERES) et Ect

R o

£ B R B100%E &

BREAZARIFFERIEERBER -

e R IRTENME 21,008 TT 2 B BARSN

Z AR ZEET

% 78 7% 3 5 (B {8 270,875,000 B [B 2 4 270,875 B 2 7] §& 2l

BER -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 & Z=2021F3831HLEFE

* Beside the 1 ordinary share of HK$1.00, the issued share capital of the company also

includes HK$276,000,000, representing 276,000,000 redeemable preference shares.

# Beside the 1 ordinary share of HK$1.00, the issued share capital of the company also

includes HK$218,000,000, representing 218,000,000 redeemable preference shares.

¥ Beside the 1 ordinary share of HK$1.00, the issued share capital of the company also
includes HK$267,000,000, representing 267,000,000 redeemable preference shares.

## Beside the 1 ordinary share of HK$1.00, the issued share capital of the company also
includes HK$213,000,000, representing 213,000,000 redeemable preference shares.

i Beside the 1 ordinary share of HK$1.00, the issued share capital of the company also
includes HK$207,000,000, representing 207,000,000 redeemable preference shares.

(b)  Details of other principal subsidiaries are as follows:

31 March 2021
2021638318
Nominal value
Place of Principal of issued share
incorporation/ place of capital/ registered
Name of company registration operation capital
AL/ IEEE BRTRE/
NAER BRBH & dMERZEE

Abraham Holdings Limited Liberia Hong Kong Nil
M2 BB i

Abraham Investment British Virgin Islands ~ Note* Us$1
Holdings Limited ERERREE M 127
Beaufort Holdings Limited Cayman Islands Hong Kong HK$10,197,932
AERS R 10,197,932/ 7T

Beaufort International Hotels Singapore Singapore $$1,000,000
(Singapore) Pte Ltd b b 1,000,000 % 7T
JPY715,840,000

715,840,000 A

(CDW Building Limited Cayman Islands Hong Kong HK$5,100,002
REES R 5,100,0027 7T

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2020/2021

fBRIREEARI00B T Z BRI Z AR ZE BT
% 78 71 8 45 {8 1B 276,000,000 7% 7T X 3% 276,000,000 % 2 A]
FEEELR -

* BRIREEAI0BIT 2 LB Z AR ZE BT
% 75 75 B2 4 {8 {8.218,000,000 7% 7T X 3% 218,000,000 A% 2 7]
fE BB Sk -

*BRIREBEAI0B T EEBRIIN ZARZEEST
A% 7K IR B 4 {8 B 267,000,000 7T R 5 267,000,000 B 2 &]
EEELR -

"R IRTEE A 1008 T 2 BRI Z AR Z B BT
fi% 78 71 8 45 {8 1B 213,000,000 7% 7T X 5% 213,000,000 & 2 A]
FEEELR -

IR IREE A 1008 T 2 BRI Z AR Z B BT

A% 7 75 B2 4% {8 {8 207,000,000 7% 7T X 3% 207,000,000 A% 2 7]
& 20 {8 5% P& -

by HEMETEZHMBRAFBEET :

31 March 2020

200F3A31H
Equity Nominal value Equity
interest ofissued share interest

attributable  capital/registered  attributable
to the Group capital tothe Group Principal activities

L] BETEA/ e}
BiERE EMEAZEE EHRE TEXE
% %

100 Nil 100 Securities investment
i EHRE
100 US$1 100 Securities investment
E EFHRE
100 HK$10,197,932 100 Investment holding
1019793258 7 REER
100 541,000,000 100 Investment holding
1,000000% 7T REER
JPY420,240,000
420,240,000 B
100 HKS5,100,002 100 Property investment
510000278 7T nERE



31 March 2021

31 March 2020

202153H31R 20053318
Nominal value Equity Nominal value Equity
Place of Principal of issued share interest of issued share interest
incorporation/ place of capital/registered  attributable  capital/registered attributable
Name of company registration operation capital  to the Group capital  tothe Group Principal activities
AL/ TEEE BRITRE/ £8 BEIRA/ &8
REER B & dMERcEE EERE HIMEAZEE EERE TEXE
% %
-
GenRx Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Note** Us$1 100 USS1 100 Investment holding
RAZRAERRHA ERABREE Mar 1% Ee REZR
Hanbright Assets Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong Uss$1 100 USS1 100 Investment holding
ABAARESE BH 1% 1% REZR
Health & Care (Macau) Dental Group  Macau Macau MOP25,000 100 MOP25,000 57.05 Operation of dental clinic
Limited 2P A 25,0002 7T 250002 7T in Macau
EROEMIHEERRAF ERMBETHD M
HK Resort International Limited Cayman Islands Hong Kong HK$3 100 HKS2 100 Investment holding
HEHS B 3BT 2ET REZR
HKR Asia-Pacific Pte Ltd Singapore Singapore $$5,000,000 100 545,000,000 100 Investment holding
R il 5,000,0003 7T 50000005 7T REER
JPY2,693,360,000 JPY2,693,360,000
2,693,360,000 H 2,693,360,000 B
THB24,700,000 THB24,700,000
24,700,000% & 24,700,000 8
HKR China Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Note* Uss$1 100 USS1 100 Investment holding
BRRETEERAT ERABRES Mar 127 (EI0 RERR
HKR Company Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Note** Uss$2 100 USs2 100 Investment holding
ERABRES Mar PES 2ET REER
HKR Japan KK Japan Japan JPY10,000 100 JPY10,000 100 Property investment
AA BA 10,000 B 10000 B NERE
HKR Shanghai Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Note** Us$1 100 USS1 100 Investment holding
EBAX LBAERAT ERABRES Mar 127 1:7 RERR
HKR) Akasaka TMK Japan Japan JPY2,700,100,000 100 JPY2,700,100,000 100 Property investment
BA A& 2,700,100,000 A 2,700,100,000 B NERE
HKRJ Development Co, Ltd. * Japan Japan JPY10,000 100 JPY10,000 100 Property development
A BA 10,0000 B 10000 B NEER
HKRJ Graphio GK* Japan Japan JPY2,000,000 100 JPY2,000,000 100 Property investment
A& BA 2,000,000 A 2,000,000 H NERE

EREEFREBEBRAF 2020/2021 F#H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & Z=2021F3831HLEFE

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
2021535318 200063A318
Nominal value Equity Nominal value Equity
Place of Principal of issued share interest of issued share interest
incorporation/ place of capital/ registered  attributable  capital/registered attributable
Name of company registration operation capital  to the Group capital  tothe Group  Principal activities
AL/ TEEE BRITRE/ &8 BETRA/ &8
ACIEE S B HE dMERcEE - EERE IMEAZEE EERE TEXE
% %
-
HKRJ Haluwa TMK Japan Japan JPY2,075,100,000 100 JPY2,075,100,000 100 Property investment
AA BA 2,075,100,000 A 20751000008 ESIE-
HKRJ Souei GK* Japan Japan JPY1,000,000 100 JPY1,000,000 100 Property investment
A& BA 1,000,000 A 10000008 nERE
HKRJ Veneo GK* Japan Japan JPY1,000,000 100 JPY1,000,000 100 Property investment
A& BA 1,000,000 A 10000008 nERE
Pine Isle Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong Us$1 100 USS1 100 Investment holding
EEABREE BB 127 1% RELR
Prinia Pte Ltd Singapore Singapore $92 100 592 100 Investment holding
Gilik: DI 2B PRI RELR
Qualipeak Healthcare Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Note** Us$1 100 USS1 100 Investment holding
BHERARAR ERABARES Mr 127 1% RELR
Ruthin Investments Pte Ltd Singapore Singapore $92 100 592 100 Property investment
3 I3% DI 2B PRI NERE
JPY1,362,730,000 JPY1,362,730,000
1,362,730,000 B 1,362,730,000 8
Sathorn Park Co, Ltd. Thailand Thailand THB933,600,000 100 THB933,600,000 100 Hotel operator and owner
=B % 933,600,000 % ¥ 933,600,000 % $ BERERERE
Sky Phoenix Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong US$1 100 USS1 100 Investment holding
ABRBRES BH 1% 1% RELR
nEEEMMERAR PRC PRC RMB8,000,000 100 = - Property development
mE E A %8,000,000 70 NELR
mEEXMMERAR PRC PRC HK$760,000,000 100 HKS760000,000 100 Property development
i i 760,000,000 T 760,000,000 7T NEER
BE(EREBRZAERLA PRC PRC US$1,500,000 100 US$1,500,000 100 Property management
i i 1,500,000 % 7T 1500000% 7T NEER
RREREXERARA PRC PRC HK$915,000,000 100 HKS915000,000 100 Property development and
i i 915,000,0003% 915,000,0007% 7T investment holding

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2020/2021
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31 March 2021

31 March 2020

202153H31R 20053318
Nominal value Equity Nominal value Equity
Place of Principal of issued share interest of issued share interest
incorporation/ place of capital/registered  attributable  capital/registered attributable
Name of company registration operation capital  to the Group capital  tothe Group Principal activities
AL/ TEEE BRITRE/ £8 BEIRA/ &8
REER B & aMEAZzEE  EERE HREAzEE EERE FEXH
% %
-
RARREXERAT PRC PRC RMBS,000,000 100 R\B8,000,000 100 Property development
e G A &%8,000,000 70 AR #80000007C NEER
RREABERERAR PRC PRC RMBS,000,000 100 RMB8 000,000 100 Property development
e G A &%8,000,000 70 AR #80000007C NEER
RARBEXERAT PRC PRC RMB8,000,000 100 RVIB3000,000 100 Property development
e G A &%8,000,000 70 AR 80000007 NEER
BE(LBERERAR PRC PRC US$14,000,000 100 US$14000000 100 Property investment
e G 14,000,000 % 7T 14000000 7T WERE

* These companies are engaged in securities investment business of the Group and

have no specific principal place of operation.

** These companies act as investment holding companies and have no specific

principal place of operation.

* These companies are wholly foreign owned enterprises.

# The Group can enjoy all economic beneficial interest, instead of equity interest, of

the companies by contractual terms.

(©

Details of principal associates are as follows:

31 March 2021

* UEANRFEELESRAEY AMIART
ZEBRERS -

= WERRRREZERAF AMRBERELIES
B A

fERAARNEDRE-

P RERANGAIEAZE AT R EE S
& 0 MIEB AN RS o
© IEBEQFAFBEMOT:

31 March 2020

2021 F 2020F
3A31H 3A31H
Attributable Attributable
Place of interest held by  interest held by
Name of company incorporation the Group the Group  Principal activities
KEFRE KB
DNEAER & R SZ i B PEih s bR EEER
% %
-
Polyoung Limited Hong Kong 31 31 Provision of financial services to first hand
BHEAER AR BB purchasers of Coastal Skyline
MEXERFE —FERREABERS
Tung Chung Station Development Hong Kong 31 31 Property investment
Company Limited A MERE

FEAXERKEERAF 20202021 £ 223



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & Z=2021F3831HLEFE

(d)  Details of principal joint ventures are as follows:

31 March 2021

d) FESLRAFBWOT:

31 March 2020

2021 F 2020
3A31H 3H31H
Attributable Attributable
Place of interest held by interest held by
Name of company incorporation the Group the Group  Principal activities
KEFRE SEPTF
DNAER & B 3L 3t B FE 1L R 25 fElhiEm EEER
% %
-
Advantage Investor Limited British Virgin 50 50  Investment holding
Islands REZER
KBRRRES
City Grace Co,, Ltd. Thailand 49 49  Property development
ER MEER
Dazhongli Properties Limited British Virgin 50 50  Investment holding
REEYMEBRAA Islands REZER
HKBRRRES
Everbeam Investments Limited Hong Kong 50 50  Property development
EHREBRRAT BB MEERE
Everbeam Mortgage Limited Hong Kong 50 50  Provision of financial services to first hand
ERRBERRAA B purchasers of La Cresta
fm) i 31— F B R IR E IR
Gainwick Limited Hong Kong 40 40  Property development
MmEFRAE BB MEERE
Strongbod Limited British Virgin 40 40  Investment holding
Islands REER
KBRRRES
Ultimate Champion Investments Limited British Virgin 50 50  Investment holding
Islands REZEK
REBREARES
BE(LE)FEHEZRARAA* PRC 50 50  Property investment
Fh MERE

¥ The company is wholly foreign owned enterprise.

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2020/2021
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(e)  Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material non-
controlling interests:

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Company that have material non-controlling interests:

© BABAFERERZFZEMBAF
2

TREJFEEERFERBRZARBIFER
EMBRRZFS

Proportion of ownership Profits/(losses) Accumulated
Place of interests and voting rights held  allocated to non- non-controlling
Name of subsidiary incorporation by non-controlling interests  controlling interests interests
FERESFREEREES SETHERES
MWEAREME = AR 3L i B RBREEZLA 2R/ (B8) Rt FERES
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
HK$’'M HKS'M HK$'M HKS'M

Hong Kong Resort Company Limited 50%
and its subsidiaries (note)

EREEZAERAARENMBLA
(Ff&E)

Hong Kong
BB

Individually immaterial subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests
REFERES ZERFEX

(oY=

BEERT BEAT BEAERT BEAT

N I

50% 230.1 622  2,910.2 2,680.2

1.2 (2.5) 10.6 (14)

231.3 59.7  2,920.8 2,678.8

Note:
development, management and provision of essential and recreational services for

Hong Kong Resort Company Limited and its subsidiaries are engaged in the

residential housing and leisure projects principally in Discovery Bay, Lantau Island.

Summiarised consolidated financial information in respect of each of the
Company’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests is set
out below. The summarised consolidated financial information below
represents amounts before intergroup elimination.

HONG KONG RESORT COMPANY LIMITED AND ITS
SUBSIDIARIES

M BEEXAERATAREMNBARNIENRERR
REBTFRURANE LBSEZEETRFTRIKEEE
WAEARM M T KRR -

EHBAERIFEEEGEZARAEHE R
AZEAMBERBMEBRINIMOT - TXHAR
RAMBEMBEZSENEERNHHEAZ

TE -

BEEREXZFRLAREWE LT

2021 2020

HKS$'M HKS'M

BEAET BEAT

N

Current assets mENAE 2,433.4 3,083.5
Non-current assets EMBEE 6,647.1 6,439.3
Current liabilities e aE (1,523.5) (2,145.4)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (1,714.8) (1,986.2)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company KABHER ANEREZR 2,932.0 2,711.0
Non-controlling interests JEPERR HE = 2,910.2 2,680.2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & Z=2021F3831HLEFE

For the year ended 31 March
BE3AMBLEE

2021 2020
HK$'M HKS'M
BEAET BEAT
N
Revenue e A 2,235.5 766.8
Expenses 53 (1,784.5) (642.3)
Profit attributable to owners of the Company R FHER ARG T 220.9 62.3
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests IV A% 25 FE (Vi 230.1 622
Profit for the year KEE A 451.0 1245
Other comprehensive income attributable to KArRHEAABGEMEZE RS
owners of the Company - 7.8
Other comprehensive income attributable to e iR s B (L H b 2 W 2
non-controlling interests - 79
Other comprehensive income for the year REZHME2EY = - 157
Total comprehensive income attributable to ANEEBEARBGEZE KB
owners of the Company 220.9 70.1
Total comprehensive income attributable to IS R 2 E W AR
non-controlling interests 230.1 70.1
Total comprehensive income for the year REE2EMKHBRE 451.0 140.2
Dividend paid to a non-controlling shareholder B\ I 12 AR AR ORI S - 6.0
Net cash inflows from operating activities LEBEBIBRESMAFE 392.6 4708
Net cash outflows used in investing activities "EEESMARE R F58 (186.0) (590.0)
Net cash (outflows)/inflows (used in)/ BEFES(FA)/MBHESORE)/
from financing activities mA R (101.8) 184.7
Net cash inflows e RN FRE 104.8 65.5

All of the above principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
other than Abraham Holdings Limited, Beaufort Holdings Limited,
Hanbright Assets Limited, HK Resort International Limited, HKR Asia-
Pacific Pte Ltd, HKR Company Limited, HKR China Limited, Macro Future
Limited and Noble Glamour Limited, are held indirectly by the Company.

The above tables list the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures of the
Group which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures would, in the opinion of the

BB R R A

ZWE AR -

GG

directors of the Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

Other than club debentures as set out in Note 30, no other loan capital

has been issued by any of the subsidiaries.

HKR International Limited Annual Report 2020/2021

o

B Abraham Holdings Limited * Beaufort Holdings
Limited * Hanbright Assets Limited * HK Resort
International Limited * HKR Asia-Pacific Pte Ltd + HKR
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45 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 45 Bt R X 5

During the year, other than balances with related parties as showninthe [ %5 & Bf %5 Ak 0 3R BT/ B2 B8 B 75 2 45 88 4] -
consolidated statement of financial position, the Group had significant S B G NEEREB HET 2T B ST -

transactions with related parties as follows:

(@)  Transactions with entities controlled by separate discretionary  (a)

HEREERREDZEZTAZTER

trusts with a substantial shareholder act as a corporate trustee. Three (2020:  [EE LML o BB E T2 5 - Rl & B

Four) directors of the Company are among the discretionary beneficiaries RN A &) = % (20204 : MK )E £ A& L=
of the above trusts at the end of the reporting period. EZHIBEIRA

2021 2020
HK$'M HKS'M
BEETR BEET

e

Rental income e WA 5.3 5.5
(b)  Transaction with an associate of a director: b) BEH—FBEZ BB AETIRS:
2021 2020
HK$'M HKS'M
BE&BT BEATT
N
Sales of a property HEY 26.2

HREXEREEFRDF 20202021 FHR 227
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & Z=2021F3831HLEFE

() Transactions with joint ventures of the Group: (0 HEBESEAETZIRS:
2021 2020
HK$'M HKS'M

BEEART BEET

e

Management fee and other service fees AEE ARz EERERAM
from joint ventures B 15 & 36.5 36.2
Interest income from a joint venture A& & A AR 2 R A 12.8 126
Rental income from a joint venture A& SR FWE 2 e A 0.7 19
Rental expense to a joint venture mMeEgER XNz HEER 4.4 42
(d)  Compensation of key management personnel: d FEEEBAEMS :
The remuneration of Executive Directors during the year is as follows: HITESRFERZMEWT -
2021 2020
HK$'M HKS'M

ER-%:: 5 BEETT

e

Short-term employee benefits EHEBRA
Salaries and other benefits & REfbER 23.3 233
Performance related incentive payments EN AR 34.8 57.0
Ex-gratia payment R IR 20.0 =

78.1 80.3

The remuneration of Executive Directors is determined by the H1TEEZMemTFMETE2LERFRE T
remuneration committee having regard to the performance of KIREKMISEBHARBET -
individuals and market trends.
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46 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY

46 1 7]z B %R 0 &

2021 2020
HK$'M HK$'M
BEETR BEATT

e

Non-current assets

FRBEE

Interests in subsidiaries (note (a)) M8 A El i (Bt sk ) 14,179.3 16,434.1
Property, plant and equipment Yz BEMEE 13.2 1838
Right-of-use assets FREEE 22.6 316
Other assets HEmEE 115.5 115.5
Amounts due from joint ventures FEUW & &R Rl I8 609.4 576.7
14,940.0 17176.7
Current assets MENEE
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e TEAEIE K E i W R 59.3 592.7
Bank balances and cash RITHEHRRIE S 629.4 177.7
688.7 7704
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables, provision and accrued charges BNESER BELESER 30.1 356
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE (< BiY B » Rl 3R IR 963.4 2,9458
Lease liabilities HEAE 9.3 9.1
Bank and other loans due within one year —FREBHZRITREMER 615.8 410838
1,618.6 7,099.3
Net current liabilities mREBEFRE (929.9) (6,328.9)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 14,010.1 10,847.8
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 14.4 237
Bank and other loans due after one year —FREBPZRITREMEK 6,363.0 2,794.8
6,377.4 28185
Net assets BEFE 7,632.7 8,029.3
Capital and reserves BARR S
Share capital A% A 371.3 3713
Reserves (note (b)) & (M3 (b)) 7,261.4 7,658.0
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RARER AL 7,632.7 80293

The statement of financial position of the Company was approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 June 2021 and is

signed on its behalf by:

TANG Moon Wah
Managing Director
BmE
EFRLE

5

KRB ZHBEMRAKRE R2021F6 230 #
S ERBREAE THTIIESEAR

NGAN Man Ying
Executive Director
B
HITEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 & Z=2021F3831HLEFE

(a) INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(a) MIEARER
2021 2020
HK$'M HKS'M
BEEABRT BEET

Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRG - EREKAE 3,146.5 21774

Amounts due from subsidiaries JE W BT /B8 A R R IR
Interest bearing portion (note) 55 &6 (K EI) 4,353.5 4,247.0
Non-interest bearing portion E ) 6,679.3 10,009.7
14,179.3 16,434.1

Note: The amounts are unsecured, bear interest at the prevailing market borrowing
rates and have no fixed terms of repayment.

(b) MOVEMENT IN RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Miad: ZEHRARBEER BRROMBEEMNXGFE
R 4 [B T2 B 5K o

(b) AT EEEH

Share Capital
Share options redemption Accumulated
premium reserve reserve profits Total
ROOHE EXED
R 10 % (B & & Sl #at
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M

BEERET BHBERT HBEAR BEERET BHEER

At 1 April 2019 2019418 1,537.9 420 3.1 1,640.6 3,2236
Profit and total comprehensive 7% 4E & 3& F| & &

income for the year Uy 75 48 28 - - - 4,597.8 4,597.8
Dividends paid 2k A% 2 - - - (163.4) (163.4)
At 31 March 2020 R2020F3 A31H 1,5379 420 3.1 6,075.0 7,658.0
Loss and total comprehensive AN F [E E5i8 k2 H

expense for the year Xk azE = = = (233.2) (233.2)
Share options lapsed % 10 B #E 2K 28 - (0.2) = 0.2
Dividends paid 2k B% B = = = (163.4) (1634)
At 31 March 2021 R2021¥3H31H 1,537.9 41.8 3.1 5,678.6  7,261.4

Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium of the Company is available for distribution or paying
dividends to shareholders, subject to the provisions of its memorandum
and articles of association and provided that immediately following the
distribution of dividends, the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business. In accordance with the
Company's articles of association, dividends can only be distributed out
of the accumulated profits of the Company, which amounted to
HK$5,678.6 million (2020: HK$6,075.0 million) as at 31 March 2021.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A FMBHE

=
RESULTS E
For the year ended 31 March
BZ3A31HLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
HK$'M  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM  HKSM
BHBLT BEST BEET BEET BEST
- -
Revenue WA 3,942.3 4,696.5 3,844.0 2,2223 2,234.1
Profit from operations &8 s 1,508.5 2,287.3 2,030.2 2,797.5 1,015.6
Finance costs B 7% & (88.3) (271.8) (245.7) (208.3) (191.7)
Share of results of associates DG E N T X4 (0.1) 0.1) 0.2) 0.2) 0.2)
Share of results of joint ventures D& & A Al ¥4 220.6 506.6 946.7 484 260.6
Profit before taxation KR &4 BT 4 1,640.7 2,522.0 2,7310 2,637.4 1,084.3
Taxation 518 (512.1) (837.7) (325.8) (200.5) (95.8)
Profit for the year R 2k A 1,128.6 16843 2,405.2 24369 9885
Attributable to: T pEA
Owners of the Company ViN/NEETE7 =N 897.3 1,624.6 2,206.9 2,305.1 8239
Non-controlling interests FEVE AR 7 2 231.3 59.7 1983 131.8 164.6
Profit for the year AN 4E [ % F 1,128.6 16843 24052 24369 988.5
N
FINANCIAL POSITION B % R
At 31 March
MW3H31H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
HKS$'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M
BEEBrT AEAT BEAT BEXET BEATT
-
Total assets BE®LE 38,145.0 372409 354574 346367 296306
Total liabilities BEERE (11,540.3) (124947) (115350) (124793) (10,877.0)
Non-controlling interests FE1E R HE 2w (2,920.8)  (26788)  (26220)  (24396)  (23678)
Equity attributable to KARER A
owners of the Company FEfEREZS 23,683.9 22,0674 21,3004 19,717.8 16,385.8
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Particulars of Major Properties
TEYRFE

At 31 March 2021 7202143 H31H

A. PROPERTIES HELD FOR/UNDER

A. TEREBIBRFZ2UHE

DEVELOPMENT
Attributable
Gross floor area Stage of Expected interest to
Descriptions (sq.ft.) completion completion date Nature of property the Group
BEEEE 5
R (FER) TRER BHTEHA WERE FE{h 7l &
1. The remaining phases, KU g =
Discovery Bay, LantauIsland £ T & 5§
(a) Residential FE 46,515 Construction 2021 Residential 50%
under progress FE
IRERH
(b) Others Hit 367,289 Not yet No definite Retained for 50%
commenced plan future development
MAET BETHE BERRER
2. Starlight One, Jiaxing City, ~ BT 4 436,718 Construction 2023 Residential 100%
Zhejiang Province, the PRC. - B ETT £ £ (site area) under progress i€
(MEEE) IRETT
3. Rama 3 Road Project, Z Bl € A Yannawa & 416,180 Planning in No definite Residential 100%
Yannawa District, Rama3RoadJ& B (site area) progress plan fE%E
Bangkok, Thailand (MBEE) HEETH EE TR E
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B. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR

B. REREWEFRAEEW

RENTAL PURPOSES AHE
Attributable
Gross floor area Nature of interestto  Category
Descriptions (sq.ft.) property theGroup  oflease
BEEEE £

R (FAR) MEHE EEFz HEER

4, 3 houses located at Bijou Hamlet, RNE S EENE 7,193 Residential 100%  Medium
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island JEREFRE FE A

5. 4 houses located at Headland Village, KIE L= ER G 10251 Residential 100%  Medium
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island LETEEERE FE i

6. 10 units comprising lowrise KU L5 %1 16,759 Residential 100%  Medium
and duplex apartments located at 10 &M (REEERE FE A
Peninsula Village, &%’ET fir 485X
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island

7. 1 highrise apartment located at AU (L) = 2 B 18 1068 Residential 100%  Medium
Greenvale Village, Discovery Bay, {8 = B E A FE F HY
Lantau Island

8. 20 highrise apartments located at AELmEERRZ S 13,528 Residential 100%  Medium
Parkridge Village, Discovery Bay, 2018 = B E i F=E o
Lantau Island

9. 5 midrise apartments and 1 combined unit RELBRERSES 5,769 Residential 100%  Medium
located at DB Plaza, Discovery Bay, ST B R FE Fh HY
Lantau Island 1B E B AL

10. 2 lowrise apartments located at KU = 2483 Residential 100%  Medium
Siena One, Discovery Bay, R — B TE A
Lantau Island 2 fEE e B8 fir

1. 1 lowrise apartment located at RNE L g =& 1315 Residential 100%  Medium
Siena Two, Discovery Bay, BENH B s th 8
Lantau Island 1 {8 165 BB & iy

12. 2 highrise apartments located at KU L5 &% & 1438 Residential 50%  Medium
Peninsula Village, Discovery Bay, A= EEAL FE A
Lantau Island

13, 5 houses located at Phase 17, AE LS EE 7 39596 Residential 50%  Medium
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island SEERFRE FE A

EREEFREBEBRAF 2020/2021 F#H
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Particulars of Major Properties

TEYRFR

At 31 March 2021 7202143 H31H

Attributable
Gross floorarea Nature of interestto  Category
Descriptions (sq. ft.) property theGroup  oflease
BEEER 5
R (FAR) MEHE EEFz HEHR
14, 14/F of Century Tower Il and BFBLTE 3663 Residential 100% Long
Car Parking Space No. 12 on Level 1, HWHIBEEI5RI5A FE R H
Century Tower, 1 and 1A R KEN 148 Rk
Tregunter Path, The Peak, Hong Kong e XEF 1 EEES
125R &7
15. Flat 2 on 1st Floor and Car Parking BEAEEHICREZAE 3500 Residential 100% Long
Space No. 19 and One Roof Space E2EE195REN K F=x & H
Marked “5”, Bowen Mansion, 5] K&
7C Bowen Road, Hong Kong
16. 2 highrise apartments located at ABENEREXRER 2,378 Residential 100%  Medium
Coastal Skyline, Tung Chung, 2MEE BB AL FE A
Lantau Island
17. 1 highrise apartment located at N FRRREMN 1,090 Residential 100%  Medium
Tung Chung Crescent, 1{E = B E = A
Tung Chung, Lantau Island
18, Wellgan Villa, AT BB 1485 39022 Residential 100%  Medium
148 Nga Tsin Wai Road, RYEE £ i
Kowloon
19, 1 residential unit and 1 car parking HEEETRER 1571 Residential 100% Long
space of Chelsea Residence, 2|11 §5 10387 169%% £ = H
No. 169 of Lane 1038, REERE_K
Huashan Road, Changning District, VEEEEN R EEf
Shanghai, the PRC
20. Horizon Place Akasaka, BARER 81624 Residential 100%  Freehold
Tokyo, Japan Horizon Place Akasaka FE KAERE
21, Souei Park Harajuku, AARR 14,040 Residential 100%  Freehold
Tokyo, Japan Souei Park Harajuku FE KA
2. VeneoMinami Azaby, HARR 18299 Residential 100%  Freehold
Tokyo, Japan Veneo Minami Azabu FE KAERE
2. Haluwa Shiba Koen, AARR 35246 Residential 100%  Freehold
Tokyo, Japan Haluwa Shiba Koen £ KAERE
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Attributable

Gross floorarea Nature of interestto  Category
Descriptions (sq. ft.) property theGroup  oflease
BEEER 5

R (FAR) MEHE EhFz HEER

2. Graphio Nishi-Shinjuku, ARER 27314 Commercial 100%  Freehold
Tokyo, Japan Graphio Nishi-Shinjuku GES KK

25. Commercial Centre, KNI Lo = & 233,419 Commercial 50% Medium
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island EELIN GES A

26. Shop 401 on Ground Floor, RE LR EEE 7417 Commercial 50%  Medium
Coastline Villa, Peninsula Village, EEHNHT0E GRS i
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island

27. Commercial Centre, Yi Pak, KIS E = 170,162 Commercial 50%  Medium
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island EELIN G A

28. CDW Building, HREE 975520 Commercial 100%  Medium
382-392 Castle Peak Road, ERHEI-IH RS th H
27-37 Mei Wan Street, Tsuen Wan, & 1L 38 382-392%%
New Territories FARNE

2. 325 car parking spaces AT R 25 N/A Commercial 100%  Medium
at Tuen Mun Central Square, HFR R ES THEA BE A
22 Hoi Wing Road, 325 A&
Tuen Mun, New Territories

30. West Gate Tower, NERDE 146,531 Industrial (note) 100%  Medium
7 Wing Hong Street and KT RIEMESHR T (=) i
8 King Lam Street, Cheung Sha Wan, EEHEF L
Kowloon

31. 3 units of DANG, HREE 5487 Industrial 100%  Medium
2-6 Fui Yiu Kok Street, RE AH2-65% (saleablearea) T h
Tsuen Wan, New Territories DANG6 3 {E & iz (ER®EE)

3. United Daily News Centre, NELME 62800 Industrial 100%  Medium
21 Yuk Yat Street, T8 B #21% IT% A
To Kwa Wan, Kowloon HEWAE

Note: The Group has obtained approval to convert the property from industrial to ~ KisE: SEERGH#H & B EEYMER IR ER A

FERE BN IENELRET-

commercial use and the refurbishment works are underway.

FERRAXERKEERAF 20202021 £ 235
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Particulars of Major Properties

TEYRFR

At 31 March 2021 7202143 H31H

C. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

C. BHELEWR

Attributable
Gross floor area Nature of interestto  Category
Descriptions (sq.ft.) property theGroup  of lease
B BREER 5
(FAR) MEHE EERz HEER
33. Remaining units of Poggibonsi, KU Ly = 75006 Residential 50%  Medium
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island BRATEN FE A
34, Remaining units of ZEHEA 23,513 Residential 100%  Freehold
The Sukhothai Residences, The Sukhothai Residences (net saleable area) {¥ = KAERE
Bangkok, Thailand BT EAL (FERER)
35. Remaining units of HEFETRER 58,978 Residential 100% Long
Elite House, T 13105 FE R H
No. 1310 Ding Xi Road, oL AR
Changning District, BT Ef
Shanghai, the PRC
36. Remaining units of Riviera One, HESNIEEED 15,048 Residential 100% Long
Jiaxing City, EEE FE R
Zhejiang Province, the PRC BT B
37. Mansion One, Jiaxing City REMIEEET 341655 Residential 100% Long
Zhejiang Province, the PRC ERril TF=E = H
38. Creekside One, Jiaxing City, RETEEET 209690 Residential 100% Long
Zhejiang Province, the PRC B A& FE R
39, Remaining units of Oasis One, RET AN T 5,101 Residential 100% Long
Hangzhou City, i £ = H
Zhejiang Province, the PRC BT EAL
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Corporate Information and Investors’ Calendar
N jﬁﬂ&j:Xﬁ% E [T

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EEE
=
Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor (Executive Chairman)
B E (BTFEE)
Ms WONG CHA May Lung Madeline
(Non-executive Deputy Chairman)
TEEELLGFHTERE)
Mr TANG Moon Wah (Managing Director)
B S (B F A )
The Honourable Ronald Joseph ARCULLI
BEEREE
Mr CHA Mou Daid Johnson
EREEE
Mr CHEUNG Ho Koon
SROEER ST
Mr CHEUNG Wing Lam Linus
SROK AR HE
Mr FAN Hung Ling Henry
SEISHR ST &
Ms HO Pak Ching Loretta
fal A 5 & £
Ms NGAN Man Ying
BN HELZ L
Ms Barbara SHIU
BREm AL
Mr TANG Kwai Chang
BHEZLE

AUDIT COMMITTEE
EREES

Mr TANG Kwai Chang (Chairman)
BEZLE(EE

Mr CHEUNG Wing Lam Linus

SR KR 5T A

Ms HO Pak Ching Loretta

e R+

Ms Barbara SHIU
BRiEm L

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
yMEES
=
Mr CHEUNG Wing Lam Linus (Chairman)
SROKFREE (E/E)
Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor
KL
Mr FAN Hung Ling Henry
SEMRER L

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
=1 = =

REZES

Mr FAN Hung Ling Henry (Chairman)

eI KL (EE)

Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor

BB E

Ms HO Pak Ching Loretta

e X+

Mr TANG Kwai Chang

ilb=g- e

Ms WONG CHA May Lung Madeline

EFEERELLT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE
N M \A ; E

Ms WONG CHA May Lung Madeline (Chairman)
ITEXRELL(£/E)

Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor

BB LA

Mr FAN Hung Ling Henry

SBR B ST

Mr TANG Kwai Chang

BEZEE

COMPANY SECRETARY

D EWE
Ms LEUNG Wai Fan
RESFTL

REGISTERED OFFICE
AR EE

P.O. Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL OFFICE
TERER

23/F, China Merchants Tower
Shun Tak Centre

168-200 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

A B T 788 1 168-2005%
EEFPLOEERAE23E

SHARE REGISTRARS

BHBFETE

Hong Kong

E

Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

BERGRE EA B AR A

95\7%;%%;?7(;5%183%

A FAFOI7I712-1716 F

Cayman Islands
MEHE

Maples Corporate Services Limited
P.O. Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104

Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
EERERBRT

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

FERIT(EB)BRRAA

Bank of Communications Co,, Ltd.
Hong Kong Branch

RBIRTERNDARRREEB DT

Hang Seng Bank Limited

BAERITERAA

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited

BB BESRITERRAA

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
(Asia) Limited

FEIFRTEMNERAR

MUFG Bank, Ltd.

RS = ZURRTT

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited

MAFEERTARRAA

Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited

EBIRTT

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

BITRIT(BR)BER LA

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd.

Hong Kong Branch

EBBRERRITRODBERAREE

United Overseas Bank

RERTT

AUDITOR
& BED

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
ZEFAKEG R EHEPT
META

FE AR A 5 B BB A 2R

LEGAL ADVISORS
EEEE

Hong Kong Laws
BERER

Kao, Lee & Yip

BEEEMT

Mayer Brown

FFEIT AT

Reed Smith Richards Butler
EEE AR
Woo Kwan Lee & Lo

AT ERETT

Cayman Islands Laws
FHEREEE

Maples and Calder

BELEERMELM

SEHK STOCK NAME/CODE
Bk 32 i IR A7 B A/ IR 404K 3R

HKR Int'| & 7 B2 2 B B /00480

INVESTORS’ CALENDAR
BREZ B

2021 Annual General Meeting
221 FRRBFAE

25 August 2021
20218 H25H

Closure of Registers of Members
EEROBFER

20 to 25 August 2021 (Annual General Meeting)
20218 A20B E25 B (REBFAE)

1 to 3 September 2021 (Final Dividend)
219 AVBE3IR CRARE)

Dividend Payment Date
/|_,\ /JE gﬁ E H\H

20 September 2021
2021F9A20H

COMMUNICATION

B 4%

Website #3 31 : www.hkri.com

Tel & 55:(852)2238 1188

Email & #:

investors@hkri.com (Investors 8 &%)
cs@hkri.com (Shareholders A% %)



EKRI

FEEEEREEFRAE

(NI B BEMAL 2 BRAR)
BATHET 168 RIERT OHEEBAE23Z

HKR INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

23/F, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
168 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong

www.hkri.com

MIX

Papar from
responsible sources

Ewlscorg FSC™ C007445
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